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Thumbnail sketch

Clariant is a global leader in the field of spe-
cialty chemicals. Strong business relationships,
commitment to outstanding service and wide-
ranging application know-how make Clariant
a preferred partner for its customers.
Clariant, which is represented on five conti-
nents with over 100 group companies, employs
about 23 000 people. Headquartered in Mut-
tenz near Basel, it generated sales of around
CHF 8.2 billion in 2005.

Clariant's businesses are organized in five divi-
sions: Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals, Pig-
ments & Additives, Functional Chemicals, Life
Science Chemicals and Masterbatches.
Clariant is committed to sustainable growth
springing from its own innovative strength.
Clariant’'s innovative products play a key role in
its customers’ manufacturing and treatment
processes or else add value to their end prod-
ucts.

Key figures 2005 2004 2004
Divisional sales with third parties CHF mn 8181 7973 8530
Operating income before restructuring, 516 609 636
disposals and goodwill amortization

Net income of the Group 192 149 159
Total assets 7324 8100
Capital and-reserves 2591 2314
Investment in property, 348 289
plant and equipment

Research and development 218 274
Staff costs 1952 1979
Staff (at year-end) number 23383 24769
Earnings per-share CHF 0.81 0.65 0.72
Distribution per share CHF 0.25 0.25

' On alike-for-like basis

Sales by region
Total 2005: CHF 8 181 mn

22% Asia/Africa/Australia

CHF 1801 mn j

28% Americas
CHF 2269 mn

50% Europe
CHF 4111 mn

Sales by division
Total 2005: CHF 8 181 mn
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¢ Masterbatches

® Life Science Chemicals

The company's success is based on the know-
how of its people and their ability to identify
new customer needs at an early stage and to
work together with customers to develop in-
novative, efficient solutions. Clariant — Exactly
your chemistry.

Sales trend
CHF mn
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Leading service provider

Shaken, not stirred — Martin Gernand is a "bottleshaker.”
An engineer, he travels to oil wells all over the world
on Clariant’s behalf, accompanied by his suitcase-sized
test laboratory. His clients are the oil majors, his mis-
sion: to analyze the “hlack gold” at the source. There,
he carries out an on-the-spot investigation into the pre-
cise formulation of the demulsifier appropriate for this

particular mixture of oil and water. Clients know they
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can count on Clariant to provide reliable product rec-
ommendations in a short time frame. And that's not all:
Clariant delivers solutions for many of the diverse prob-
lems that arise in an oil and gas field. That's worth gold,
too, as every day of lost production costs millions. This
is one way in which Clariant adds value for its clients
every day. The company’s emphasis on consultancy and

service gives it a decisive campetitive edge.
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Dear Shareholder,

Dear Madam, Dear Sir,

Clariant made further progress in the year that
just ended following its strategic reorientation,
the disposal of parts of the company and the
reestablishment of a strong financial hasis.

We have introduced the new Operating Model
with globally applicable standards and pro-
cesses and adjusted the roles and responsibil-
ities in the company to the new structures.
This not only improved management and effi-
ciency, but also created the conditions for
group-wide certification in December 2005 of
Clariant’s quality and environmental manage-
ment system to IS0 9001 and IS0 14001.

The bundling of all the Group's key functions at
headquarters in Muttenz, Switzerland, has
heen successfully completed. About 350 em-
ployees from various countries have begun
waorking at their new workplace in the Corpo-
rate Center. This has enabled us to streamline
processes and strengthen team work.

Prospects for the future considered “stable”
For the first time, both rating agencies, Stan-
dard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service,
have given Clariant a BBB and Baa2 creditrat-
ing and classified the company's outlook for
the future as “stable.” This rating created the
conditions that allowed Clariant to pay back
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the syndicated loan of almost CHF 1 000 million
prematurely before the end of the year, thus
enabling it to benefit from more favorable
financing terms in future.

Within the framework of the Clariant Perfor-
mance Improvement Program (CPIP}, some

Rating agencies now classify
Clariant’s creditworthiness as
BBB and Baa2 and consider the
company’s outlook as “stable.”

CHF 310 million were saved in 2005. All togeth-
er, we have thus now achieved more than half
the targeted cost savings of over CHF 800 mil-
lion.

High raw material costs depress annual
results

In 2005 Clariant lifted sales revenues in Swiss
francs by 3 percentto CHF 8 181 million on a like-
for-like basis. The result, though, suffered from
the steep rise in costs for raw materials, ener-
gy and logistics, only part of which could be
offset by higher prices. Raw materials alone
were 8 percent more expensive on average.
This depressed operating profit before excep-
tionals, including CHF 80 million transforma-
tion program costs, to CHF 516 million; the
operating margin fell to 6.3 percent.

The planned restructuring costs for the trans-
formation program which were higher than the
previous year, pius an impairment of CHF 55 mil-
lion on the Pharmaceutical Business of the Life
Science Chemicals Division ultimately pro-
duced an operating profit of CHF 368 million.

Operating cash flow declined to CHF 209 mil-
lion, partly as a result of the higher costs for
raw materials and higher expenditures for
restructuring.

Marked improvement in net income
Net income, hawever, showed another marked
improvement. Thanks to a good financial result

The improvement in net profit
makes it possible to reduce the par
value of the shares by CHF 0.25
per share.

and a further reduction in the tax rate, it climbed
29 percent to CHF 192 million on a like-for-like
basis. Earnings per share rose to CHF 0.81. We
proposetothe AnnualGeneralMeeting of April 7,
2008, a payout of CHF 0.25 per share through a
reduction in the par value from CHF 4.75 to
CHF 4.50.




Amid volatile trends in the industry, by year-
end the share price had risen 5 percent to
CHF 19.35 on heavy trading; by comparison, the
Swiss Market Index {SMI1) advanced by 33 per-
centin the same period.

Good financial basis created

Clariant can report a healthy balance sheet.
Gearing, which expresses net debt as a per-
centage of equity capital, is at relatively low
58 percent. The slight rise in net debt was off-
set by the increase in equity. The equity ratio
improved to 35.4 percent with total assets of
CHF 7 324 million.

Clariant has thus created a solid financial ba-
sis for a secure future since the launch of the
transformation program in the fall of 2003. In
less than three years, ithas reduced debt from
CHF 3.5 billion to CHF 1.5 billion, increased equi-
ty fram CHF 977 million to CHF 2.6 billion, re-
duced gearing from 355 percent to below 60
percent, raised the equity ratio from below 12
percentto over 35 percent and almost trebled
market capitalization from CHF 1.6 billien to
CHF 4.5 billion.

These achievements are due to the hard work
and commitment of our many thousands of em-
ployees around the world who have been in-
strumental in putting Clariant firmly back on its
feet and ensuring that it can look to the future
with confidence.

Robert Raeber

Constantly striving for improvements

The demanding economic environment seen
in the past year demonstrates how essential it
is to continue the Clariant Performance Im-
provement Program. Since the program start-
ed, savings of some CHF 460 million have been

Since the beginning of the Clariant
transformation program, CHF 460
million have been saved, as plan-
ned; in 2006 savings of a further
CHF 250 million are projected.

achieved, partly through the elimination of
over 2 000 jobs. By 2007 the implementation of
the 5500 individual measures is to be complet-
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ed according to plan. This will resultin the sav-
ing of a further CHF 250 million in the current
year.

The ongoing transformation of the company
requires constant striving for improvement,
strict cost management and a strong perfor-
mance mindset. We are therefore already
working to convert the Clariant Performance
Improvement Program into a “Continuous Im-
provement Process,” in order to secure a con-
tinuous increase in efficiency also in the fu-
ture.

Driving innovation and growth

Innovation and growth are key cornerstones
of our future success. In research and devel-
opment, we will continue to focus our efforts
on meeting customers’ needs and constantly
seek promising applications that create added
value for the customer. In addition to innova-
tion in our core businesses, though, we are
also investing in new technology platforms.

A good example is the new technology plat-
form we are creating for multifunctional coat-
ings and nanomaterials, which will serve as a
springboard for developing a wide range of
applications. In order to secure a leading posi-
tion in this area and to support our own activi-
ties, we have sought cooperative agreements

(&P

with universities and research institutes. We
have also agreed on a cooperation with the US
firm Starfire Systems Inc., a start-up in the
field of nanostructured surfaces for the auto-
maotive, aerospace and electronics industries.
In addition, we acquired KiON Corporation, the
world’s only commercial supplier of arganic
polysilazanes as a precursor to ceramic com-
pounds. The technology is a good fit with our
extensive expertise in the field of inorganic
polysilazanes for functional coatings.

Clariant has the know-how needed to trans-
late its strengths in areas such as synthesis,
colors and surface effects into leading market

Over 23 percent of the Clariant
portfolio already consists of
innovative products that are less
than five years old.

positions and steady growth. 23 percent of the
current portfolio already consists of innova-
tive products that are less than five years
old. Examples of such products that have been
successfully launched are the nonhalogenat-
ed Exolit® flame retardant, the versatile Lico-
cene® waxes, the color-care Texcare® deter-
gent additives or the latest flame-retardant

Cesa® masterbatches for engineering plastics,
which are an environmentally friendly alterna-
tive to traditional halogenated products.

Expanding our service-oriented business

As part of our corporate strategy, we will
expand our service-oriented business through
organic growth and acquisitions that round off
our operations. In 2005 we have spent some
CHF 60 million more than the previous year on
projects that secure our future growth. We
want to take greater advantage of regional
growth apportunities in the fast-growing mar-
kets of Asia and Eastern Europe.

All these far-reaching measures ensure that
Clariant can continue to operate successfully
as an independent company.

New appointments to senior management

The Board of Directors has made new appoint-
ments to key managerial positions. Following
the Annual General Meeting on April 7, 2006,
Jan Secher will take over as Chief Executive
Officer from Roland Ldsser, who in turn will re-
place Robert Raeber as Chairman of the Board
of Directars. Clariant will benefit from the ex-
tensive experience of the new CEQ in interna-
tional management, business development and
marketing in the industrial context and in the
successful implementation of restructuring pro-




grams. Along with Patrick Jany, who replaced
Frangois Note at the beginning of this year as
Chief Financial Officer, and the tried and test-
ed management team, he will lead the compa-
ny into the future. We wish the entire team all
the best and much success.

Positive outlook for 2006

We expect that the transformation measures
undertaken will result in significantly better
results in the current year. We do not anticipate
any further negative effects from increases in
raw material prices for 2006. The management
team will continue to implement the measures
of the transformation program in order to im-
prove performance durably. Assuming a broad-
ly stable macroeconomic environment, the
company expects good growth in local curren-
cy terms, a further CHF 250 millien in cost base
reductions and an improvement of at least

The transformation measures will
be reflected in significantly better
results in 2006.

CHF 120 million of aperating income hefore ex-
ceptional items and excellent growth in net
income for the full-year 2006.

We wish to thank you, our shareholders, for
the interest and trust you show in us. You may
rest assured that we will do everything in our
power to earn this trust and to enhance the
company's value for the benefit of all con-
cerned.

e

Robert Raeber Roland Ldsser
Chairman of the Chief Executive
Board of Directors Officer




Corporate bodies

Following the 11th Annual General Meeting on April 7, 2006,

current CEO Roland Losser will take over as Chairman of
the Board of Directors. He replaces Robert Raeber, who has

reached the statutory age limit. At the same time, Jan Secher

will become the new Chief Executive Olfficer.

Sharehalder approval

Clariant shareholders attending the 10th Annual General
Meeting in Basel on April 7, 20085, adopted each of the mo-
tions proposed by the Board of Directors by a large majority.
These included a motion to repay par value of CHF 0.25
per registered share instead of distributing an ordinary div-
idend. The share capital has therefore been reduced by
CHF 57 540 000, fram CHF 1 150 800 000 to CHF 1 093 260 000,
and the par value of each registered share by CHF 0.25, from
CHF 5.00 to CHF 4.75. The CHF 0.25 reduction has been paid
to shareholders in cash.

Shareholders also approved a motion to cancel one of the
articles in the company's Articles of Association. This arti-
cle would have obliged an investor to make a public pur-
chase offer only if he or she had acquired more than 49 per-
cent of the company’s shares. The limit beyond which the
duty to make an offer applies has thereby been reduced to
the statutory minimum of 33 /s percent.

Changes on the Board of Directors

The 10th Annual General Meeting reelected incumbent
Chairman Robert Raeber and Prof. Dieter Seebach as mem-
bers of the Board of Directors. Dr. Klaus Jenny from Glarus,
Switzerland, was elected as a new Board member for a
four-year term of office. He took the seat of Heinrich
Bossard, the businessman who passed away in 2004. Jenny
is a member of the Board of Directors of Béloise Holding
and various unlisted companies.

Changes on the Board of Management

On November 3, 2005, the Board of Directors appointed
Roland Losser as its Designated Chairman. Roland Losser
takes up his new position after Clariant's 11th Annual Gen-
eral Meeting on April 7, 2006. He will succeed the incum-
bent Chairman of the Board of Directors, Robert Raeber,
who will reach the statutory age limit around that time.

At the same time, Jan Secher, 48, was appointed as the new
Chief Executive Officer. He has been a member of Clariant’s
Board of Management since January 1, 2006, and will take
up his new position as the company’s CEQ after the 11th
Annual General Meeting. Jan Secher is a Swedish citizen
and was most recently Chief Executive Officer of the SICPA
Group. The Lausanne-based company has built a leading

Uwe Nickel

Siegfried Fischer

position in the global market for packaging inks and security
inks far bank notes. Secher previously held a number of
management positions atthe ABB Group.

On January 1, 2006, Patrick Jany, 38, took over the post of
Chief Financial Officer, thereby replacing Frangois Note,
who will continue his career outside the company. Jany
was previously Head of Corporate Development at Clariant.

Patrick Jany

i




Board of Directors
Peter R. Isler

Klaus Jenny

Roland Ldsser
Chairman from April 2006

Kajo Neukirchen

Roland Lésser Jan Secher Robert Raeber
Chairman until April 2006
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Secretary of the Board of Directors

Board of Management Uwe Nickel

Dominik von Bertrabh Head of the Pigments & Additives Division
Head of the Masterbatches Division Francois Note

Peter Brandenberg Chief Financial Officer until the end of 2005
Head of Group Services and Regions Peter Piringer

Siegfried Fischer Head of the Textile, Leather & Paper
Head of the Functional Chemicals and Life ~ Chemicals Division

Science Chemicals Divisions Jan Secher

Patrick Jany Member of the Board of Management
Chief Financial Officer since January 2006  since January 2006, Chief Executive
Roland Lésser Officer from April 2006

Chief Executive Officer until April 2006 Hartmut Wiezer

Head of Group Technology

Peter Brandenberg Dominik von Bertrab Peter Piringer Hartmut Wiezer Francois Note
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Clariant continued with the systematic implementation of
its strategy for growth and increased efficiency in 2005.
The company responded to market challenges with capital
investment in the United States and Asia, selectively ex-
panding its business activity. At the same time Clariant
continues to increase its service orientation.

Strategic focus on service

Close customer contact and intensive innova-
tive activity are essential if Clariant is to meet
its customers’ individual requirements and fit
in with their specific processes. Building on
these, Clariant delivers tailor-made services
and applications — helping its customers to
achieve their gbjectives in terms of production
and profit.

Most customers’ needs relate to two chal-
lenges: faster, lower-cost production and pro-
cessing, and new or improved end-product
features.

Clariant’s business strategy is accordingly
based on particular strengths in the fields of
synthesis, dyes and surface effects. Clariant’s
objective is top-quality services that deliver

Clariant continued its program of
investment in 2005 to reinforce its
competitive position in the market.

clear added value to customers in the most
diverse industries, thus contributing to their
market success. At the same time this gives
Clariant an advantage over ambitious Asian
competitors.
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With this strategy, is how the company aspires
to a leading market position and continuous
growth. The strategy is based on the compa-
ny's knowledge, technalogies and products,
supplemented wherever possible by value-
added service components. Clariant has there-
fore chosen to continue the expansion of those
businesses with a pronounced service orienta-
tion.

Investment in the future

Clariant continued its program of investment
in 2005 to reinforce its competitive position in
the market. Among its strategic investments
was the acquisition of the US company Data
Chem, Inc., in Reserve, La., which enables
Clariant Qil Services to bring its customers in
the Gulf region of the United States hetter lo-
gistics and improved technical support. At the
same time the Group has expanded its cus-
tomer base, and itis now adapting its range of
products and related services to its new cus-
tomers’ needs. Strategically this is a continua-
tion of the successful takeovers and consis-
tent business growth achieved by Clariant Oil
Services in recent years in California and
Canada.

During the reporting year the Pigments & Ad-
ditives Division signed a contract with Hang-
zhou Baihe Chemicals Co. Ltd on a joint ven-

ture for the production of high-performance
organic pigments in China. Clariant has been
working with this company, which is based in
the Chinese province of Zhejiang, for many

In India Clariant is positioning
itself as a leading company in the
sector, with the potential to expand
its market position further.

years. The new joint venture is a response to
an increase in demand for these pigments,
from China and the rest of the warld. The pro-
duction facility will be located in Hangzhou,
southwest of Shanghai.

Clariant has agreed on a strategic cooperation
with the American company Starfire Systems
Inc. The two companies intend jointy to devel-
op new technologies and applications for nano-
structured ceramics in the automotive, avi-
ation and electronics industries.

In 2003 Clariant adopted the strategy of dispos-
ing of companies that are no longer part of its
core business, and it continued in 2005 with its
systematic implementation. Its CABB subsidi-
ary — Clariant (Acetyl Building Blocks) GmbH &




Co. KG - was sold to the Gilde Buy-CQut Fund
for EUR 44 million. It was part of the Life Sci-
ence Chemicals Division.

CABB is one of the leading companies in the
field of products based on chlorine and acetyl
chemistry, with a strong market position in
meonochloroacetic acid.

Successful restructuring

By mid-2005, as planned, the Clariant Perfor-
mance Improvement Program (CPIP) had iden-
tified all the measures required to cut costs
and boost efficiency. Launched in 2003, the pro-
gram will permanently improve cost struc-
tures. In the next two years Clariantwill concen-

trate on implementing its 5 500 or so individual
measures, and on incorporating the manage-
ment methods developed in the course of the
CPIP into day-by-day corparate practice.

Clariant has initiated the process of amal-
gamating its five companies operating in India.
These are Clariant {India) Ltd, Colour-Chem

Clariant organization

Chief Executive Officer

Roland Ldsser

Group Services

Finance /CFO

Human Resources

Production Services

Patrick Jany

Supply Chain Management

Sourcing

Group Services and Regions

Johann Steiner

Group Communications

Enviranment, Safety & Health Affairs

Peter Brandenberg

Information Technology

International Coordination

Technology

Walter Vaterlaus

Group Legal

Hartmut Wiezer

Technology

Intellectual Property

Innovation & Knowledge Management
New Business Development

Herbert Wohlmann

Corporate Development

Patrick Jany

Textile, Leather Pigments
& Paper Chemicals & Additives

Functional
Chemicals

Life Science Masterbatches

Chemicals

Peter Piringer Uwe Nickel

Siegfried Fischer Siegfried Fischer Dominik von Bertrab




Strategic priorities

Portfolio Market attractiveness | Competitive position | Strategy
Service-driven high strong expand
business

Technology-driven/ high, but volatile

niche businesses

strong in certain

| selectively develop
areas :

Cost-driven low

businesses

weak — medium restructure

Ltd, Vanavil Dyes and Chemicals Ltd, BTP India
Private Ltd and Kundalika Investments Ltd.
These companies’ general meetings have giv-
en their consent, and the exchange relation-
ships for their shares have been determined.
The Indian authorities are expected to ap-
prove the amalgamation in spring 2006, which
will enable the new company - Clariant Chem-
icals {India) Ltd - to start operations in April
2006. The new company will be positioned as a
leader in its sector in India, and will further
expand its market position.

In Germany preparations for the organization-
al amalgamation of the formerly independent
facilities at Griesheim, Wiesbaden and Héchst/
Sulzbach to form a single Rhine-Main facility,
which took effecton 1 January 2006, were car-
ried out during the reporting year. Integrating
these facilities, which are located between
Frankfurt and Wiesbaden, will make for sim-
pler structures and more efficient organiza-
tion. In future a number of group functions will
deliver their services centrally, among them
environment, safety and health, finance, infor-
mation technology, purchasing, facilities man-
agement, engineering technology, mainte-
nance, communications and personnel.
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Improved financial strength

During the reporting period Standard & Poor’s
and Moody's Investors Service rated Clariant's
financial standing at BBB and Baa2 respec-
tively. Both agencies believe the company has

The entire Clariant Group is
certified under 1SO 9001 and
ISO 14001.

stable future prospects, and they certify its solid
guality as an investment. Clariant repaid tranch-
es of its long-standing syndicated loans total-
ing CHF 964 million at the end of 2005, which
would not normally have fallen due for repay-
ment between 2006 and 2009.

This simplified the structure of Clariant’s fi-
nancial debts, increased refinancing flexibility
and substantially reduced the number of cred-
itor banks. Part of the repayment was carried
out with cash holdings of some CHF 750 mil-
lion, while the rest was financed by taking up
more flexible credit facilities that cost signifi-
cantly less because of the company’s new in-
vestment-grade status.

Global quality assurance

Clariant’s global quality and environmental man-
agement has been certified under 1S0 9001 and
IS0 14001 since December 2005. The company
can thus guarantee to its customers that its
products and business processes meet in-
ternationally recognized quality and environ-
ment-protection standards. The new certifi-
cate covers the entire Group, replacing the
previous certificates that were valid only at
local level.

From its very inception Clariant has sought
certification for as many parts of the company
as possible. In the past the Group obtained
around 120 certificates, though the scope of
most of these was limited only to individual
companies. The new business model that came
into force at the beginning of 2005 prescribes
business processes that are uniform through-
out the world, creating the possibility of ob-
taining certification for the company as a whole.
For more information on the new operating
model, see the 2004 Annual Report, p. 9 ff.

International labor standards

Clariant formally approved the four basic prin-
ciples of the ILO — the International Labor
Organization — in 2005, thus enshrining in its




Corporate Center shortens lines

“We are seeking to concentrate Glariant's strategic
management tasks and functions at our headquarters in
Muttenz. This will make the company more efficient,
more flexible and able to respond faster to the market's
needs. In this way we can significantly improve our com-
petitive position. To achieve this, we need you. Here, in
Muttenz.”

With these words Roland Lésser kicked off the project
“Move” in 2004. The aim is to "concentrate our forces™:

functions that were previously decentralized were to

he brought together in the Corporate Center at headquar-

code of behavior what it had been practicing
for many years in all its business processes.
These four basic principles, which have deter-
mined the ILO’s ethos and activities ever since
its foundation, are as follows: freedom of asso-
ciation and the right to collective bargaining,
the elimination of forced and compulsary la-
bor, the abolition of child labor, and the elimi-
nation of discrimination in the workplace.

Regular internal audits will be conducted in
future to verify compliance with these princi-
ples. In addition, Group Sourcing — the Clariant
department responsible for purchasing - has
defined measures to ensure that the ILO prin-
ciples are also respected by suppliers.

Enhancing Clariant brand recognition
The objective of Clariant’s brand strategy is to
strengthen the brand, and thus to make it eas-

ters in Switzerland. The Corporate Center, which con-
sists of the Board of Management, the divisional man-
agements and the Group Functions, is responsible for
the strategic guidance of Clariant.

To date, more than 350 executives from various group
companies outside Switzerland have moved their place
of work to Muttenz. The response has been positive
across the board. Physical proximity makes persanal
contact possible at all times. Internal communication,
which used to depend largely on electronic media, is

now more intensive, while informal meetings are more

ier to introduce new products and services, to
open up new markets and to increase cus-
tomer penetration. A flexible advertising con-
cept, designed for the long term, was accord-
ingly developed for the Clariant brand in 2005,
Its central message was formulated as a core

The self-confident advertising
concept with its emotional appeal
supports the company’s market
presence.

question. "What do you need?” highlights
Clariant’s strengths: customer orientation, tai-
lor-made services, dialog, partnership and in-
novative strength. This is what the brand
stands for, with customers and employees,
with investors — and also with the public.

frequent. This speeds up both the discussion process
and decision-making. The declared goal was to simplify
cooperation among the divisions and between the divi-
sions and Group Functions — and it has clearly been
achieved.

That Muttenz is an attractive location can he seen from
our neighbors. Muttenz is a production site for such firms

as Novartis, Ciba SC, SF Chem, Syngenta and Schweizer

Rheinsalinen as well as Clariant.

The core question is based on the Clariant
brand pramise, embodied in the claim “Exactly
your chemistry.”. "What do you need?” calls on
customers to challenge Clariant to meet their
individual needs and challenges: to keep its
brand promise, in other words. The new adver-
tising concept is thus a consistent continua-
tion of Clariant’s existing communications. It
serves as a guiding principle and a platform for
all its advertising, raising the Clariant profile
whether individual ads are designed to en-
hance the company'simage or sell its products.

PRSI .\
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The Clariant share price improved only marginally in the
past business year. A rally set in towards the end of the year
when investors felt more optimistic about the speciaity
chemical industry, and the stock closed with a gain of 5%.

Share price performance
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Share price performance in 2005

In 2005, the Clariant share price improved by
5% in a remarkable stock market overall. The
price movements were by and large dictated
by events such as fluctuating raw material
prices that had a substantial impact. Brent
crude, for instance, rose as high as USD 66.

The share price fell following the annaunce-
ment of disappointing first quarter results. In-
vestors regained confidence, though, follow-
ing improved second quarter figures. In the
last quarter the price tracked the upward

In 2005, the market capitalization
of Clariant rose by CHF 230 million
to CHF 4.45 billion.

momentum in the sector to end with a net gain
for the year. The upward movement reflects
optimism for 2006 for the industry as well as
for Clariant. Primarily, the wide-ranging trans-
formation program will further provide a strong
boost to Clariant's efficiency and competitive-
ness.

—
fo

The appeintments of Jan Secher as new Chief
Executive Officer in December and of Patrick
Jany as Chief Financial Officer in November,
respectively, were well received, though the
news did not impact the share price perfor-
mance significantly. Inthe fourth quarter Clariant

The high cost of raw materials
eroded profits in the specialty
chemicals industiy worldwide.

simplified its debt structure by prepaying syn-
dicated term foans and it was assigned invest-
ment grade ratings by Standard & Poor’s and
Moody's. This step will further enhance the
company's high level of transparency with in-
vestors.

In 2005, the market capitalization of Clariant
rose by CHF 230 million. The average daily trad-
ing volume was 2.1 million shares and rose by
over 30% year-on-year compared with an aver-
age increase of 12.5% for its peers. Overall,
the company's market capitalization increased
from CHF 4.2 billion at the end of 2004 1o CHF
4.45 billion at year-end 2005.

Sharehalder structure

Shares in Clariant Ltd are listed on SWX Swiss
Exchange as registered shares with the sym-
bol CLN. They form part of the Swiss Market
Index SMI. On 31 December 2005 the free float
of Clariant Ltd shares was 100%. No single in-
vestor owned more than 5% of Clariant. In 2004
Artisan Partners Ltd Partnership, based in
Mitwaukee, Wisc., United States, held 10.01%
of the Clariant stock as at the reporting date.




information for shareholders

Share information as at December 31, 2005

Symbol CLN
Listing SWX
Nominal value CHF 475
Issue price’ adjusted for split: IPO on June 29, 1995, 80 million shares CHF 17.10
No. of treasury shares 3867293
Ali-time high on June 18, 1998 CHF 92.38
All-time low an February 27, 2003 CHF 8.47
Performance since issue’ % 13.2
Average daily trading volume mn 2.1
Five-year overview and dividend 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Number of registered shares issued’ 230 160 000 230 160 000 172734 437 172734 437 172734 437
Number of shares created by conversion - - - - -
within the limits of the conditional capita)
Number of shares eligible dividend 230 160 G0D 230160 000 172734 437 172734 437 172734 437
Price at the year-end? CHF 19.35 18.35 16.21 19.63 27.76
High for the year CHF 21.30 19.99 21.50 35.40 52.41
Low for the year! CHF 16.70 14.80 8.47 19.32 16.88
Stock exchange capital at year-end CHF mn 4454 4223 2800 3391 4785
Earnings/loss per share! CHF 0.81 0.72 0.93 -3.82 -1.25
Distribution per share? CHF 0.25 0.25 0.18 - 0.27
Distribution total CHF mn 515 57.5 307 - 46
As a percentage of consolidated profit % 30.0 384 19.1 - 33
' Owing to the capital increase conducted in April 2004,
share prices and dividends for the period priar to April
2004 have been diluted by a factor of 0.8883.
Shareholders’ structure as at December 31, 2005
by regions Shareholders % Shares %
Switzerland 31788 95.0 71746 655 31.2
Europe 1344 40 44 404 698 19.3
Qutside of Europe 343 1.0 14 516 048 6.3
USA portion 76 02 9993877 43
Total registered shares 334715 100.0 130 667 401 56.8
by number of shares
1-999 23 246 69.4 8233955 3.6
1 000-9 999 9402 28.1 21722155 9.4
10 000-99 999 697 2.1 17 467 999 7.6
100 000 and more 130 0.3 83 243292 36.2
Total registered shares 33475 100.0 130 667 401 56.8
Shares not registered - - 99 492 599 43.2
Total 33475 100.0 230 160 000 100.0







growth

Globally active

Aspiring to leadership on
the global market. Sharing
in targeted growth world-
wide. Building on solid
business relations. Having
the right offering to adapt
flexibly to market needs.
Being iocally present for

its customers.

Sty the best parimes o
every shallenge. That is
Hlarant = the werld ever




Clariant exploits growth opportunities by investing in new
plants and facilities, offering innovative services and prod-
ucts, concluding cooperation agreements with selected part-
ners and through acquisitions. Our customers can be certain
that Clariant is the best partner to help them face their chal-

lenges.

Preferred partner for specialty chemicals
Clariant’s customers come from a wide variety
of industries, ranging from automotive right
through to wood-processing production. This
diversified portfolio gives the company a certain
degree of protection from the consequences of
economic cycles. Different industries follow
different cycles, and this partly compensates
for negative effects.

At the same time this diversity highlights the
extensive expertise that Clariant has at its dis-
posal in virtually every relevant field of industrial
production. Every industry demands speciatized
products — and, which is just as important, spe-
cialized advice from the supplier. Strong, last-
ing customer relationships are therefore the
top priority.

This is why around 3 000 Clariant employees —
in sales, quality control, research and devel-
opment or one of our service and application
centers — are directly concerned with cus-
tomer care. They know why and how the com-
pany's products should be used and new
applications developed.

Clear brand positioning

The Clariant brand personifies Clariant’s spe-
cific values: commitment to dialogue, service
leadershig, value focus. These values form the
basis of the entire customer relationship. In
dialog with customers, Clariant's employees
come to know their individual business pro-
cesses and needs. Dialog also plays a domi-
nant role in customer advisory activities, ser-
vice and after-sales care.

Service leadership is based on these same
values. In close contact with its customers,
Clariant provides services that draw fully on
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the company’s innovative strength and are tai-
lored precisely to the customers’ processes
and requirements.

Value focus ultimately means that Clariant’s
services offer customers measurable added
value, whether by simplifying their manufac-
turing and treatment processes and thus re-
ducing costs, improving the quality of their end

In 2005 Clariant brought to
market it’s new Sanolin® dyes in
granulate form.

products or enabling them to develop new prod-
ucts. However, value focus alsa means that
the entire Clariant service process — from de-
velopment, purchasing and production through
to delivery - is based on the principles of sus-
tainable development.

Targeted market presence

Clariant's arganization and processes are de-
signed in such a way that the divisions can
concentrate fully on their core competencies,
thereby ensuring thatthey are as close to their
markets as possible, Clariant places great em-
phasis on targeted cooperation between the
divisions in order to satisfy the specific needs
of the various industries to the maximum pos-
sible extent.

Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals

The division is one of the world’s leading sup-
pliers of specialty chemicals and dyes for the
textile, leather and paper industries. It has de-
centralized structures and a broad product
range.

The Textile Business provides special chemi-
cals for the pretreatment, dyeing, printing and
finishing of textiles. Optical brighteners and
chemicals for the functional treatment of tech-
nical textiles are also offered. The product
range includes a wide range of dyes such as
dispersion, reactive, acid and sulfur dyes,

The Paper Business supplies paper dyes, opti-
cal brighteners and process and pulping che-
micals. The Leather Business is one of the
leading suppliers of finishing chemicals. Its
range includes all finishing and dyeing chemi-
cals, as well as a complete range of wet-end
chemicals.

Pigments & Additives

The division develops and produces pigments
for paints and lacquers, for plastics and for spe-
cialized applications. Its expertise and world-
wide presence make Clariant a market leader
for pigments and additives.

With its broad spectrum of high-performance
products such as inkjet pigments, Clariant
meets the exacting demands of the automo-
tive and electronics industries. Clariant is also
one of the leading providers of pigments and
waxes for the printing-ink industry, where it is
able to meet the most stringent requirements —
such as for security pigments used in printing
banknotes.

The business also produces additives to im-
prove the resistance to heat, light and weather
of plastics and paints. Halogen-free flame re-
tardants are used in protective coatings in the
construction industry, in resins for construc-
tion and electronics, and in thermaplastics
and polyester fibers. The division’s compre-
hensive core portfolio also includes waxes




Customer structure

Textile, Leather & Paper
Chemicals {TLP)

Textile industry, leather industry, paper and pulp industry,
construction industry

Pigments & Additives

Coatings industries’, plastic industries, printing industries,

{P&A) specialized industries?
Life Science Chemicals Pharma industry, agro industry
(LSC)

Functional Chemicals Detergent industry, cosmetics industry, oil and gas industry,
(FUN) construction industry, agro industry, metal working industry,
mining industry, paint industry

Masterbatches (MB) Resin producers, compounders?, polymer converters?,

manufacturers of industrial and consumer goods®

based on various starting materials. These
products play a leading role in their various
fields of application.

PA activities

In 2005 the Pigments & Additives Division
launched a new range of sanolin dyes in gran-
ular form. With a grain size of around 0.5 mm,
the new granulates are free-flowing and do
not cause dust, which makes them easier to
handle and keeps the workplace clean. Anoth-
er special property is that they are water-solu-
ble, in which respect these granulates are su-
perior to comparable powder dyes. Sanolin
granulates are unusually pure, making them
outstandingly suitable for cosmetics.

During the reporting year the Pigments & Addi-
tives Division signed a contract with Hang-
zhou Baihe Chemicals Co. Ltd on a joint ven-
ture for the production of high-performance

Clariant and Toshiba have made «
breakthrough in the development
of a new generation of DVDs.

arganic pigments in China. There has been a
further sharp rise in demand for these pig-
ments, from China and the rest of the world.

A joint project between Clariant and Toshiba
has made a breakthrough in the development
of a new generation of DVDs. Based on organ-
ic dyes, the double-coated, recordable-once
HD DVD-R, the high-definition recordable DVD,
has the outstanding memory capacity of 30 GB.

To develop new products that are precisely
adapted to common regional applications and
application systems, the Pigments & Additives
Division is establishing a development center
specially for Asian requirements. Its objective
is to boost its participation in dynamic Asian
economic growth. The ideal location for the
center is the Clariant Songwon Color Co. Ltd
Research Institute in Ulsan, Korea. Previously
largely focused on the Korean market, this will
now broaden its scope to include the whole of
Asia.

Functional Chemicals

The division’s products are based on non-ionic,
anionic and cationic surfactants and on poly-
mers. The key products are products for the oil
industry and high-quality raw materials for de-
tergents and cosmetics, combined with com-
prehensive services.

The Detergents Business, which offers anion-
ic, cationic, and special non-ionic surfactants
as well as bleach activators, is a global part-
ner of the detergent industry. Performance
Chemicals, spread across the division’s entire
product range, supplies industries such as per-
sonal hygiene, crop protection, additives, and
preservatives for paints and coatings, for plas-
tics and for industrial chemicals.

The Process Chemicals Business markets prod-
ucts and services for the production and refin-
ing of oil and natural gas. It also supplies prod-
ucts for the metal-working, mining and chemi-
cal industries, plus aerospace and the auto-
motive industry.

' Manufacturers of automotive and industrial paints,
fire protection coatings and decorative paints
Including cosmetics, leather and writing implements
Manufacturers of compounds using polymers and
additives, such as flame retardants and light
stabilizers

Manufacturers of products from synthetic materials
Carpets, textiles and upholstery, industrial, food and
beverage packaging, personal care, automaotive,
business machines

FUN activities

The Clariant Qil Services Business acquired
Data Chem Inc., of Reserve, La., during the
reporting year. This takeover enables Clariant
Qil Services to bring its customers in the Gulf

New types of synthetic components
can be virtually simulated and
tested in ColorWorks™ centers.

region of the United States better logistics and
improved technical support. At the same time
the Group has expanded its customer base,
and it is now adapting its range of products
and services to its new customers’ needs.

Life Science Chemicals

The Life Science Chemicals Division consists
of two businesses: Specialty Fine Chemicals
and Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals. Specialty
Fine Chemicals produces and markets silanes,
as well as organic precursors and intermedi-
ates used in crap-protection agents, in fra-
grances and flavors, in photochemicals and as
industrial fine chemicals.

Using state-of-the-art synthesis technology,
Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals supplies inno-
vative and generic active ingredients as well
as customer-specific late-stage intermediates
manufactured to cGMP (current Good Manufac-
turing Practice) standards. Itis also a service
partner in the launch of drugs, supplying every-
thing from clinical materials to synthesis opti-
mization and regulatory strategies. Pharmaceu-
tical manufacturers throughout the world are
among its customers.




Right in the heart
of Shanghai,
China’s ‘Motown’

WongilastinglexperiencelinltheltagEasthavel
[madelClaniantfamiliapwithithelspecialjrequired
mentstandlsingulanieaturestotithisiparticulag
[marketiClanantlisltheretorelableltoladjusits]
[productstiolthelexacineedsloffitsliocallcustomers

Customers are not inclined to fly halfway round the world

to talk to a supplier. Furthermore, there is rising demand
for full advisory services and technical support in re-

spect of product applications.
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The automotive industry is hooming in Shanghai. Do-
mestic and foreign manufacturers produce cars there
both for the Chinese market and for export. Clariant has
opened a technical service center near its customers,
right in the heart of this up-and-coming metropolis.

As many car parts are made of a variety of materials,

carmakers usually have to deal with quite a ber of

different suppiiers. Clariant's new technical service cen-
ter offers advice and expert knowledge on all kinds of
auto parts — whether textiles, leather, paint or any
kind of plastic - all under one roof. A unique service for

China’s booming automotive industry.




LSC activities

Clariant seeks to increase the competitive-
ness of its customers in the market for the anti-
cancer drug 5-flucrocytasin. As part of these
efforts, Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals has
transferred production of raw materials as
Regulatory Grades from the United Kingdom to
its Roha works in India. This is a full technolo-
gy transfer, with the same technical data and
processes as were employed to produce the
substance in the United Kingdom. The British
works, which in 2004 passed an FDA food and
drugs test, will continue to produce to cGMP
standards.

In response to the pharmaceutical industry’s
growing interest in peptide-based therapies,
Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals has initiated

The new Cesa®-flam flame-retar-
dant masterbatches offer an envi-
ronmentally friendly alternative to
traditional halogenated flame
retardants.

measures to strengthen its position in this
field. Clariant and Indian company Jupiter Bio-
science have signed a cooperation agreement
to exploit their joint strengths. This will give
Clariant and its customers access to technolo-
gies with certain peptides, as well as both nat-
ural and synthetic aming acids.

To improve service levels and standards for
pharmaceutical customers in North America,
Clariant's Molecules Synthesis Center (MSC)
has commenced operations in its US works at
Springfield, Mo. The expansion of this facility
is a focused response to the increase in de-
mand from North America pharmaceuticals
producers for materials for the early stages of
the drug-launch process, including develop-
ment and phase | and H clinical tests.

Masterbatches

The Masterbatches Division’s global manufac-
turing network supplies dye and additive con-
centrates, as well as special multifunctional
mixtures of these components. The combina-
tion of global presence and strong local part-
nerships makes Clariant a preferred supplier for
synthetics processors and the textile industry.

At local level, each of the Division's 54 manu-
facturing facilities provide a full technical ser-
vice for all products and applications. This gives
Clariant its unique technological competency
in every one of the world’s significant markets
and segments.

MB activities

The technology for high-resolution animations
in feature movies and high-speed graphics, as
used in the latest video games, is now also
available to designers and developers of syn-
thetic products in the Masterbatches Division’s
ColorWorks™ Design & Technology Centers.

The Indigo System from ColorViz in Aix-en-
Provence, France, is a computer imaging sys-
tem developed to facilitate three-dimensional,
real-time virtual prototyping. It provides a quick
and easy way to evaluate color, gloss and tex-
ture in plastic components without making cost-
ly real prototypes. The system is hecoming stan-
dard equipment in full-service ColorWorks™
centers in the United States, Europe and Asia.

European packaging producers can also now
evaluate colored and special effects on real,
three-dimensional models, instead of so-called
flat injection-molding chips. At the Lahnstein
works in Germany Masterbatches has com-
missioned a blow-molding machine that can
produce packaging samples for product de-
velopmentin one or two days.

A new plant that has commenced operations
at the Taoyuan works in Taiwan was specially
designed and built for the production of black
masterbatches for manufacturers of nylon and
polyester fibers. The new extruder is the anly
one of its kind in this region. Its special design
for high-quality masterbatches required for
fiber-spinning processes will drastically reduce
delivery times to Asian fiber producers.

The new Cesa®-flam flame-retardant master-
batches offer an environmentally friendly alter-
native to traditional halogenated flame retar-
dants. These additive masterbatches were
specially developed for technical synthetics
such as polyamides, polyesters and thermo-
plastic urethanes, and they will now he mar-
keted in North America through the Clariant
works in Winchester, Va.

™~
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Archroma Global Services provides
precision color management and calor
development services to retailers for
fashion, apparel and home-furnishing
applications.

Divisional overview

Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals

Pigments & Additives

— Textile — Loating
- Leather — Plastic
—~ Paper — Printing
- Specialties
Profile Profile

The division is one of the world’s leading sup-
pliers of specialty chemicals and dyes for the
textile, leather and paperindustries. Textile dyes
include dispersion, reactive, acid and sulfur
dyes. The Textile Business encompasses spe-
cial chemicals for pretreatment, dyeing, print-
ing and finishing of textiles. Optical brighteners
and chemicals for functional treatment are also
partofthe range. The Paper Business supplies
paper dyes, optical brighteners and process
and pulping chemicals. The Leather Business
produces chemicals for refining. lIts offering
includes all chemicals for finishing and dyeing
as well as a complete range of wet-end chem-
icals.

The division develops and produces pigments
for paints and lacquers, for plastics and for spe-
cial applications. The product range includes
high-performance pigments to meet the exact-
ing demands of the automotive and electron-
ics industries. Printing pigments are supplied
to the printing ink industry and, increasingly,
for nonimpact printing, ink jet and laser print-
ing. The core business also includes additives
to improve heat resistance as well as light
and weather resistance of plastics and paints.
Halogen-free flame retardants are used in pro-
tective coatings, resins, thermoplastics and
polyester fibers. The division's portfolio also
includes high-quality waxes based on various
raw materials.

Markets

Clothing, home textiles, technical textiles, gar-
ment leather, automotive leather, paper, pack-
aging, construction

Markets
Paints, lacquers, coatings, plastics, automotive
industry

Products and Services

UV absorbers, fluorochemicals, paper dyes
(Cartasol®), disperse dyes (Foran®), reactive
dyes (Drimarene®), optical brighteners, and
water, oil and dirt-repellent equipment

Products and Services

Hostaperm® pigments, PV Fast®, Graphtol®,
Novoperm® pigments, Reflex Blue® grades,
Exolit®, Ceridust® Licocene® DPP pigments,
aluminum paints




Based on decades of ex-
perience in the develop-
ment and manufacture
of pigments and dyes,
Clariant has introduced
innovative products for
ink-jet ink markets.

Clariant has an extensive
product portfolic for a
broad range of cosmetic
formulations: for soap,
shampoo, shower and
bath, toothpaste, lipstick,
nail varnish and various
other cosmetic uses.

Functional Chemicals
— Detergents

- Performance Chemicals
— Process Chemicals

Life Science Chemicais
~ Speciality Fine Chemicals
— Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals

Masterbatches
— Europe Narth - Asia
— Europe West — North America

— Europe South — Latin America

Special Markets
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Profile

The division’s products are based on surfac-
tants and polymers. The Detergents Business,
which offers anionic and cationic surfactants,
as well as bleach activators, is a partner to the
detergent industry. Performance Chemicals
supplies such different industries as personal
care products, crop protection, paints, lacquers
and plastics. The Process Chemicals Business
markets products and services for the produc-
tion and refining of oil and natural gas and for
metal-working, mining and the aerospace and
automotive industry.

Profile

The Pharmaceutical Fine Chemicals Business
is a service partner for the launch of new
drugs and supplies customer-specific late-
stage intermediates with a high degree of
synthesis, patented active ingredients and
around 30 different generic active substances.
Specialty Fine Chemicals covers a wide range
of industrial applications with its silane deriva-
tives, glyoxalic acid derivatives and diketene-
based chemicals. It also supplies precursors
and active ingredients for crop protection
agents.

Profile

The division supplies color and additive con-
centrates and special mixtures of these com-
ponents. The combination of a worldwide pres-
ence and strong local partnerships makes
Clariant a preferred supplier for plastics pro-
cessors and the textile industry. At the local
level, each of the division’s 54 production plants
provides a complete technical service for all
products and applications.

Markets

Detergents, rinses and cleaners, personal care
products, aerospace, automotive and machine
tools, crop protection, paints and lacquers,
plastics, construction, oil and gas extraction,
mining, pharmaceutical industry, chemical in-
dustry

Products and Services

Anionic, nonionic and cationic surfactants
(Genapol®, Hostapur SAS®, Emulsogen®, Pra-
pagen®, Genamin®), polymers and preserva-
tives, Safewing®, Safeway®, Dodiflow®, Per-
active®

Markets

Pharmaceutical and agrochemical industry, in-
dustries such as coatings, plastics, fragrances
and flavorings

Products and Services

Pharmaceutical and agrochemical active ingre-
dients, precursors, building blocks, Life Sci-
ence Molecule Synthesis Center

Markets

Automotive, textile and technical fibers, elec-
tronic and electrical devices, home appliances,
toys, medical devices, sporting goods, pack-
aging

Products and Services
Cesa®, Hydrocerol®, Remafin®, Renol®, Omni-
color®, ColorWorks™

)
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Clariant specifically aligns its research and development
with market requirements. Emphasis is placed on providing
enhancements for existing applications and optimizing
manufacturing methods and processes. At the same time,
product and service innovations open up new business

areas and markets.

Innovative products, services, and processes
are the key to making Clariant future-proof. In
financial year 2005, the Group therefore spent
CHF 218 million on research and development.
This is equivalent to 2.7% of sales in the same
period.

Clariant will in future keep investment at an
appropriate level so thatit can continue to safe-
guard the company's ability to innovate. The
1500 employees working in research and de-
velopment worldwide are key drivers of inno-
vation within the company.

Innovations that meet market requirements
At Clariant, research and development is de-
centralized and carried out in the Businesses.
This proximity to the market makes it possible
to identify customer needs at an early stage
and focus research and development projects
on market requirements.

The Businesses prioritize projects onthe basis
of their prospects of success and assume full
responsibility for their implementation, enabling
Clariant to quickly develop innovative, commer-
cially successful products and services and
expleoit market potential in a targeted manner

Decentralized responsibility and

centralized support are the neces-
sary ingredients for market focus
and a fust pace of innovation.

manner. Systematic and extensive patent pro-
tectionthen affords long-term protection against
third parties.
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Although the development of completely new
business areas and technology platforms offers
attractive opportunities for growth, it usually
involves particular risks. Therefore, where proj-
ects are of interest to more than one Busi-
ness, the Group Function Technology assists
with project management and provides start-
up financing. The operational implementation
of the projects, however, is again the responsi-
bility of the Businesses.

Group-wide knowledge management
Cross-divisional teams of excellence acceler-
ate the innovation process in cross technolo-
gies of particular strategic importance for the
Group.

Through targeted knowledge transfer, they
help to improve efficiency. For example, the
Catalysis and Upscaling teams improve the
efficiency of manufacturing processes, while
other teams increase development efficiency
in the strategic fields of coating and color
effects.

As well as successful research and develop-
ment, the company also requires competitive
core technologies and production processes
if itis to quickly translate innovations into prod-
ucts and services. Of key importance in this
context are cross-divisional centers of excel-
lence such as the Process Development Net-
work, or PDNet for short.

At Clariant, process engineering expertise is
decentralized and located in the individual
divisions. Although the five divisions mostly
work in completely different areas of chem-
istry, there is often technological averlap and
therefore a starting point for joint solutions.

The PDNet was set up so that the interdivi-
sional know-how transfer required for these
joint solutions would not be left to chance.
Experts from the divisions work together with-
in this global network and have an overview of
the technologies currently in use.

The Network mainly works on actual projects.
Investments in new production facilities ex-
ceeding around CHF 5 million - roughly EUR
3.25 million - require a review by the PDNet.
This review and the associated suggestions

Cross-divisional knowledge man-
agement increases cost-effective-
ness and accelerates the develop-
ment process.

for improvement made by the Network make
an important contribution towards implement-
ing development and investment projects fas-
ter and minimizing risk.

Developing new businesses

The New Business Development team, which
is assigned to the Group Function Technology,
was hoth systematic and successful in devel-
oping new businesses during the period under
review. Barrier coatings that are based on poly-
silazanes and nanomaterials and do not ad-
versely affect a material’s natural appearance
have been developed for a variety of substrates.

Polysilazanes form a protective, glass-like lay-
er on almost all substrates. Since this often
occurs at room temperature, they can be used
on a number of materials. The extremely thin
polysilazane-based coatings require little ma-
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terial and are suitable for a wide variety of ap-
plications. For example, barrier coatings pre-
vent the visors on motorcycle helmets from
steaming up, protect marble against acidity,
and make it easier to remove graffiti from rail-
road carriages.

Due to their dirt-repelling properties, the poly-
silazane-based coatings make it much easier
to clean carriages. Extensive field tests are
due to be completed soon. However, market-
able products incorporating this technology
are already available. These include AgTive™,
a coating that prevents tarnishing of silver.

Selected partnerships

Where subjects are of fundamental and stra-
tegic importance, Clariant regularly cooper-
ates with universities and scientific institu-
tions of international standing. Through these
cooperation arrangements, the Group Func-
tion Technology draws on external research
expertise with a view to developing new busi-
ness areas and technology platforms. The glob-
al network currently comprises around 80 in-
stitutions and universities.

At special trade fairs and conventions, Clariant
opens up new avenues by forging links with
young companies. The resulting partnerships

New Business Development is
successfully opening up new busi-
ness areas with applications of
polysilazane technology.

R&D ratio
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2003 {‘ : : Iﬁ
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ing of new and innovative applications combin-
ing Starfire’s polycarbosilane-based materials
with Clariant’s palysilazanes.

Since it was founded in 1998, Starfire Systems
has specialized in the development and pro-
duction of patented silicon carbide ceramic-
forming polymers. Silican carbide is a versa-
tile ceramic displaying extreme heat, corrosion,
and wear resistance. This type of ceramic com-
posite is in many respects superior to con-
ventional metal alloys.

The blue laser revolution

The first CDs managed to store 0.7 GB of information,
ten years later DVDs achieved 4.7 GB, and now, with the
arrival of blue laser technology, up to 100 GB of storage
capacity is possible. The driving force behind this insa-
tiable demand for memory is high-definition television,
or HDTV. A feature film in HDTV format exceeds the ca-
pacity of an ordinary DVD. The 2006 World Cup is ex-

pected to help the new technology take off, as all the

—in various areas of nanotechnology and pro-
cess technology, for example — are extremely
important when it comes to extending the
Clariant product and technology pertfolio.

Cooperation with Starfire. In the period under
review, Clariant entered into a partnership with
Starfire Systems Inc., Malta, N.Y., to expand the
strategic “Functional Coatings and Nanoma-
terials” technology platform. The alliance will
focus on the development and global market-
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Patent families
Around 130 new applications in 2005

The advantages of the motorcycle brakes de-
veloped by Starfire from nanostructured sili-
con carbide ceramics have already proven
their worth. They provide superiar perfor-
mance and durability at just a quarter of the
weight of comparable metal brakes. They are
also safer since the frictional heat caused by
applying the brakes increases the braking
effect rather than reducing it, as is the case
with conventional metal brakes.

matches will be broadcast in high definition. Writable
disks incorporate a special layer of dye onto which
the recording is burned by means of a laser. Clariant
achieved a breakthrough with Optofast® in 2005, This
organic dye was developed in coliaboration with To-

shiba for writable HD DVDs that will have 15 or 30 GB

of memory.




A commitment to the environment and safety reflects the
focus on sustainability in everything Clariant does.

The risks involved are constantly monitored. Furthermore,
regular internal and external audits act as an independent
check on compliance with laws and guidelines.

Commitment to sustainability

Mandatory principles on Environment, Safety
& Health — ESH ~ are laid down in the group’s
ESH guidelines. They form an integral part of
business processes and strategic planning at
Clariant.

Group Environment, Safety & Health Affairs —
ESHA — has built on the group's principles by
drawing up an ESH strategy and a set of guide-
lines and targets that are mandatory world-
wide, and by assigning responsibilities,

As well as complying with national laws and
guidelines, the ESH policy also fulfills the
goals of the “Business Charter for Sustainable
Development” defined by the International
Chamber of Commerce and the “"Responsible
Care” initiative of the chemical industry.

EU White Paper

Clariant continues to stand four-square behind
the objectives of REACH, the new European
chemicals legislation: the harmonization of

All activities of Corporate ESHA
have been brought together in the
Corporate Center in Muttenz.

taws throughout Europe, and better protection
of consumers and the environment. But even
after the compromises achieved in 2005, pro-
posals for its implementation are still heading
in the wrong direction.

The EU Commission’s proposal is for data re-
quirements to depend on the volume of the
substance produced or imported, rather than
its risk potential. Furthermore the registration
procedure remains complicated, invelving an
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enormous amount of bureaucracy. Itis an ob-
stacle to innovation and jeopardizes the know-
how that is crucial to corporate survival. The
ultimate outcome will be to drive out not the
most dangerous substances, but those with
the highest testing and registration costs. Fi-
nally the exacting requirements of REACH will
put producers in the European Union at a seri-
ous disadvantage vis-a-vis importers, who are
not under the same obligations. Further im-
provementis needed.

Centralization of the organization

At the beginning of 2005, in line with the new
Operating Model, Corporate ESHA was brought
together in the Corporate Center. At the same
time individual areas of responsibility were
expanded and centralized. The centralization
of the audit function, the risk portfolio, acci-
dent statistics and prevention and emergency
management takes the pressure off the divi-
sions, streamlines processes and harmonizes
the analysis of environmental data.

Effective control mechanisms

The ESH managers for the individual sites and
the group have at their disposal a number of
effective and easy-to-use mechanisms and con-
trals with which to implement the guidelines.
They are defined centrally, standardized glob-
ally and adapted continually with ESH mea-
sures ensuring effective monitoring of risks.
Damage potential and liability risks are prompt-
ly identified and can thus be monitored to pre-
vent escalation.

Operational risks are identified with the assis-
tance of a software-supported risk portfalio.
This gives indications for the most effective
use of available resources, thus making it pos-
sible to define priorities for preventive mea-
sures and to monitor implementation.

Resource consumption, emissions, waste man-
agement and occupational safety are moni-
tored at all facilities according to 40 key indi-
cators, which are then evaluated centrally.
The data collected is compared against inter-
nal and external benchmarks. This makes it
possible to measure success and to detect
and eliminate weaknesses along with their
possible causes.

Regular internal and external audits ensure in-
dependent monitoring of compliance with laws
and guidelines. With their wealth of experi-
ence spanning the different sites, the auditors
also support the exchange of skills throughout
the group.

Since 2005 this proven system of regular ESHA
audits has been centralized and standardized.
Group lead auditors audit facilities jointly with
experts from the relevant specialist areas and
countries.

Integrated product policy

For Clariant, integrated product policy means
the inclusion of environmental and safety is-
sues in all processes along the entire value
chain. Even at the stage of supplier selection,
price and quality are not the only criteria: a
special appraisal mechanism is used to assess
suppliers’ compliance with ESH requirements.
At the same time, Clariant provides its custo-
mers with comprehensive information and ser-
vices to ensure that its products are used in
ways that are safe and not harmful to the envi-
ronment, and that they can be properly dis-
posed of.
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Efficient emergency management

Clariant has a global incident-reporting and
emergency-management system. All informa-
tion concerning products, processes, tech-
nologies and the necessary emergency mea-
sures can be retrieved whenever the need
arises. Incidents are reported to the group
without delay, triggering an emergency proce-
dure structured around various levels. This
procedure is tested repeatedly in extensive
drills at all three levels — local, national and

group.

Constant improvement

Resource consumption and pollutant emissions
were further reduced in 2005. In particular,
Clariant brought about a significant reduction
in emissions of organic compounds as a result
of projects such as those described below. In
2005, specific energy consumption was at the
previous year's low level. A program of priority
projects has been designed to bring about fur-
ther improvements.

Clariant invests considerable sums in safety
and environmental protection every year. The
2005 investment of around CHF 38 million fell
just short of the previous year’s level. The main
reason was the completion of certain major
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projects. Moreover, Clariant now builds envi-
ronmental protection into the product develop-
ment stage and the roll-out of new processes
and products.

Improvements to existing plant always try to
get atthe root of the problem and not merely to
combat symptoms. As a result, the improve-
ments take many different forms.

Resende, Brazil. When effluent from the pro-
duction of textile dyes is cleaned, standard
processes are not always enough to remove
from the water all traces of the compounds

Clariant focuses on environmental
and safety factors along the entire
value chain.

that create intensive colors. Even tiny quanti-
ties of dyes discolor the water emerging from
the treatment process even though the water
is chemically and biologicalty pure.

In the quest for a pragmatic and efficient solu-
tion to this problem, the Resende works in
Brazil — with a team of international experts —
may have achieved a decisive advance. In a
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' These figures had notyet been finalized as we
went to press. Definitive figures are avaible at
www.esha.clariant.com

pilot plant the effluent was subjected to an
additional cleansing stage in an oxygen-free
atmosphere, reducing the coloration by 70%. If
it proves possible to refine this process, Clariant
will apply it worldwide.

Muttenz, Switzerland. At the beginning of 2006
emergency management, which was previ-
ously divided between two sites, was brought
together at Clariant’s head office in Muttenz.
Sulzbach in Germany used to have a team for
production and transport emergencies, while
Muttenz had another for emergencies in the
field of finance, IT security and product liabili-
ty. As all group-level management functions
were transferred to Muttenz in 2005, these two
teams were amalgamated to form a single new
emergency organization. A new emergency
control center was created, with all the requi-
site technical equipment.

Lamotte, France. The production process for
glyoxal and glyoxalic acid at the Lamotte facil-
ity is based on the axidation of nitric acid. The
acid is converted into dinitrogen monoxide,
N20, better known as nitrous oxide or laughing
gas, and nitrogen monoxide, NO. Most of the
nitrogen monoxide NO is then converted back
to nitric acid and recycled.
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Increased output — reduced emissions

Optimizing products and processes, using energy and
resources efficiently, minimizing waste and disposing of
it safely — Clariant strives constantly to improve all as-
pects of ESH management.

The Gendorf plant in Germany, for example, implement-
ed systematic measures that resulted in significant
improvements in its environmental performance. At the

end of 2005, Gendorf dthes ful comple-

tion of a project aimed at substantially reducing organ-

ic emissions into the atmosphere. The project included

A tow percentage of N.O used to escape into
the atmosphere. Nz20 is a highly active green-
house gas, and since the mid-1990s Clariant

With significant investments in
safety, health and the environment,
Clariant is making an important
contribution to sustainable de-
velopment.

has been working hard on a process to mini-
mize its emission. In 2002 a new exhaust air
scrubber was commissioned: it uses a cata-
lystto convert 90% of the N:0 contained in the
exhaust air to oxygen and nitrogen, which are
the two main components of the atmosphere.
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closing down cooling towers and replacing them with a
secondary cooling system. Although the new process
results in bigger quantities of slightly contaminated
wastewater, this is easily treated at the Gendorf purifi-
cation plant,

The Gendorf site had a very successful year in 2005,
boosting production by 8%. Even though output rose,
C0: emissions fell by 2%. There are two reasons for this.
On the one hand, a plant that manufactures technical

auxiliaries is now able to utilize an important raw ma-

One problem remained. Since the cleansing
process takes place at high temperatures, the
nitrogen monoxide present in the exhaust air
in trace amounts is converted into brown
nitrogen dioxide gas, NO2. The gas ~ visible in
the exhaust air from the chimney — is partly
responsible for acid rain. In October 2005
Clariant accordingly put a second exhaust air
scrubber into operation: using a different cat-
alyst, this drastically reduces the guantity of
NQzin the exhaust air.

Clariant has invested a total of more than
EUR 4 million in exhaust-air cleansing in La-
motte, thus making an important contribution
to the improvement of environmental condi-
tions.

terial in a purer form, which markedly improves energy
usage during the process concerned.

Secondly, a new burner has been installed at another
production facility. This uses a new kind of heat carrier,
is easier to regulate and results in a striking reduction
in nitrous oxide. At the sams time, significantly lower
steam consumption also cuts the factory’s energy re-

quirement by a considerable amount.




Due to the new group structure, 350 managers were relo-
cated and brought together at the head office in Muttenz.
The year under review also saw the introduction of various
programs for senior technical and managerial staff training.

Number of staff
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New group structure

On January 1, 2005, the new group structure
came into effect. Prior to its introduction,
Clariant needed to fill a number of newly cre-
ated and adapted management positions. In
the same context, it also relocated 350 man-
agers from various countries, bringing them
together at the head office in Switzerland and
thus restructuring the Corporate Center in the
second half of the year.

Socially responsible layoff schemes

In the year under review, the group’s number
of staff fell by 1386, from 24 769 on December
31,2004 to 23 383 at the end of 2005. The sale

Clariant supports the fundamental
principles of the International
Labor Organization.

of the acetyl building blocks business (CABB),
natural attrition, and extensive measures aimed
at realigning the company and improving its
efficiency all contributed to this fall.

In connection with the unavoidable layoffs link-
ed to the restructuring, Clariant established
socially responsible plans in all countries affec-
ted with the aim of creating suitable condi-
tions for the layoffs in a local context.

Breakdown by regions
thousands
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The cost reduction program will lead to a fur-
ther drop in headcount in 2006.

Focus on employee development

The individual development of senior techni-
cal and managerial staff ptays an important
role at Clariant. Through a broad range of train-
ing programs, it equips employees with state-
of-the-art expertise and builds basic manage-
rial skills.

In the year under review, the Regional Man-
agement Program, RMP, developed in coopera-
tion with the University of Sankt Gallen, Swit-
zerland, and the Ross School of Business at
the University of Michigan in the United States
was extended to Europe. The program closes
the gap between the training programs avail-
able to those just starting a career and the
programs for senior management. At the same
time, it reflects the cultural and business as-
pects peculiar to each of the countries in ques-
tion.

In 2005, Clariant also developed a new Execu-
tive Development Program for senior manage-
ment together with the University of Sankt
Gallen. This familiarizes Clariant's top man-
agers with new and effective management
tools. Unlike conventional management pro-
grams, however, it does not focus on theoret-
ical models and abstract situations. Instead,
participants analyze and solve complex proh-
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lems affecting all divisions within their own
company. Termed “action learning,” this not
only leads to new management know-how,
but also delivers up-to-date results that can be
immediately applied in tackling real challenges.

Results-driven remuneration

The new Clariant Executive Bonus Plan came
into effect in early 2005 after the former plans
providing the performance-related component

“Action learning” delivers effec-
tive management tools and sup-
plies practical results.

of certain managers’ remuneration were Sus-
pended in 2003 and 2004 due to the company’s
financial situation. These plans were replaced
with a retroactive payout fixed at 50% of the
target value.

The new Bonus Plan takes account of the com-
pany’s new management structures and is able
to respond quickly to its current situation, as
the total amount paid out is geared to the fi-
nancial results achieved by the group as a
whole. The performance of the separate divi-
sions and functions determines the distribution
of the overall bonus payment. For details please
refer to note 29 of the financial statements.
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approved the four fundamental principles of
the International Labor Organization, ILO, Prac-
tices that have been implemented for years
across all business processes are therefore
being set down in writing in the company’s
Code of Conduct.

Skills management

and Rights at Work. They have determined

the ILO’s self-image and actions since it was

founded.

o Freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right to collective bar-
gaining

o The elimination of all forms of forced or
compulsory labar

o The effective abolition of child labor

o The elimination of discrimination in respect
of employment and occupation

anywhere in the world

Hans Gruler knows how crucial it is to have the right
skills in the right place at the right time. In 2005, the
foreman of the Griesheim factory brought a new plantin
Roha, India, into commission on behalf of Clariant. In
order to contend with price pressure from Asia and high
production costs in Germany, an intermediate for crop
protection agents is now being manufactured there for
the agrochemical and pharmaceutical sectors. The for-
mer plant in Griesheim, Germany, is being converted for
the manufacture of higher-margin products.

Gruler supported his Indian colleagues during the build-
ing of the multifunctional plant in Roha, and brought it

into commission an schedule following thorough test-

ing. "The plant is producing top gquality goods,” says
Gruler proudly. Mot without reasan, since the Indian

planning engineer and his plant manager were trained

at Clariant in Germany before the piant was built. What

audits. Any viclation of the principles will have
major consequences for those responsible,

Group Sourcing, the Clariant unit responsible
for procurement, has draw up measures to en-
sure that suppliers also respect the ILO's prin-
ciples.

about the staff in Griesheim? Their wide range of skills
means that the German employees are flexible and can
readily be deployed on other tasks — the best foundation

for their new role.
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Risk management

Sustainable growth

As a global specialty chemicals company, Clariant is
exposed to various general and sector-specific risks.

It is absolutely essential, therefore, to thoroughly analyze
possible risks and assess their manageability before

any important company decisions are made.

Management systems

At Clariant, risk management is hased on a cen-
tral risk management system that distinguish-
es between strategic and operational risks.
Strategic risks affect the success of the com-
pany’s strategy and are usually very complex
and difficult to quantify. Their evaluation is the
responsibility of the Board of Management.

Operational risks, on the other hand, can be
clearly assigned to an operating unit. In the
period under review, Clariant introduced a for-
mal procedure that allocates material opera-
tional risks to what is termed a risk owner. This
risk owner is supported by a risk sponsor from
the Board of Management. The risk owners

Relevant risks are allocated to
“risk owners”, who in turn are
supported by a “risk sponsor”.

report on a quarterly basis to the Risk Man-
agement Steering Committee, which consists
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Cor-
porate Development, and the Head of Legal.

The central risk management system there-
fore supplements the specific risk evaluations
carried out by functions such as audit, Trea-
sury, ESH, legal, and insurance management.
In the course of internal and external audits,
all elements of risk management are checked
on an ongoing basis and optimized as and
when necessary.

Furthermore, monthly internal reports on the
company's financial situation make it possible
to promptly identify risks arising from current
business activities and introduce appropriate

countermeasures. Accounting and Contralling
therefore adapt their reporting systems to
changing conditions on a regular basis.

Product and environmental risks

To protect it against risks arising from product
liability, the company makes reserves or con-
cludes insurance policies. Additional security
comes from credit lines from banks and liquid-
ity reserves. Potential inherited liabilities aris-
ing from acquisitions or spin-offs are limited
through contractual agreements whenever pos-
sible.

in order to minimize possible risks for the
environment, safety, and health, the relevant
parameters from all the company’s sites are
analyzed centrally. You can find further infor-
mation on this subject on page 26.

Financial risks

Based on the directives issued by the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management, the
Treasury department records, monitors, and
manages financial risks by means of a com-
prehensive analysis and evaluation system.
The financial instruments used are simple and
can be evaluated at any time.

International exchange rate fluctuations im-
pact on the company’s assets and earnings,
which are reported in Swiss francs. Transac-
tion risks arise from imbalances in the pay-
ment streams between the various curren-
cies. Clariant partly hedges these risks by
means of options, spot transactions, or for-
ward transactions.

In contrast, Clariant addresses translation
risks by adopting a business behavior geared
ta defensible exchange rates. The aim is “nat-
ural” hedging.

Clariant manages the risks associated with
changes in interest rates primarily by main-
taining the right balance between fixed and
variable interest rates and their maturities.
The exchange rates of liabilities are carefully
managed.

The company invests on the international finan-
cial markets in order to manage its liquid as-
sets. Cash reserves are invested with first-
class banks.

Current and future cash flows are carefully
monitored. Imbalances can be offset at any
time thraugh cash reserves, realizable securi-
ties, and credit lines from the company’s banks.

Litigation

The outcome of litigation in matters of tax law,
patent law, product liability, competition and
cartel law, or environmental protection cannot
always be predicted and therefore poses a
risk. In this context, too, insurance policies,
liguidity reserves, and credit lines limit the risk
for the company.

IT risks

Business-critical software is operated in a
central computer center with twa physically
separated server parks. The company’s global
network is managed centrally, and its archi-
tecture is parallel to deal with failures or
breakdowns. Reliable and permanently updat-
ed tools guard against virus attacks. Emer-
gency procedures are practiced on a regular
basis.
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Meeting needs

Focused on its customers.
Anticipating their needs.
Developing innovative
services and sclutions.
Lending end products value-
enhancing properties.

And playing a key role in
their manufacture too.

Simply satisfying its cus-

tomers in every way.

And growing as a result.

That is Clariant — commit-

ted to the customer.
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The global economy continued to grow across all main
regions albeit at a slower pace than in 2004. Europe’s
economic development continued at a moderate rate.

US growth slowed towards the end of 2005, due in a large
part to the effects of severe hurricanes. China’s economic
growth remained strong throughout the year.

Sales by region
Total 2005: CHF 8 181 mn

22% Asia/Africa/Australia

CHF 1801 mn j

28% Americas
CHF 2269 mn

50% Europe
CHF 4111 mn

Economic environment

Global geopolitical and political risks remained
prevalent amid a dynamic environment, putt-
ing pressure on commodity prices. Therefore
raw material and energy prices were higher in
2005 compared with the last quarter and with
the full-year 2004. 0il and gas prices rose to an
ali-time peak in the third quarter of 2005.

Currency trends

Major currencies such as the eurp and US dol-
lar remained stable compared to the average
exchange rates for the twelve months of 2004.
However, the pound sterling and the Japanese
yen depreciated against the Swiss franc. Ex-
change rate fluctuations were maost pro-
nounced in the fourth quarter: Compared to

Compared to 2004 major curren-
cies such as the euro and US dollar
remained stable.

the average exchange rates of the fourth quar-
ter 2004 nearly all currencies {with the excep-
tion of the Japanese yen), including the euro,
the pound and the US dollar, appreciated
against the Swiss franc.
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Sales by region

Europe. European sales accounted for 50% of
total group revenues for the full-year 2005.
Sales decreasedinlocal currency and in Swiss
franc terms by 1%. The picture was mixed on a
country basis. Within Europe, salesin Italy and
in Eastern Europe increased in local currency
terms and in Swiss franc terms in the full-year
2005, while sales in Germany in the fourth
guarter were 3% lower both in local currency
terms and in Swiss franc terms, influenced by
the divestment of CABB. For the full-year 2005,
sales in the UK and Spain were also lower than
in the previous year both in local currency
terms and in Swiss franc terms.

Americas. Group companies’ sales inthe Ameri-
cas contributed 28% of group revenue for the
full-year 2005. Sales fell by 2% in local curren-
cy terms and increased by 4% in Swiss franc
terms. In the United States, sales increased
strongly in the fourth guarter of 2005 by 6% in
local currency terms and by 15% in Swiss franc
terms, The full-year sales decrease of 3% in
local currency terms and of 2% in Swiss franc
terms was due mainly to adverse trends in the
pharmaceutical and textile dyes sectors, while

the hurricane impact was well managed, show-
ing positive results in the fourth quarter in the
United States. Within Latin America, sales in
Argentina and Mexico increased strongly in the

In the United States, sales increas-
ed strongly in the fourth quarter
of 2005 by 6% in local currency
and by 15% in Swiss franc terms.

twelve manths of 2005 both in local currency
and in Swiss franc terms, whereas Brazil
showed a negative sales development in local
currency terms mainly due to the stronger
Brazilian real,

Asia, Africa, Australia. In the full-year 2005
group companies’ sales in Asia, Australia and
Africa accounted for 22% of group sales.
Sales for the 12 months of 2005 remained flat
both in local currency and in Swiss franc
terms. While sales in Japan decreased, a posi-
tive sales trend for the full-year 2005 was
noticeable particularly in China, India, Paki-
stan and Indonesia.




Clariant posted modest growth on a like-for-like basis for

the full-year 2005, with sales totaling CHF 8 181 million.
Gross profit declined to CHF 2 416 million, mainly due to
the high costs of raw materials, energy and logistics.

Overview

Clariant posted modest growth on a like-for-like
basis for the full-year 2005, with sales totaling
CHF 8 181 million, up 1% in local currency terms
and 3% higher in Swiss franc terms. Selling
prices were increased on average by 1%.

On a like-for-like basis gross profit declined by
4.9% to CHF 2416 million, mainly due to the high
costs of raw materials, energy and logistics.
Operating income was 28% lower, at CHF 368
million, because of higher transformation pro-
gram costs than in the same period a year ear-
lier; this included an impairment charge in the
Pharmaceutical Business. The operating mar-
gin before exceptional items and amaortization
of goodwill declined to 6.3% from 7.6% a year
earlier. Netincome rose by 29% to CHF 192 mil-
lion, driven by currency gains and lower taxes.

The Clariant transformation program and the
associated series of performance improve-
ments are fully on track. Clariant reduced its
cost base for the year to around CHF 300 mil-
lion. As a part of the program, the company
took animpairment charge in the fourth quar-
ter of CHF 55 million in its Pharmaceutical
Business, as part of the transformation pro-
gram costs. Raw material prices and energy
costs, however, rose on average by 8% during
the period.

As announced in December, the company paid
back its syndicated term loans in advance.
This move simplified the company’s debt liabil-
ities, increased its issuing flexibility and signif-
icantly reduced the number of its bank lenders.
Retiring this debt early incurred total one-time
costs of CHF 30 million.

All divisions and most business lines pushed
through price increases. The Pigments & Addi-
tives and Functional Chemicals Divisions post-
ed good growth, while the Textiles, Leather &
Paper Division was flat. Life Science Chemi-
cals continued to face difficult market condi-
tions.

The year was highlighted by significant devel-
opments in Clariant’s focus on businesses
where service and innovation are key differen-
tiators in the market and where the most value
can be derived.

The company demaonstrated its ability to use
expertise in coloring and coating effects to
gain market-leading positions in several key

The Clariant transformation pro-
gram and the associated series of
performance improvements are
fully on track.

growth areas. Examples include the success-
ful market launches of halogen-free and envi-
ronmentally-friendly Exolit® flame retardants,
Licocene® waxes used in many tailor-made ap-
plications, liquid Texcare® detergents, and the
latest Masterbatches additives in the Cesa®
range, which add high-performance properties.

{nvestments were made in the area of coat-
ings and new materials using nanotechnology.
In the third quarter, the company signed a stra-
tegic cooperation agreement with the US group
Starfire Systems Inc. to produce nano-struc-
tured ceramics for the automotive, aviation and

electronics industries. Clariant also purchased
KiON Corporation, also of the United States,
which is the only company worldwide so far
that has commercialized the use of polysila-
zane as a precursor to ceramic composite ma-
terials.

As announced in November, the Board of Di-
rectors made three key leadership appoint-
ments, including designating Roland Lésser as
the new chairman and Jan Secher as the new
chief executive. Mr. Losser will assume his new
role following the Annual General Meeting
{AGM) on April 7, taking over from the current
chairman, Robert Raeber. Mr. Secher has been
a member of Clariant's Management Board
since January 1 and will become chief execut-
ive after the AGM.

Clariant’s Board of Directors will propose to
the Annual General Meeting on April 7 a payout
of CHF 0.25 per share through a reduction of
the par value of the shares from CHF 4.75 to
CHF 4.50.

Sales and operating result

Group sales from continuing operations for
the full-year 2005 were on last year's level in
Swiss francs and 1% lower in local currency
terms. In 2004, the businesses of Lancaster
Synthesis, part of the Life Science Chemicals
Division as well as Clariant Polymers K.K., part
of the Textile, Leather & Paper Division, were
sold. In 2005, Clariant Acetyl Building Blocks
(CABB), part of the Life Science Chemicals
Division, was sold. Under IFRS, the aforemen-
tioned businesses did not qualify for reporting
as discontinued operations, but are summing
up to a net effect of 2% for the year.

(8]
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Exchange rate shifts of major currencies
against the Swiss franc positively impacted
group sales for continuing operations year-on-
year. In 2005 the pricing climate continued to
improve, and almost all businesses achieved
price increases.

Gross margins fell in 2005 compared to 2004.
Higher sales prices and benefits of the Perfor-
mance Improvement Program (CPIP) were not
enough to offset the increase of approximate-
Iy 8% in raw material costs. Although pressure
on raw material prices eased during the last
months of the year, it was enough to have a
significantimpact on gross margins in the final
quarter. Raw material costs rose by a further
6% in the last quarter. Moreover, Clariant faced

Clariant reduced its cost base for
the year to around CHF 300 mil-
lion.

additional maintenance and production costs
in December as the company implemented a
new supply chain management system, result-
ing in temporary higher idle facility costs and
other one-time costs than in the same period
in 2004.

Selling, general and administrative costs on
a continuing basis were reduced by CHF 118
mitlion in absolute terms and as a percentage
of sales from 21.4% to 20.8% in 2005. This im-
provement was mainly due to the CPIP.

Research and development was streamlined,
leading to a cost saving of CHF 56 million com-
pared with 2004. This is mainly due to syner-
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. gies resulting from the merging of the Textile

Dyes and Textile Chemical operations.

Restructuring expenses and impairments
amounted to CHF 186 million. In addition to re-
structuring activities carried out in France,
Germany, the United Kingdem and the United
States, an assets impairment charge of CHF 55
million affected the Life Science Chemicals
Division in December.

The book gain on disposals for full-year 2005
amounted to CHF 40 million. It refers mainly to
a gain of CHF 28 million related to the sale of the
Clariant Acetyl Building Blocks (CABB) Busi-
ness, which had been part of the Life Science
Chemicals Division. In addition Clariant sold
its stake in the company “Fuchs do Brasil” re-
sulting in a gain of approximately CHF 10 million.

The financial result in 2005 came to CHF 98
million, which was CHF 135 million lower than
the figure for the same period in the previous
year, a significant decline. Interest expenses
declined from CHF 154 million to CHF 132 mil-
lion for the full year. Financial debt was further
reduced from CHF 2.9 billion in 2004 to CHF 1.7
billion in 2005, which had a positive effect on
the expenses.

Other financial income and expenses were
impacted by several positive effects. The main
drivers were the foreign exchange rate gains
owing to the general appreciation of foreign
currencies against the Swiss franc and partic-
ularly by the strengthening of US dollar versus
the Swiss franc (16% appreciation on a year-
on-year basis) and the euro. On the other hand,
financial expenses were impacted by excep-
tional costs of CHF 43 million in connection
with the early repayment of a total of CHF 964
million of syndicated term debt in December,
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which would ordinarily have matured between
2006 and 2009. Aiso in connection with the early
repayment of syndicated term debt in Decem-
ber a realized fair value gain of CHF 13 million

All divisions and most business
lines pushed through price increases.

was notified. However, as an investment grade
borrower, this cost will swiftly be recouped by
the lower interest rates that Clariant can now
command. As a result, the net costs for the
whole early repayment of syndicated term debt
amounted to CHF 30 million.

Tax expenses in 2005 benefited from the high
proportion of profits that Clariant generated in
low-taxed jurisdictions. Furthermore, substan-
tial foreign currency gains in low-taxed coun-
tries contributed to a reduction of the tax rate.
The operating performance combined with a
reduction in unutilized losses helped to fower
tax expenses in 2005 by 45% compared to the
prior year.

Net income attributable to equity holders rose
by 21% te CHF 184 million.

Balance sheet key figures

The 2004 balance sheet was restated to reflect
the changes from IFRS, which took effect Jan-
uary 1, 2005. All developments commented
hereafter refer to the restated balance sheet.

Total assets fell from CHF 8 100 million in 2004
to CHF 7 324 million in 2005. This is mainly due
to repayment of financial debts. Net working
capital increased moderately, influenced by
seasonal effects, higher raw material prices
and the weakening of the Swiss franc against




most currencies in the reporting period. These
effects were offset by the payback of financial
debt.

Cash, cash equivalents and financial liabili-
ties decreased as a result of the repayment of
a bond in the amount of CHF 201 million in
March, a loan denominated in Japanese yen
in the amount of CHF 78 million in June, anoth-
er loan denominated in US dollars in the amount
of CHF 286 million in July and a total of CHF
964 million syndicated term loans in December.

Equity was affected positively by currency
trends during the reporting period, as the ex-
change rate differences recognized in equity
amounted to CHF 129 million. This was the
result of the Swiss franc weakening against
most currencies in 2005. The increase in equi-
ty was offset in part by the repayment of the
parvalue of share capital in the amount of CHF
58 million in June. As approved at the Annual
General Meeting, instead of the payment of a
cash dividend, a repayment of the par value of
CHF 0.25 of each registered share by a par val-
ue reduction from CHF 5.00 to CHF 4.75 was
made. Equity rose from CHF 2314 million at the
end of 2004 to CHF 2 531 million at the end of
2005.

Net debt as of December 31, 2005 stood at CHF
1 508 million, up from CHF 1 331 million on De-
cember 31, 2004, partly as a result of currency
fluctuations. Financial debt denominated in US
dollars, euros and Japanese yen has increased
as a result of the strengthening of these cur-
rencies. On September 30, 2005, net debt stood
at CHF 1432 million.

Gearing — net financial debt as a ratio of equi-
ty capital including minorities —was 58% atthe
end of 2005, unchanged from 2004. The calcu-
lation of gearing includes financial debts, cash
and cash equivalents as well as short-term
financial deposits with a maturity of more than
90 days. These are reported under “Other cur-
rent assets” and amounted to CHF 5 million at
the end of 2005, compared to CHF 87 million at
the end of 2004.

Cash Flow

The operating cash flow statement for the re-
porting period is marked by a slight growth in
working capital. Inventories and trade receiv-
ables increased by CHF 137 million and CHF
6 million respectively in 2005.

Disposals consisting mainly of the sale of sub-
sidiaries and associates helped cash flow from
investing activities with proceeds in the amount
of CHF 71 million.

In financing activities CHF 1772 million was
used for the repayment of current and noncur-
rent financial debts. The bulk of this was the
early repayment of bank loans in the amount of

The Board of Directors proposes
a reduction in the par value of the
shares by the amount of CHF 0.25
per registered share.

CHF 964 miltion. This repayment was financed
in part by increased borrowings of around
CHF 600 million and in part by the reduction of
cash and cash equivalents in the amount of
about CHF 1200 million.

During 2005, CHF 0.25 for each registered share,
or a total of CHF 58 million, was paid out as a
share capital reduction.

Bringing all effects together, during 2005 cash
generated from operating activities amounted
to CHF 209 million (2004: CHF 819 million); the
cash outflow due to the investing activities
was CHF 250 million {2004; cash inflow of CHF
128 million); and the cash outflow due to the
financing activities was CHF 1 229 million
{2004: CHF 386 million).

Earnings per share

The total number of shares was 230 160 000 at
the end of 2005. Of the total number of shares,
226 292 707 were circulating at year-end and
the remaining 3 867 293 were treasury stock.

The average number of outstanding shares
used to calculate earnings per share was thus
226 431 732, compared to 210 586 810 for the
prior year.

Earnings per share amounted to CHF 0.81
compared to CHF 0.72 for 2004.

Reduction in par value

The Board of Directors proposes a reduction
in the par value of the shares by the amount of
CHF 0.25 per registered share. The total sum
earmarked for capital reduction thus comes to
CHF 57.5 million or 30.0% of the net income of
the Group.

Sale of subsidiaries and associates

In July 2005 Clariant sold its subsidiary Clariant
(Acetyl Building Blocks) GmbH & Ce. KG to the
Gilde buy-out fund. In December 2005 the Group
also sald its 39% stake in the associate Fuchs
do Brasil to Fuchs Petrolub AG.

37




Sales of the Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals Division
dropped in local currencies by 2% vear on year. This trans-
lates into unchanged sales in Swiss franc terms. EBITDA!
came to CHF 244 million, equating to a margin of 11.1%.
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Business performance

Sales in Paper increased in local currency
terms, while Textile and Leather posted nega-
tive growth. Price increases were achieved in
most markets, compensating in part for the
negative volume impact occurring mainly in
the leather business. The main reason for the
lower margins compared to a year earlier was
the significantincrease in raw material prices,
only part of which was passed on to cus-
tomers. The EBITDA margin before exception-
als improved significantly in the fourth quar-
ter, driven by the continued implementation of
restructuring measures.

Active replacement of commodity business by
functional textiles supported the new strate-
gic direction in the Textile Business. New prod-
ucts in the area of dyeing auxiliaries, specialty
dyes and finishing were launched successful-
ly. For the whole industry, the increased im-
portance of retailers and prominent brand own-
ers was notable. Clariant successfully forged
closer links with retailers, offering total solu-
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tion packages and application know-how in
high-end segments. The positive development
in the finishing products businesses contin-
ued. The strongest growth was achieved with
polymer dispersions because higher raw ma-
terial prices were passed an to customers.
Textile dyes was able to cushion the negative

The EBITDA margin before excep-
tionals improved significantly in
the fourth quarter.

trend in the past by focusing on a range with
specialties. From a regional perspective, spe-
cial markets experienced double-digit growth
in local currencies, followed by Latin America
and Asia. In contrast, Europe and NAFTA were
faced with declining demand.

The overall global market for the Leather Busi-
ness was weaker compared to a strong 2004
but showed signs of a recovery in the fourth
guarter. China in particular saw a decline in
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activity after several years of strong growth,
The furniture upholstery market was flat due
to saturation. However, a positive trend was
seen in the automotive sector and shoe-up-
pers. Compared to the same period last year,
volumes dropped, whereas prices were in-
creased. Several chemicals used to upgrade
lower-quality leather were successfully launch-
ed on the market.

The Paper Business was able to further
strengthen its leading position in optical bright-
gners. Strong volume growth was driven by
the increased brightness standards for paper
in the United States and by several new prod-
uct launches in Asia. However, margins were
under pressure due to significant increases in
raw material prices. Surface and coating chem-
icals experienced strong growth supported by
new coating projects. Dyes in general de-
clined, but the demand in the packaging seg-
ment increased. Double-digit growth in the
United States, Asia and special markets mare
than offset stagnating demand in Europe.




an

A vision in leather

As one of the leading suppliers of chemicals for the
leather industry, Clariant is very familiar with the ever
more sophisticated requirements of customers in the
clothing, furniture and automotive sectors. Where leather
is concerned, the main quality factors are color, ap-
pearance, natural feel, functionality and resilience. At
the same time, product life cycles are becoming ever
shorter and price pressure ever greater. In order to tulfil
the growing needs of the market, Clariant places great
emphasis on high flexihility, constant process optimi-
zation and targeted innovation.

Significantly shorter product life cycles necessitate
increasingly rapid innovation cycles in areas such as

finishing. Meanwhile there is a clear trend towards

high-tech and fashion leathers. With its new Melio®
Coater Technology Clariant has succeeded in develop-
ing a solvent-free transfer coating technology for sur-
face finishing.

Targeted process optimization in the dyestuffs range
also resulted in cheaper alternatives. These alternatives
have the potential to counteract the continuing strong
price pressure.

These two examples illustrate how Clariant's leather
specialists satisfy changing customer requirements by

ptoducing innovative products and processes in a pur-

poseful, innovative and yst logically r ibl

p

manner.

Clariant’s unique expertise resuits in the
creation of top quality, premium leather
goods of timeless beauty. Fashionable,
luxurions or elegant — the requirements of
the leather industry are as varied as those
of the consumers themselves.

Clariant does more than just react to current market
demands. The company is increasingly working to cre-
ate new styles itself, and to influence market trends. It
has therefore set up its own fashion team, composed of
designers, trend researchers and leather technicians.
This means that Clariant already knows what wiil be in
demand tomorrow ~ a real competitive advantage, both
for Clariant and for our customers in the leather process-

ing industry.




The Pigments & Additives Division lifted its sales in local
currencies by 2% vyear on vear. This translates into a

3% sales increase in Swiss franc terms. EBITDA' came

to CHF 245 million, equating to a margin of 13%.
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Business performance

In a stable but challenging pricing climate, vol-
umes developed positively and the Pigments
& Additives Division reported higher sales in
local currency terms and in Swiss francs com-
pared to a year earlier. This trend was driven
mainly by robust demand in the plastics and
specialty industries where the demand for col-
orants slowed down, while the demand for
additives and intermediates remained strong.
Higher raw material prices were the main rea-
son for the lower margins, and the price rises
could not be offset by higher volumes. The
EBITDA margin before exceptionals was also
negatively impacted by lower capacity utiliza-
tionin December. Additional costs, as the Divi-
sion switched to new IT processes in Europe,
were the main cause of this Division’s lower-
than-expected profitability.

The business environment for the Coating In-
dustry Business remained difficult, resulting
in weaker sales compared with the same pe-
riod a year ago. In particular, demand for deco-
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rative coatings was hit by an early seasonal
downturn towards the end of 2005, and the
automotive industry failed to show any signifi-
cant signs of improvement either. As business
with several key accounts picked up, how-
ever, Clariant strengthened its position in key
markets. Higher raw material costs led to
modest price increases in the paintindustry.

Sales in the Printing Industry Business de-
clined mainly through a decline in volumes
compared to the previous year. Price pressure
from competitors especially in packaging and
special inks continued. Owing to proactive

The positive trend was driven
mainly by robust demand in the
plastics and specialty industries.

key account management and the global
availability of Clariant’s pigments, we retained
our position as key supplier. Markets for non-
impact printing were stable and developed as
planned.
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Products for the Plastics Industry Business
saw more buoyant demand, driven mainly by
additives. Price pressure on pigments from
Chinese sources continued in most of the bu-
siness, while commodity prices were still high.
Expansion into new regions began with the
successful pigment formulation of the Driz-
Pearls®range and new products such as Lico-
cene®and Hostanox® types. Initial market suc-
cess was reported with the recently launched
DPP red pigment.

The Specialties Business performed well
across the whole segment, with firm growth in
road construction and intermediates, particu-
farly of products for formulators and for the
processing industries. Strong demand for inter-
mediates continued. Demand for the new non-
halogenated flame-retardant range Exolit®
and for the new range of Licocene® waxes
grew appropriately. Revenue from new ser-
vice concepts and products for optical media
applications grew significantly.




Strong presence at the
European Coatings Show

In 2005 Clariant was again present at the European
Coatings Show, exhibiting its complete range of pig-
ments, additives and functional chemicals far the coat-
ing industry. A number of innovations were unveiled for
the first time under the slogan “Empower your coat-
ings.” The star of the show was Hostaperm® Red, a high-
performance DPP-based red pigment that has opened
up a whole new market for Clariant.

Visitors were impressed by Clariant's eye-catching
stand, as well as the new solutions and products on dis-

play. At every trade fair, the whole took and feel of the

Enpower
o contings

company's presentation reflects the brand image, in
line with a uniform concept adopted by all divisions
throughout the world, The “Clariant House" invites visi-
tors and customers to step into the world of Clariant.
This allows Clariantto manage its brand cost-effective-
ly while setting itself clearly apart from the competi-
tion. Communicating its brand values convincingly, nur-
turing relationships with its present customers and
attracting new clients — Clariant once again succeeded
in all these objectives at the European Coatings Show
2005,

Clariant builds up its markets in a systematic fashion. Its
brand presence at trade fairs is not just an exercise in sales
and marketing, hut alsa helps the company cuftivate its

image and business relationships.




The Functional Chemicals Division increased its sales in
local currencies by 4% vyear on year, which transiates into
a 3% growth rate in Swiss franc terms. EBITDA' came to
CHF 259 million, equating to a margin of 12.4%.
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Price increases and higher volumes for the
Functional Chemicals Division resulted in solid
growth in local currency terms. This positive
development was in evidence throughout all
regions and businesses. The higher sales pri-
ces failed to offset the negative impact from
substantially higher raw material and energy
casts, leading to a lower margin compared to
a year ago. Responding to high oil prices, all
crude-oil-based raw material prices rose sub-
stantially.

Raw material prices peaked at an all-time high
in the last quarter of 2005 for the Detergents
Business and were only partially passed an to
the customer. Firm demand and higher price
levels on the global market resulted in robust
growth. Further progress with major key ac-
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counts to develop color care additives Tex-
care®and otherlaundry additives was achieved.

A better pricing environment and growing vol-
umes led to an improved climate for the Per-
formance Chemicals Business compared with
the same period a year ago. The strongest busi-
ness growth was in evidence in Latin Amer-
ica, Europe and Asia due to increasing de-
mand for personal care raw materials and
construction chemicals. Formulation solutions
for crop protection performed well — as was
the case last year — because of continuing
demand, especially in the first half, for prod-
ucts to combat Asian rust in the Americas. In
this area, a new range of next-generation
environmentally friendly additives based on
renewable raw materials was launched. High-
er sales prices did not fully offset the higher
raw material costs.

At home in the oil business

The Functional Chemicals Division knows all there is to

know ahbout oil. As early in the life of a well as the drill-
ing stage, exploration chemicals from Clariant enable

the high-tech fluid called drilling mud to cool the drill-
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ing bit, lubricate the drill pipe and seal the walls of the
borehole so that no fluid can disappear into the reser-
voir,

In the borehole, the bit meets a viscous oil-water-gas
mixture from which the crude oil has to be extracted.
Since crude oils differ according to where they are
found, each oil requires its own specific treatment.
That's why specialists from Functional Chemicals trav-
el with their suitcase-sized test laboratories around the
world and determine, on site at the wellhead, which
combination of products is needed —~ made by Clariant,

of course.
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Products for the Process Chemicals Busi-
ness saw the strongest growth in the Divi-
sion. One of the main drivers was a strong
demand in oil field chemicals in all segments
of the oil business such as exploration, pro-
duction and refining. The metalworking and
the mining chemicals areas developed well.
With a good deicing season, the functional flu-
ids business performed well. Sales of ethyl-
ene glycol were not as strong as in 2004,
due to temporary raw material restrictions. A
minor negative impact from the hurricanes in
the United States was feltin the fourth quarter.
The Division did not pass on higher raw mate-
rial prices in full to the customer despite sales
price increases.

And Clariant is also at home in the world’s oil refineries.
Heating oil, after all, is not the same as gasoline or diesel.
Additives from Clariant ensure that these fuels meet ex-
actly the defined conditions for their use as finished prod-
ucts. Experts from Functional Chemicals visit the refin-
eries and recommend the right dosage and use, in order

to improve flow or lubrication properties.




Life Science Chemicals
The Life Science Chemicals Division’s sales declined in
local currencies by 15% year on year and 14% in Swiss
franc terms. EBITDA' came to CHF 53 million, equating

to a margin of 6.0%.
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The Life Science Chemicals Division posted
mixed results across its two businesses. Di-
vestiture of the CABB business on July 31 -
which does not qualify as a “discontinued ope-
ration” under IFRS - negatively impacted the
divisional result by about CHF 30 million. Higher
prices failed to offset volume decreases, re-
sulting in lower sales in local currency terms.
The Division was not able to pass on all the
higher raw material and energy prices to its
customers. Lower divisional sales were due to
the weak performance in the pharmaceutical
business.

Delays in customer projects and the anticipat-
ed loss of a sales contract amid prevailing
tough market conditions in the Pharmaceuti-
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cal Fine Chemicals segment resulted in a weak-
er performance compared to 2004. The main
reason was the decline in volume. Positive
developments in the generics area could not
mitigate negative trends from innovators. More

Higher prices failed to offset vol-
ume decreases, resulting in lower
sales in local currency terms.

recently, the business has been witnessing a
growing interest on the part of customers in
outsourcing their active pharmaceutical in-
gredients and teaming up with Clariant as their
partner, and this is already generating new
business.
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In contrast, firm growth driven by a robust de-
mand and higher prices for products was
achieved in Life Science Fine Chemicals Busi-
nesses. Key products such as glyoxal, glyoxylic
acid and side-chain chlorinated aromatics as
precursors for crop protection agents perform-
ed very well. Raw material prices were mixed,
with several key compounds softening, while
others were still in short supply at high cost.
The agrochemicals market remained strong
throughout the year.




Clariant has many years of experience in conduct-
ing research into active substances, as well as

in developing safer and more efficient manufac-
turing processes. This makes Clariant the partner
of cheice for the pharmaceutical industry.

Unique expertise serving the pharmaceutical industry

In recent years there has been a rapid increase in the
levels of quality, efficiency and cost-effectiveness in
heaith care and thus in pharmaceutical products too. Au-
thorities such as the US Food and Drug Administration,
FDA, are imposing ever more stringent requirements — not
only with respect to manufacturing but also regarding
the development process - before granting approval.

Regulations on climate control, air purity as well as
workers’ safety target to ensure state-of-the-art work-

ing conditions as well as product quality. Even multina-
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tional pharmaceutical companies do not find these pro-
visions easy to comply with, so they are glad to be able
to call on Clariant’s expert knowledge.

This type of expertise can he found at the Origgio plant
in ltaly, for instance, which specializes in the develep-
ment of production methods for active pharmaceutical
ingredients, APls. The technical expertise deployed
covers all types of pharmaceutical synthesis and a
broad spectrum of high-tech chemical processes that

are steadily heing developed further.

Quality, flexibility and expert knowledge are the cor-
nerstones of success in this business — in the experi-
mental laboratory, when carrying out simulations in tri-
al facifities and during the actual manufacturing process
itself. In Origgio, research and development are there-
fore a multidisciplinary issue. Work is carried out in
teams made up of experts with the widest possible in-
dustrial experience from a variety of backgrounds, such
as pharmacology, medical science, chemistry and bio-

technology.




Masterbatches

The Masterbatches Division lifted its sales in local cur-
rencies by 2% year on year. This translates into a 3%
sales increase in Swiss franc terms. EBITDA' came to
CHF 118 million, equating to a margin of 10.3%.
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The Masterbatches Division posted sequen-
tial growth that was driven by improved de-
mand for plastic products along with higher
prices for finished goods. Qverall, the division
reported sales growth in local currencies even
though the plastics market continued to be
challenged by rising oil and polymer prices
and market disruptions in the United States in
the wake of the hurricanes. Growth rates
improved sequentially in every quarter of the
year. In the final quarter, expansion continued
acrass all regions, with firm growth in United
States and Europe and a particularly strong
performance in the eastern part of the conti-
nent. Asia-Pacific showed mixed results as
various countries struggled to adjust to chang-
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ing growth and currency situations. Addition-
ally, growth in Latin America resumed in the
third quarter.

Raw material costs continued their upward
trend, and rising feedstock costs translated
into higher plastic resin costs for the Division

Sales grew in the plastics market
despite the challenge from rising
oil and polymer prices and market
disruptions.

and its custamers. Pricing initiatives did not
fully offset the higher prices for raw materials.
The entire plastics industry value chain con-
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tinues to be impacted by the volatility of petro-
leum-based raw materials. This eroded oper-
ating margins because cost-cutting measures
and steps to boost productivity failed to offset
the higher input costs.

The masterbatches market continues to grow
because plastic consumption is still benefiting
from the effects of substitution with other sub-
strates such as wood, metal, glass. For a wide
variety of applications and processes, plastic
processors are increasingly giving preference
to masterbatches over compounds. Clariant
products allow plastic processors to achieve
the color, special effects, and performance they
need to give them a distinctive profile in their
markets.

Innovative design
for consumer goods

Every sector faces its own particular challenges when
developing new products made of plastic, but the ex-
perts from Clariant Masterbatches can always be relied
on to assist. These experts understand and comply with
all sector-specific requirements - even the stringent
safety and hygiene standards of the medical industry.
They use their expertise to support customers all round
the world, supplying customized caler and additive con-

centrates as well as innovative processes.
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One challenge is common to all sectors, whatever they
may manufacture or design: From household articles
and appliances to sports equipment or durable goods —
the time factor is an increasingly significant feature of

the development process.

ColorWorks™ supparts design and marketing
specialists in the development of innovative
color and special effects for plastic products.
Cutting-edge technology minimizes the time

and outlay required to bring a product to market.

imaging, as regards hoth quality and efficiency. Ren-
derings that used to take hours can be produced by
Indigo almost instantaneously.

The on-screen visualization is very true to life, whether
the user wants to try out different colors, check surface

textures and sheen, or analyze the impact of the new

product in different envir ts. The t can
examine the future product from all angles, exactly as if
it were real. When the desired result has been ob-
tained, a formula generator calculates the exact chem-
ical composition and the new product can be produced
to absolutely identical specifications everywhere in
the world. As a result, fewer prototypes are needed, and

this significantly reduces the time and cost factors dur-

ing product development.
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The aim is to avoid making expensive mistakes and to
shorten the time it takes to bring new products to mar-
ket. Designers and brand consultants must therefore be
able to check all aspects of the product's visual appear-
ance and finish at a very early stage of development,
Clariant’s seven ColorWorks™ Design & Technology
Centers around the world aiso have a role to play. The
centers offer customers professional expertise and
support from the earliest stage of development right
through to the start of production. The very latest tech-
nologies, such as the new Indigo System from ColorViz,

are available. This system is revolutionizing computer

After all, preparing prototypes is a costly and time-con-
suming exercise. At the Lahnstein factory in Germany,
customers in the packaging industry now have the
opportunity to produce accurate prototypes in only one
or two days. Standard containers, which may be single
or multi-layered, are extruded. The multi-layer process
permits a large number of unigque surface, color and

sheen effects.

Packaging is an important business area for Clariant

Masterbatches, as over 4 million metric tons of plastic
is processed each year in Europe alone. Clariant's prod-
ucts and services offer unique competitive advantages
to customers in the highly exacting cosmetics industry,

where creative packaging design is crucial te success.




Financial review

Outlook

Clariant’s outlook is positive for 2006. The company
expects higher sales in local currency terms and a further
CHF 250 million in cost base reductions.

Positive outlook for 2006

“All signs point to a satisfactory year ahead,
which we expect will be highlighted by strong
resufts coming through from the performance

Clariant is committed to achieving
better results and to creating a
company that is built on continu-
ous improveiment.

improvements put in place in 2005", Messrs.
Losser and Secher said. "We do not antici-
pate any further substantial increases in raw
material and energy prices but these cannot
yet be completely ruled out”, they said.

“We are committed to driving better results
through the successful implementation of the
transformation program and beyond, taking
out further costs and creating a company that
is built on continuous improvement”, Messrs.
Ldsser and Secher said. “A lot of hard work is
still ahead of us and we are looking forward to
the challenge”.

Assuming a broadly stable macroeconomic
environment, the company expects a good
growth in local currency terms and a further
CHF 250 million in cost base reductions and an
impravement of at least CHF 120 million of op-
erating income before exceptional items and
excellent growth in netincome for the full year
2006.
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Circumspect guidance
Restructuring with fore-
sight. Centralizing group
functions. Promoting

$
3 {ocused interdivisional

cooperation and know-how

management. Boosting

efficiency to cut costs.
Ringing in a new epoch
and passing on the baton.
On course for success.

That is Clariant — with

farsighted leadership.
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Clariant’s principles and regulations on corporate
governance are set out in the Articles of Association

of Clariant Ltd and in the organizational and Group
regulations of the Clariant Group. The Board of Directors
reviews these documents regularly and adapts them to
new conditions if necessary. The Articles of Association
of Clariant Ltd can be viewed on the Internet at
www.governance.clariant.com. Corporate governance
reporting is in compliance with the guidelines of

SWX Swiss Exchange.

1. Group structure and shareholders

1.1 Group structure

The group consists of five divisions which, as
the highest-level operating units, bear full re-
sponsibility for their business activities. The
Divisions section in the Financial Review of
this Annual Report describes the operations
of the divisions and their results. Since 2005

the group functions Finance, Human Resour-
ces, Information Technology, ESHA, Legal,
Communications, Supply Chain Management,
Production Services and Sourcing have borne
worldwide responsibility atevery level {local,
regional, and global). The group functions are
part of the Corporate Center.

The company has been listed on the Swiss
stock exchange, SWX Swiss Exchange,
since 1995 (symbol: CLN, ISIN number:
CH0012142631). As at December 30, 2005, the
market capitalization stood at CHF 4.454 billion.
The scope of consolidation of Clariant Ltd in-
cludes the listed companies Clariant {India) Ltd,
Colour-Chem Ltd, and Clariant (Pakistan) Ltd.

Listed Registered Listing Capitalization Share- ISIN no.
company office holdings
%
Clariant {india) Ltd' Mumbai The Stock Exchange, Mumbai {BSE), 3988.32INRmn 50.94 INE221A01014
and National Stock Exchange of India,
Mumbai (NSE)
Colour-Chem Ltd' Mumbai The Stock Exchange, Mumbai {BSE}), 3860.81 INRmn 70.10 INE492A01029
and Nationa! Stock Exchange of India,
Mumbai (NSE)
Clariant {Pakistan) Ltd  Karachi The Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE) 2955.58 PKR mn 75.00 PK0076701017

Clariant has initiated the process of amalgamating
its five companies operating in India. These are Cla-
riant {India) Ltd, Colour-Chem Ltd, Vanavil Dyes and
Chemicals Ltd, BTP india Private Ltd and Kundalika
Investments Ltd.

These companies’ general meetings have given their
consent, and the exchange relationships for their
shares have been determined. The Indian authorities
are expected to approve the amalgamation in spring
2006, which will enatle the new company - Clariant
Chemicals {India) Ltd — to start operations in April 2008.




The major consolidated but unlisted compa-
nies include the Clariant companies in Ger-
many, the United States, the United Kingdom,
France, Brazil, Switzerland, Italy, Spain and
China.

1.2 Significant shareholders

According to the available information, as at
December 31, 2005, there was no shareholder
holding over 5% of the share capital. [n 2004
Artisan Partners Ltd Partnership, based in
Milwaukee, Wc., USA, held 10.01% of the Cla-
riant stock as atthe reporting date.

1.3 Cross-shareholdings
There are no cross-shareholdings.

2. Capital structure

2.1 Capital

The ordinary and the conditional capital are
described in note 4 and 5 of the notes to the
financial statements of Clariant Ltd, Muttenz.

2.2 Conditional capital

The company’s share capital shall be increa-
sed by a maximum of CHF 38 000 000 by issue
of a correspanding maximum of 8 000 000 re-
gistered shares of CHF 4.75 par value each, to
be paid up in cash, by the exercise of conver-
sion or warrant rights that were granted to
their holders in cannection with bonds of the
company orone of its subsidiaries. The details
are set out in Art. 5b of the Articles of Asso-
ciation.

2.3 Changes in capital

A description of the changes in capital that
took place in 2004 and 2005 can be found on
page 63 of this Annual Report. The details for
2003 can be found on page 71 of the 2004 An-
nual Report.

Company Registered Equity Share-
office holdings
At 31 December 2005 CHF mn %
Clariant GmbH Frankfurta.M., Germany 421 100.0
Clariant Corporation Charlotte, N.C., United States 985 100.0
Clariant UK Ltd Leeds, United Kingdom 97 100.0
Clariant (France) Puteaux, France 129 100.0
Clariant S.A. Sao Paulo, Brazil 134 100.0
Clariant Products Muttenz, Switzerland 150 100.0
(Switzerland) Ltd
Clariant (Italia} S.p.A. Milan, ltaly 74 100.0
Clariant Ibérica S.A. Barcelona, Spain 109 100.0
Clariant (China) Ltd Hong Kong, China 36 100.0

Other companies, see note 34

2.4 Shares and participation certificates

As at December 31, 2005, 230 160 000 regis-
tered shares had beenissued, each with a par
value of CHF 4.75.

2.5 Bonus certificates
Clariant Ltd has not issued any non-voting
equity security {Genussschein).

2.6 Limitations on transferability and
nominee registrations

Transfer of registered shares shali require the
approval of the Board of Directors, which may
delegate this function. Approval is granted if
the acquirer fulfils the formalities laid down in
Article 5 of the Articles of Association. Special
rules apply to nominees if they fail to disclose
the identity of the persons they represent and
their shareholding exceeds 2%.

2.7 Convertible bonds and options

There are no outstanding convertible bonds.
Aspartofthe employee participation scheme,
optionswereissuedonregisteredshares.De-
tails of the option programs can be found in
note 29 of the notes to the Cansolidated Fi-
nancial Statements.

3. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Clariant Ltd com
prises atleast six and no more than ten mem-
bers. At the 10th Annual General Meeting,
Robert Raeber was reelected as Chairman
and Prof. Dieter Seebach as a member of the
Board of Directors. Dr. Klaus Jenny from Gla-
rus, Switzerland was elected as a new mem-
ber of the Board of Directors for a four-year
term of office.

3.1 Members of the Board of Directors

Peter R. Isler, 60, Swiss citizen

Peter Isler studied law at the University of
Zurich and then moved to Harvard Law School
after finishing his doctorate. He worked for
various law firms from 1974 onwards and in
1981 became a partner at the Zurich law firm
Niederer Kraft & Frey. He has been a lecturer
in commercial law at the University of Zurich
since 1978 and a member of the Canton of
Zurich’s Anwaltspriifungskommission (law-
yer’s ex-amination commission) since 1984.

Klaus Jenny, 63, Swiss citizen

Klaus Jenny studied economics at the Univer-
sity of Sankt Gallen. After finishing his docto-
rate, he held various management positions at
Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (now Credit
Suisse} before his appointment to its Executi-
ve Board in 1987. In 1991 he took over as Head
of Corporate Banking worldwide and of Swiss
operations. As a member of the Group Execu-
tive Board, he took over as Chairman of the
Executive Board of the Credit Suisse Private
Banking business unit. Klaus Jenny has held a
number of directorships since leaving Credit
Suisse.

Roland Ldsser, 63, German citizen

Roland Losser is an ecanomist and started his
professional life in the business administra-
tion department of Vereinigte Leichtmetall-
werke in Bonn, Germany. In 1969 he moved to
Sandoz AG, where he held a number of lead-
ing positions in data processing. In 1986 he
took over as head of Finance/Administration
at Sandoz AG, Germany, and in 1990 as CFO of
Sandoz Corporation in the United States. At
the newly established Clariant International
Ltd, he was appointed CFO in 1395 and held
this position until 2001. He is now CEQ of Cla-
riant International AG.
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Kajo Neukirchen, 63, German citizen

Kajo Neukirchen studied business adminis-
tration at the University of Bonn. After fin-
ishing his doctorate, he began his profes-
sional career at Philips Group with various
management roles in sales and marketing. In
1977 he became CEO of Felten & Guilleaume
Kabelwerke, a subsidiary of Philips. He was
subseguently CEQ and Chairman of the
Management Board at various German manu-
facturing companies. Between 1993 and 2003
Kajo Neukirchen was CEQO of Metallgesells-
chaft (now mg technologies AG).

Robert Raeber, 69, Swiss citizen, Chairman
Robert Raeber graduated from the Kantonale
Handelsschule{Cantonal CommercialCollege)
in Zurich. After completing his studies he held
management positions in sales and marketing
at Unilever. He then moved to the advertising
agency Advico SA, where he worked as a man-
ager with responsibility for expansion in Eu-
rope. In 1967 Robert Raeber joined the Nestlé
Group, where he had a management career
with CEQ responsibility in various European
markets. In early 1996 he joined the Executive
Board of Nestlé SA in Vevey, Switzerland,
where he was responsibie for the European
market.

Tony Reis, 64, Swiss citizen

After studying business in Lucerne, Paris and
London, Tony Reis began his professional ca-
reer in marketing management at IBM Swit-
zerland. After working in Brussels and Paris
as Director of Operations for IBM Europe, he
took over as CEO of IBM Switzerland in 1990,
He returned to the European headquarters of
IBM in Paris in 1993 as General Manager of
Country Operations. Four years later he moved
to Swisscom, where he held the post of Chief
Executive Officerin 1998 and 1999,

Prof. Dieter Seebach, 68, German citizen

After graduating with a degree in chemistry
from the University of Karlsruhe, Germany,
Dieter Seebach worked as a postdoctoral fel-
fow at Harvard University in Cambridge, USA,
where he taught and conducted research.
In 1971 he took up a teaching post at the
University of Giessen, Germany. Dieter See-
bach was Professor of Organic Chemistry at
the Federal Institute of Technology in Zurich
(ETHZ) between 1977 and 2003. A winner of
numerous research prizes, he was awarded
an honorary doctorate degree by the Univer-
sity of Montpeliier, France, in 13989. The eme-
ritus is now ,Akademischer Gast” of ETHZ.
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With the exception of Roland Lésser {group
CEO}, all Board of Directors members are non-
executive.

3.2 Other activities and functions

Robert Raeber

= Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Nestlé Deutschland AG', Frankfurt
(Germany); Nestlé Waters AG', Mainz
{Germany); Schller Holding GmbH", Nu-
remberg (Germany); Maus Fréres SA,
Geneva;

»  Activities on behalf of companies and
representative functions: none

PeterR. Isler

w Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Bank Leu AG, Ziirich; Kardex AG,
Ziirich; Schulthess Group AG, Bubikan;

w Activities on behalf of companies and
representative  functions:  Anwalts-
priffungskommission (lawyer's examina-
tion commission) of the Canton of Zurich

Klaus Jenny

s Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Maus Fréeres SA, Geneva; Baloise
Holding, Basel

m  Activities on behalf of companies and
representative functions: none

Roland Losser

s Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Clariant GmbH', Frankfurt a.M. (Ger-
many)

m  Activities on hehalf of companies and re-
presentative functions: none

Kajo Neukirchen

m Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Sixt AG, Pullach {Germany); Vossloh
AG, Werdohl{Germany); Stadtwerke Diis-
seldorf AG (Germany)

m  Activities on behalf of companies and
representativefunctions:Gesellschaftder
Freunde von Bayreuth e.V.; Gesellschaft
der Freunde der Alten Oper Frankfurte.V.;
Vereinigung von Freunden und Firderern
der Johann Wolfgang Goethe-Universitat
Frankfurt am Main eV, Stifterverband
fur die Deutsche Wissenschaft; Stiftung
Deutsche Sporthilfe

Tony Reis

»  Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: Metallwarenholding AG and V-ZUG
AG, Zug; Karl Steiner AG, Generalunter-
nehmung, Zug; esmertec AG, Diibendorf
Activities on behalf of companies and re-
presentative functions: none

Dieter Seebach

s Board of Directors/supervisory manda-
tes: none

» Activities on behalf of companies and
representative functions: Consultant to
Novartis Pharma, Syngenta and Lonza
Group; member of the chemical societies
of Germany, Switzerland, United States
and United Kingdom

' Chairman

3.3 Cross-involvement
There are no cross-involvements.

3.4 Elections and terms of office

The members of the Board of Directors are
elected for a maximum of four years. Reelec-
tion is possible. The age limit is 70 years of
age.

Terms of office of First Elected
members of the elected until
Board of Directors

Robert Raeber 2001 2006
PeterR. Isler 2004 2008
Klaus Jenny 2005 2009
Roland Lgsser 2000 2008
Kajo Neukirchen 2004 2008
Tony Reis 1999 2007
Dieter Seebach 2001 2006

3.5 Internal organizational structure
Inaccordance with the law and the Articles of
Association, the Board of Directors is the su-
preme management body of the group. It con-
sists of the Chairman, one or several Vice Chair-
men, and the other members. In accordance
with the Articles of Association, the number
of members must be at least six and no more
thanten. The Chairman and the Vice Chairman/
Chairmen together constitute the Executive
Committee ofthe Board of Directors. Themem-
bers of the Board of Directors sit on the fol-
lowing committees:
» Strategy Committee
a  Appointments and Compensation Com-
mittee
»  Audit Committee
» |7, Technology and Innovation Committee
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The Board of Directors appoints the Chair-
man, Vice Chairman/Chairmen, and members
of the committees.

The Board of Directors meets at leastonce a
quarter. At the invitation of the Chairman, the
members of the Management Board and/or
other employees and third parties may attend
the meetings of the Board for the purpose of re-
porting or imparting information. The com-
mittees report on their activities and results
to the Board of Directors. They prepare the
business ofthe Board intheir respective areas
but do not have any decision-making autho-
rity, with the exception of imminentthreats or
danger, unless such authority has been con-
ferred an them specifically. In such cases
they decide together with the Chairman. The
overall responsibility of the Board of Direc-
tors is not limited by the committees. In 2005
the Board of Directors visited five of Clariant’s
places of business in China (Beijing, Tianjin
and Shanghai) and, together with the regional
management, worked out the strategy for the
further development of the business. As part
of a self-assessment exercise, the Board of
Directors critically examined its own working
methods and organization and adapted these
where necessary,

The Executive Committee (EC} prepares the
meetings of the Board of Directors. The EC
meets as needed but at least before each
meeting of the Board of Directors. When mat-
ters cannot be postponed, the EC passes re-
solutions for which the Board of Directors is
responsible, according to the current agenda,
provided the EC deems it either inopportune
or impossible to convene an extraordinary
meeting of the Board of Directors. (The inalie-
nable duties of the Board of Directors in ac-
cordance with Art. 716a of the Swiss Code of
Obligations are excluded.) These resolutions
require unanimity of the members present.

The Strategy Committee (STC) comprises the
members of the EC and the CED. It is headed
by the Chairman. The STC prepares all stra-
tegic discussions for the Board of Directors,
provided they are not expressly allocated to
anather committee. The STC makes recom-
mendations to the Board of Directors in par-
ticular on the fallowing:
m Strategic projects
s Financial transactions
s Funding/deployment of funds
s Organizational and management
structure
s Investmentsin the remit of the
Board of Directors

The Appointments and Compensation Com-
mittee {ACC) comprises two members of the
EC. The Chairman must be an independent,
nonexecutive member of the Board of Direc-
tors. The ACC meets at least twice a year. To-
gether with the Chairman, the ACC draws up
principles for the selection of candidates for
election and reelection to the Board of Di-
rectors and prepares the corresponding rec-
ommendations. The ACC draws up principles
for compensation of members of the Board of
Directors and submits them to the Board of Di-
rectors for approval. In particular, it considers
and submits to the Board of Directors the pro-
posals of the CEQ concerning candidates for
the positions of division head, other members
of the Management Board, function heads
reporting directly to the CEQ and Regional
Presidents. It approves the employment con-
tracts for the CEQ, members of the Manage-
ment Board, function heads and Regional
Presidents. At the request of the CEQ it ap-
proves on a regular basis corresponding com-
pensations. All appointments and dismissals
that fall within the remit of the Board of Direc-
tors mustbe submitted in advance to the ACC,
which makes a recommendation to the Board
of Directors. The ACC reviews the bonus, op-
tion and share plans. Furthermore, it reviews

fringe benefit regulations, dismissal regula-
tions and contractual severance compensa-
tion with the heads of divisions, members of
the Management Board, function heads and
heads of subsidiaries.

The Audit Committee (AUDC) comprises two
members of the Board of Directors. The Chair-
man must be an independent, nonexecutive
member of the Board of Directors. The AUDC
reviews the activities of the external auditors,
their collaboration with the internal auditors
and organizational adequacy. It also reviews
the performance, compensation and indepen-
dence of the external auditors. All consultan-
cy mandates concluded with the external au-
ditorsin the group are submitted by the CFO to
the committee for information purposes at the
AUDC meetings. Consultancy mandates for
the external auditors for which compensation
exceeds CHF 200 000 are submitted to the
AUDC for approval. The AUDC assesses the
performance of the internal auditors and re-
ports to the Board of Directors. Furthermore,
the AUDC assesses the efficacy of the inter-
nal audit system and internal risk management
and reviews compliance with standards in the
company. The AUDC examines the group fi-
nancial statements and holding company fi-
nancial statements and receives the reports
of the CFO and external auditors. The AUDC
reviews and updates the organizational regu-
lations of the Board of Directors.

The IT, Technology and Innovation Committee
(ITIC) comprises two members of the Board of
Directorswith experienceintheresearchseg-
ments, in innovation management and in the
group’s information technology. It meets at
least twice a year. The tasks of the ITIC in-
clude assessing the innavative activities on
behalf of the Board of Directors and recom-
mending measures to stimulate research and
development in the group. The ITIC also rec-
ommends measures to optimize exploitation
of innovative potential.
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3.6 Definition of areas of responsibility

The Board of Directors decides on all group

activities for which it has responsibility in ac-

cordance with the Jaw (especially Art. 716a of
the Code of Qbligations on non-transferable
and inalienable duties of the Board of Direc-
tors), the Articles of Association and the or-
ganizational regulations. The Board of Direc-
fors has sole authority in particular for the
following, in accordance with and supplemen-
taryto Art. 7162 of the Code of Obligations and

Art. 23 of the Articles of Association:

a  Convening the Annual General Meeting
(AGM), determining the items an the
agenda and the proposals to be made by
the Board of Directors plus approving the
Annual Reportincludingthe balance sheet
and income statement for the AGM;

m  Approving financial transactions of con-
siderable scope {over CHF 100 million) or
involving special risks, in particular capital
market transactions and other financing
transactions {e.g. large loans) plus chan-
ges to the associated conditions;

a  Establishment and control of strategic
management of the group;

m  Approvat of the basic outline of the group
arganization and these grganizational
regulations;

w Approval of the basic financing policy and
of its planning and control;

= Approval of the group annual budget;

a Approval of the group balance sheet and
income statement on a quarterly basis
and of the company balance sheetand in-
come statement on an annual basis;

s Approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the business year;

m  Appointment and dismissal of members
of the Management Board, the heads of
divisions and functions and heads of im-
portant subsidiaries;

w Approval of investments which exceed
CHF 20 million;

a  Approval of the liquidation or disposal of a
subsidiary, a stake in a joint program or in
another company, or significant portions
thereof, of rights to products or industrial
property rights, provided the annual sales
of the company concerned or of a division
ar of the product or the industrial proper-
ty rights associated with it exceed CHF 20
million;

m  Ensuring succession planning and man-
agement development;
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w Ensuring a management and corporate
culture that is appropriate for the com-
pany’s objectives;

w  Ensuring an internal controlling system
and adequate risk and compliance man-
agement.

The Board of Management, in addition ta its
general corporate management function, is
mainly responsible forimplementing and mon-
itoring the group strategy, for the financial
and operational management of the group,
and for the efficiency of the group structure
and organization. The members of the Man-
agement Board are appointed by the Board
of Directors in line with the proposal of the
Appointments and Caompensation Committee.
Subject to responsibility of a higher-ranking
corporate body, the Management Board is
responsible for:

m» Operational implementation of the group
strategies and the strategies and action
programs of the individual divisions and
subsidiaries;

= Managing the divisions and the functions
thatreportta the respective divisions;

m  Preparing and deploying resources as
efficiently as possible to implement the
group strategy in accordance with the
budget;

m  Monitoring compliance with the organi-
zational regulations for divisions, subsid-
iaries, and functions and with the group
regulations;

= Establishing a management and corpo-
rate culture in line with the company's
objectives.

3.7 Information and control instruments
vis-a-vis the Board of Management

Clariant has an internal audit department
which informs the Board of Directors regular-
ly of the audit results. A risk management
system is being set up to coordinate and
group together the risks {e.g. insurable, envi-
ronmental protection, financial, commercial
and political risks) that were previously
handled separately. In addition to the docu-
ments required to pass resolutions, the Board
of Directors receives the following reports at
its regular meetings:

w  Quarterly reports on the sales and earn-
ings performance of the company with the
relevantinformation about competitors in
the same manageable period since the be-
ginning of the year, structured by division
withthe main sales areas and key product
groups plus the major subsidiaries;

w Quarterly reports on the cash flows, debt
and debt-equity ratio plus other relevantkey
figures for the group and value added;

= Annual qualitative assessments of the
divisions and key subsidiaries;

= Audit reports prepared by the internal
and group auditors;

s Annual analysis of the shareholder struc-
ture;

»  Annual overview of the group’s key staff
benefit schemes (especially pension
funds).

In cases involving extraordinary events of

considerable commercialrelevance, the Board

of Directors receives direct, immediate infor-
mation.

4. Board of Management

The Board of Management consists of the
CEQ, the CFQ, the Head of Research and De-
velopment, the Head of Group Services, and
the five Division Heads.

4.1 Members of the Board of Management
Dominik von Bertrab, 46, Swiss citizen,

Head of the Masterbatches Division

Dominik von Bertrab is an economist and
was appointed Head of the Masterbatches
Divi-sion in April 2003. He has held several
positions with Clariant since its formation in
1995, including COO of Clariant (Heng Kong)
Ltd, Head of Controlling for the Textile, Lea-
ther & Paper Chemicals Division, Head of the
Paper Business in the TLP Division, and Head
of Corporate Human Resources. Dominik von
Bertrab began his career in 1985 in group
auditing at Sandoz. He then became Mana-
ging Director of Polyrem South Africa (a joint
venture of Sandaz and Hoechst) in 1989 and fi-
nally Head of the Chemical Division of Sandoz
South Africain 1991. Dominik von Bertrab stu-
died business administration in Switzerland.

Peter Brandenberg, 58, Swiss citizen,

Head of Group Services and Regions

Peter Brandenberg is an economist and was
appointed Head of Regions in 2003. Since
the beginning of 2005 he has also been res-
ponsible for the service functions within the
Corporate Center. From 2000 until 2003 he
was CEQ of Clariant GmbH, Germany, with
responsibility for all German operations. From
1997 until 1999 he managed the former Pro-
cess & Performance Products Division and
from 1995 until 1997 the Textile Division. Peter
Brandenberg joined Sandoz in 1970 and held
a number of management positions in Latin




America, Scuth Africa, and Japan for almost
20 years. From 1982 until 1990 he was CEQ in
Japan. Peter Brandenberg trained in business
administration in Switzerland and the Unites
States.

Siegfried Fischer, 50, German citizen,

Head of the Functional Chemicals and Life
Science Chemicals Divisions

Siegfried Fischer is an enginger. He was ap-
pointed Head of the Functional Chemicals
Division in April 2003, and since June 2004 he
has also headed the Life Science Chemicals
Division, Following the merger of Clariant and
Hoechst's specialty chemicals business, he
joined the companyin 1997 as Head of Produc-
tion and Technology in the Process and Per-
formance Products Oivision. In 1998 he bec-
ame Head of the Performance Chemicals
Business in the Functional Chemicals Divisi-
on. Siegfried Fischer began his career in 1984
at Hoechst, where he held various positions,
last of all as Head of Engineering, ESHA &
Production in the Surfactants and Additives
Department. He studied mechanical and pro-
cess engineering in Germany.

Patrick Jany, 38, German citizen,

Chief Financial Gfficer (CFO} since January 1,
2006

Patrick Jany is an economist and has been
Chief Financial Officer at Clariant since Ja-
nuary 1. In 1990 he joined Sandoz, one of
Clariant’s predecessor companies. He held
various positions in finance and controlling at
Sandoz and Clariant, including Chief Financial
Officer for the ASEAN region and Head of
Controlling far the Pigments & Additives Divi-
sion. From 2003 to 2004 he was Head of Coun-
try Organization for Clariant in Mexico. Prior
to his appointment as CFO, he was Clariant's
Head of Corporate Development with respon-
sibility for group strategy and mergers and
acquisitions.

Roland Lisser, 63, German citizen,

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Curriculum vitae, see “3.1 Members of the
Board of Directors”.

Uwe Nickel, 47, German citizen,

Head of the Pigments & Additives Division
Uwe Nickel is a chemist and was appointed
Head of the Pigments & Additives Division
in April 2003. Since 1997 he has held several
manageria! positions atthis division, including
Global Head of Technology, Sector AZQ Pig-
ments, Global Head of Pigments Technology,
and Global Head of the Specialized Industries

Business. Uwe Nickel began working for Cas-
sella AG in 1986 and held positions ranging
from Head of Laboratory within the Research
Department to Head of Production. Following
the consolidation of Cassella with Hoechst,
he took aver the position of Business Process
Excellence Manager for a Global Change
Management Project in the Strategic Sur-
factants and Additives Business. Uwe Nickel
studied chemistry in Germany.

Francois Note, 46, French citizen,

Chief Financial Officer {CFQ) until December
31,2005

Francgois Note is an economist and became
Chief Financial Gfficer of Clariant in 2001.
From 1999 until 2001 he was Head of Corpo-
rate Human Resources and responsible for all
HR activities of the Clariant Group worldwide.
Before joining Clariant, he was Chief Financial
Officer at GTS Carrier Services (formerly Her-
mes Europe Railtel), which operated the pan-
European broadband telecoms network Ebone.
Frangois Note began working for the Sandoz
Group in 1983 and held a number of finance
positions in Switzerland, Belgium and ltaly.
He was appointed Head of Group Controlling
in 1995, a position he continued to hold after
the merger of Sandoz and Ciba-Geigy in 1996,
Frangois Note studied business administra-
tion and applied economics in France.

Peter Piringer, 54, Austrian citizen,

Head of the Textile, Leather & Paper Chemi-
cals Division

Peter Piringer is a chemical engineer and has
been Head of the Textile, Leather & Paper
Chemicals Division since January 2005. From
1997 until 1999 he was Head of the Surfac-
tants Division in Latin America and from 1998
until 2004 Head of the TLP Division in Latin
America. From 1979 until 1997 Peter Piringer
worked for Hoechst AG in Latin America,
where he held various pasitions such as head
of surfactants production in Brazil and Chief
Technical Officer at Hoechst Venezuela. Pe-
ter Piringer obtained his degree in chemical
engineering from the University of Parana in
Brazil.

Jan Secher, 48, Swedish citizen,

Designated Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Jan Secher holds a Masters Degree in indus-
trial Marketing. Since January 1, 2006, he has
been a member of Clariant’s Management
Board and its Designated Chief Executive
Officer. He will take up his new position after
the Annual General Meeting in April 2006. He

was previously CEO of the Swiss firm SICPA
Group, a world-leading supplier of packaging
and security inks for bank notes. Jan Secher
began his career in 1982 at Asea (now ABB),
in sales/marketing and product management,
which included a five-year stint in North
America. Beginning in 1989 he held vari-
ous leadership positions at ABB in Asia and
Europe. From 1994 until 1997 he was Vice
President and Divisional Manager of ABB's
Automation & Drives Division in Japan. He
was subsequently appointed a member of
the Management Board of ABB in Sweden.
fn 2000 Jan Secher was relocated to ABB’s
headquartersin Zurich, where in 2001 he was
then appointed a member of the Management
Board and Head of the Manufacturing & Con-
sumer Division.

Hartmut Wiezer, 59, German citizen,

Head of Group Technology

Hartmut Wiezer is a chemist and has been
Head of Group Technology at Clariant since
2000. From 1997 until 1999 he was Head of the
former Fine Chemicals Division at Clariant. He
began his career in 1975 at Hoechst AG and
held a number of positions in the Polymer Ad-
ditives Business Segment, including R&D, mar-
keting, and pilot factory production. From
1983 untif 1986 he was Assistantin Hoechst's
R&D Head Office and subsequently Project
Manager and Head of R&D for Electronic Ma-
terials in the Information Technolagy Division.
He was appointed Head of R&D for the Fine
Chemicals Business Unit in 1989 and Head of
the Fine Chemicals Business Unitin 1995. He
moved to Clariant in 1997 when the Specialty
Chemicals Division was taken over from
Hoechst. Hartmut Wiezer studied chemistry
in Germany.

4.2 Other activities and functions

Peter Brandenberg is a member of the Board
of EBM (Elektra Birseck) and a member of the
Board of the Swiss Society of Chemical In-
dustries. Siegfried Fischer is a member of the
Board of TEGEWA e.V. The members of the
ManagementBoard do not carry out any ather
activities, consultancy functions or hold oth-
er offices.

4.3 Management contracts
There are no management contracts with third
parties pursuant to this guideline.




5. Compensations, shareholdings and loans
Content and method of determination

The Appointments and Compensation Com-
mittee (ACC) of the Board of Directors draws
up the principles for compensation of members
of the Board of Directors and submits them to
the Board of Directors for approval. It ap-
proves employment contracts with the CEQ,
members of the Board of Management, heads
of functions and heads of major subsidiaries.
It also reviews the corresponding salaries
regularly togéther with the CEQ. The commit-
tee reviews bonus, option and share plans and
makes recommendations to the Board of
Directors. Furthermore, it reviews fringe ben-
efit regulations, dismissal regulations and
contractual severance compensation with
the heads of divisions, members of the Board
of Management, function heads and heads of
major subsidiaries.

On January 1, 2005, a new bonus scheme was
introduced for about 270 members of senior
management. The Clariant Executive Bonus
Plan (CEBP) takes account of the company's
new structures and is able to respond quickly
to its current situation, as the overall bonus
paid out under the CEBP is dependent solely
upon the group's financial performance. The
performance of the separate divisions and
functions determines the allocation of the
overall bonus payment. Individual bonuses
will only be paid to managers with an out-
standing track record in any one year who

ab

Compensation for members of executive bodies 2005 2004
Cash compensations CHEmn 5.1 45
Expenditure on pension schemes CHEmn | 2.1 0.8
Total CHF mn 12 53
Number of allocated shares 18512 33347
Number of allocated options 118 244 49326
Compensation for non-executive members of 2005 2004
governing hodies
Cash compensations CHFmn 0.69 0.60
Total CHFmn 0.69 0.60
Number of allocated shares 17634 18 406
Shares and options held by Shares Shares Options Options
members of governing bodies within privately within  exercisable
the vesting held  the vesting
period period
Members of executive bodies 6081 40372 230909 49055
Non-executive members of 44908 472 0 1701
governing bodies
Total 105719 82093 230909 50756

are nominated and approved hy the members
of the Board of Management. The CEBP no
longer includes stock options. Bonus pay-
ments in the framework of the CEBP are
made halfin cash and half in shares, the latter
with a three-year vesting period. Al} repor-
ted compensation is on an accruals basis. In
other words, bonuses and share distributions
represent payments expected in 2006 for the
2005 business year.

Compensations for acting members of
governing bodies

Total compensation for members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management
amounted to CHF 7.9 million (2004: CHF 5.9
million). This includes cash compensation of
CHF 5.8 million (2004: CHF 5.1 million) and ex-
penses for pension schemes of CHF 2.1 million
(2004; CHF 0.8 million). The sums spenton pen-
sion plans were impacted inthe 2005 business
year by the move of several Board of Manage-
ment members from Germany to Switzerland.
This resulted in exceptional one-off provisions.

As part of the Long Term incentive Pian of
Clariant Ltd, the members of the governing
bodies received 36 146 shares and 118 244 op-
tions. Worth of allocated but not yet vested
shares and options in 2005 amounted to CHF
1.4 million according to [FRS 2 (2004: 51 753
shares worth CHF 0.7 miltion and 49 326 options
worth CHF 0.5 million). Shares and options are
subject to a three-year vesting period.

The premature termination of the employment
contracts of one member of governing bodies
resulted in contractual payments of CHF 1.1
million {2004: CHF 3.9 million}.

Members of executive bodies

Total compensation for members of the Board
of Management amounted ta CHF 7.2 million
{2004: CHF 5.3 million). See table "Compensa-
tion for members of executive bodies”.

This business year members of the Board of
Management had a right to subscribe shares
or options for the last time.

Nonexecutive members of governing bodies
Nonexecutive members of governing bodies
receive annual cash compensationand shares
as part of the Long Term Incentive Plan. See
table “Compensation for nonexecutive mem-
bers of governing bodies”.

Compensations for former members of
governing bodies

Compensations of CHF 250 000 were paid to
former members of governing bodies.

Shares and options

The share and option packages for members
of governing bodies comprise shares and op-
tions that are still vested under the Long Term
Incentive Plan and privately held shares and
options. See table “Shares and options held
by members of governing bodies”.




Additional remuneration

The members of the governing bodies did not
receive any further remuneration above and
beyond the compensations disclosed here.

Loans granted by governing bodies
No new loans were granted. There are no
foans outstanding from previous years.

Highest total compensation

The highest total compensation paid to a
member of the Board of Directors in the 2005
business year was CHF 2.18 million consisting
of the basic salary, bonus and Long Term In-
centives for the 2005 business year.

6. Shareholders’ participation rights

The shareholders’ participation rights are de-
scribed in the Articles of Assaociation, section
3, Articles9to 17.

6.1 Voting-rights restrictions

and representation
The only voting-rights restriction at Clariant
is the restriction to 10% of the share capital
inaccordance with Art. 12, para. 1 of the Arti-
cles of Association.

There are no special rules for waiving statu-
tory voting-rights restrictions.

There are no statutory rules on participation
at the Annual General Meeting which differ
from the legal provisions.

6.2 Statutory guorums
The statutory quorums correspond to Art. 704
of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

6.3 Convocation of the Annual General
Meeting

There are no statutory rules that differ from

the legal provisions.

6.4 Agenda

There are no statutory rules that differ from
the legal provisions. Sharehalders represent-
ing shares with a par value of CHF 1 million
have until 9 February 2007, if they wish to re-
quest that an item be included on the agenda
for the 12th Annual General Meeting, which is
to be held on 2 April 2007.

6.5 Eatry in the share register

There are no special rules concerning a dead-
line for entry in the share register. The share
register is regularly closed seven to ten days
before the Annual General Meeting.

7. Changes of control and defense
measures
7.1 Duty to make an offer
The 10th Annual General Meeting of Clariant
Ltd resolved to cancel Article 5a of the Arti-
cles of Association, which would have obliged
an acquirer to make a public purchase offer
only if he or she had acquired more than 49%
ofthe company's shares. The limitbeyond which
the duty to make an offer applies is thereby
reduced to the statutory minimum of 33 %3 per-
cent.

7.2 Clauses on changes of control
There are no clauses on changes of control.

8. Auditors

8.1 Duration of the mandate and term of
office of the head auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers has held the man-

date since Clariant Ltd was established in

1995. Daniel Suter and Dr. Matthias Jeger

were appointed as Lead Auditors in May 2004,

8.2 Auditing honorarium
PricewaterhouseCoopers received a fee of
CHF 5.0 million for auditing the 2005 financial
statements (2004: CHF 4.0 milfion).

8.3 Additional honorariums
PricewaterhouseCoopers received a total
fee of CHF 3.8 million for consultancy and
special audits (2004: CHF 4.3 million). Audit
related fees accounted for more than 50% of
this amount (CHF 2.3 milfion).

8.4 Supervisory and control instruments
vis-a-vis the auditors

The Audit Committee of the Board of Direc-
tors is responsible for evaluating the external
auditors on behalf of the Board of Directors.
In the reporting vear, there were five joint
meetings with the representatives of the ex-
ternal avditors.

9. Information policy

Clariant pursues an active information policy
that is adapted to the relevant situation. The
form and content of the information are geared
to the needs of the relevant target groups.
The Group Communications and Investor Re-
lations departments report directly tothe CEO
and CFO respectively. On basic matters of
general corporate policy, Group Communica-
tions receives its guidelines from the Execu-
tive Committee.

Corporate Governance

Clariant provides all shareholders entered in
the share register with their name and ad-
dresswithregular “Shareholder information”.
This information is sent by post each time an
annual or semi-annual reportis published and
is delivered the next day.

The company’s website, www.clariant.com,
is another regular sgurce of information, where
relevant information is published. It also lists
addresses and contact persons.
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Consolidated financial statements of tne Clariant Group

Consolidated balance sheets
at31 December 2005 and 2004

Assets 2005 20042
Notes’ CHFmn % CHF mn %

Non-current assets

2605 2440

Property, plant and equipment 4
Intangible assets 5 418 405
Investments in associates 6 282 277
Financial assets 7 47 47
Prepaid pension assets 15 7 49
Deferred income tax assets 8 250 259
Total non-current assets 3679 502 3477 429
Current assets ‘
Inventories 9 1535 1325
Trade receivables 10 1488 1374
Other current assets n 344 M9
Cash and cash equivalents 12 223 1477
Currentincome tax receivables :55 28
Total current assets 3645 49.8 4623 571
Total assets 7324 100.0 8100 100.0
Equity and liabilities 2005 2004
Notes! CHEmn % CHFmn %
Capital and reserves attributable to the company’s equity holders 3
Share capita! 13 1093 1151
Treasury shares (par value) 13 -18 -17
Other reserves 663 529
Retained earnings 793 595
2531 2258
Minority interests 60 56
Total equity . 28591 35.4 2314 286
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial debts 14 599 1723
Deferred income tax liabilities 8 390 388
Retirement benefit obligations 15 507 479
Provisions for non-current liabilities 16 289 319
Total non-current liabilities 1785 24.4 2909 359
Current liabilities ‘
Trade payables 17 1205 1165
Financial debts 18 1137 1172
Currentincome tax liabilities 175 175
Provisions for current liabilities 19 431 365
Total current liabilities 2948 40.2 2871 355
Total liabilities 4733 64.6 5786 71.4
Total equity and liabilities 7324 100.0 8100 100.0

! The notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
 Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.




Consolidated income statements
for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

2005 20042
Notes' CHF mn % CHF mn %
Sales 20,21 8181 100.0 8530 100.0
Costs of goods sold -5765 -5823
Gross profit 2416 295 2707 317
Marketing and distribution -1303 -1262
Administration and general overhead costs - 402 - 561
Research and development -218 -274
income from associates 6 23 26
Gain/loss from the sale of discontinued operations 22 -2 95
Gain/loss from the sale of subsidiaries and associates 23 40 -32
Restructuring and impairment 27 - 186 - 136
Amortization of goodwill 5 - -30
Operating income 368 45 533 6.2
Interest expense -132 - 154
Other financial income and expenses 25 34 -79
Income hefore taxes 270 300
Taxes 8 -78 -141
’ Netincome 192 23 159 1.9
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 184 152
Minority interests 8 7
Netincome 192 23 158 1.9
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the company’s equity holders:
Earnings per share (CHF/share) 26 0.81 0.72
Diluted earnings per share {CHF/share) 26 0.81 0.72

' The notes form anintegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
2 Restated, refer ta note 1.04 for details.




Consolidated statements of cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2009

2005 20042
Notes’ CHFmn CHFmn
Netincome 192 159
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (PPE) 4 273 306
Impairment and reversal of impairment of PPE 4 [ 59 39
Amortization of intangible assets (2004 including goodwill} 5 10. 40
Changes in provisions and taxes 115 216
Interest paid - 165 - 161
Income taxes paid -89 -104
Loss (gain} before recycled exchange rate variances 22 2 -95
and taxes from the sale of discontinued operations
Loss (gain) before taxes from the sale of subsidiaries 23 -40 32
and associates j
Other non-cash items -84 37
Cash flow before changes in working capital : 2713 469
Changes in inventaries L1137 15
Changes intrade receivables | -6 52
Changes in trade payables 65 90
Changes in other current assets and liabilities 14 193
Cash flow from operating activities 209 819
Investments in PPE 4 -348 -289
Investments in financial assets and associates -4 -
Investments in intangible assets 5 -5 -8
Sale of PPE and intangible assets 10 10
Acquisition of companies, businesses and participations 24 -33 -24
Proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations 22 7 335
Proceeds from the sale of subsidiaries and associates 23 N 50
Dividends received 24 31
Interest received | 42 , 23
Cash flow from investing activities © - 250 128
Proceeds from the issuance of share capital - 877
Repayment of share capital - 58 -
Treasury share transactions 13, -8 16
Proceeds from financial debts 614 80
Repayments of financial debts -1772 -1322
Dividends paid : -5 -37
Cash flow from financing activities ! -1229 - 386
Currency translation effect on cash and cash equivalents ; 16 -13
Netchange in cash and cash equivalents -1254 548
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 12 1477 929
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 12 223 1477

' The notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

? Restated, refer to note 1.04 for detalls,

bZ




Consolidated statement of changes in equity
tor the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

CHFmn Other reserves
Total Treasury Share Hedging Cumulative Total | Retained Total Minority Total
share shares| premium reserves translation other| earnings attributable interests equity
capital (parvalue}| reserves reserves reserves to equity
‘ holders
Balance 31 Decemher 2003 767 -18 274 -8 -243 23 404 1176 64 1240
Correction of errors and -1 - 47 46 46

changes in accounting policy
(notes 1.03/1.04)

Restated balance 767 -19] 274 -8 -243 23 451 1222 64 1286
31 December 2003

Cash flow hedges, net of tax:

Net fair value gains {losses) 3 3‘ 3 3
Netinvestment hedges 30 30 30 30
Exchange rate differences -20 -20 -20 -2 -22

Netincome recognized 0 0 0 3 10 13 0 13 -2 1"
directly in equity
Netincome } -| 152 152 7 159
Total recognized income 0 UL 0 3 10 130 152 165 5 170
and expense for the period
Purchase of minority shares ’ - -6 6
Dividends to third parties 1 - -30 -30 7 37
Issuance of share capital 384 E 493 493 877 877
Treasury share transactions 2 —J 14 16 16
Employee share and option scheme: \

value of employee services —T 8 8 8

{note 29)

Balance 31 December 2004 1 151 -17 767 -5 -233 529]7 595 2258 56 2314
Cash flow hedges, net of tax:

Transfers to netincome 5 5 5 5
Netinvestment hedges -35 -35 -35 -35
Exchange rate differences 164 164 164 15 179

Netincome recognized 0 0 0 5 129 134 0 134 15 149
directly in equity
Netincome - 184 184 8 192
Total recognized income and ] ] ] 5 129 134 184 318 23 341
expense for the period
Purchase of mingrity shares T - 14 14 -14 0
Dividends to third parties L ~ -5 -5
Repayment of share capital -58 - -58 -58
Treasury share transactions -1 ~ -7 -8 -8
Employee share and option scheme:
value of employee services ~ 7 7 7
(note 29)
i
Balance 31 December 2005 1093 -18] 767 0 -104 663 793 2531 60 2591
The notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
During 2004 Clariant issued new shares amounting to nominal capital ~ During 2005 Clariant reduced its share capital by CHF 0.25 per share
of CHF 384 million (76 720 000 shares at CHF 5 per share). Transaction  resulting in a pay-out of CHF 58 million.

costs relating to the issuance of share capital in the amount of CHF 44
million were deducted from the share premium,



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Accounting policies

1.01 General information

Clariant Ltd (the ,Company”} and its consolidated subsidiaries (together
the ,Group”} are a global leader in the field of specialty chemicals. The
Group develops, manufactures, distributes and sells a broad range of
specialty chemicals which play a key role in its customers’ manufac-
turing and treatment processes or adds value to their end products.
The Group has manufacturing plants around the world and sells mainly
in countries within Europe, the Americas and Asia.

The company is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Switzerland. The address of its registered office is Rothausstrasse
61, CH-4132 Muttenz, Switzerland. The Company is listed on the Swiss
Stock Exchange (SWX).

The Board of Directors has approved the consalidated financial state-
ments forissue on 24 February 2006.

1.02 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Clariant Group comply
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) formulated
by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and with In-
ternational Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretations, formulated
byits predecessor, the International Accounting Standards Committee
(IASC), as well as with the following significant accounting policies.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
histerical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments at fair value
through profit or loss).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS re-
guires the use of estimates and assumptions. These affectthe reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent as-
sets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the re-
ported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
of current events and circumstances, actual results may ultimately dif-
fer from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judg-
ment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed un-
der note 3.

1.03 Errors

During 2005 itbecame evident that a change in the group structure had
not been accounted for correctly from a tax point of view in 2002. A tax
exemption which was considered to be of a permanent nature proved to
be temporary only. As a result an additional CHF 9 million should have
been reported as a deferred tax liability. In accordance with IAS 8 the
correction was posted in the earliest period presented and as such is
included inthe correction of the opening amount of equity on 1 January
2004.

1.04 International Financial Reporting Standards effective in 2005

in 2004 the |ASB published IFRS 2 ,Share-based Payment’, IFRS 3
,Business Combinations’, IFRS 4 ,Insurance Contracts’ and IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’. In ad-
dition as part of the IASB improvement projects there were amend-
ments and changesto IAS 36 ,Impairment of Assets’, [AS 38, Intangible
Assets’, [AS 28 ‘Investments in Associates’, [AS 1 'Presentation of Fi-
nancial Statements’, IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ and SIC 12 'Employee
compensation plans’ and further amendments to 1AS 39 and 1AS 21.
The Group has adopted these new and improved standards effective
1January 2005. This led to a number of reclassifications in the financial
statement of the Group. The effects were the following:

» |FRS 2, Share-based payment: The adoption of IFRS 2 resulted in a
change in the accounting policy for share-based payment. Until 31
December 2004, accruals for share-based payments were recorded
as an expense in the income statement and a provision in the bal-
ance sheet. No expense was recognized far the provision of share
options. The adoption of IFRS 2 led to the reclassification of CHF 39
miflion from provisions to equity and of CHF 9 miltion from deferred
tax assets to equity, resulting in a total impact on equity of CHF 30
million as at 31 December 2004. Of this amount CHF 22 million refers
to reporting periods up to 31 December 2003 and CHF 8 million to
2004. The adoption of IFRS 2 had a positive impact on the income
statement of CHF 2 million in 2004.

m The adoption of IFRS 3, 1AS 36 (revised) and IAS 38 (revised) re-
sulted in a change in the accounting policy for goodwill. Until 31 De-
cember 2004 goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over a
period ranging from ten to 20 years and assessed for an indication
of impairment at each balance sheet date.

» |FRS 3, Business combinations: In accordance with the provisions
of IFRS 3:

m The Group ceases amortization of goodwill from 1 January
2005;

= Accumulated amortization as at 1 January 2005 has been elimi-
nated with a corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill;

» From the year ended 31 December 2004 onwards, goodwill is
tested annually for impairment, as well as when there are indi-
cations of impairment.




» |AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (re-

vised): The modification of IAS 39 also comprised a clearer focus
with regard to the criteria for the de-recognition of financial instru-
ments an the balance sheet. In view of the new quidance and as a
result of an analysis performed related to the transfer of risk and
rewards, trade receivables securitized in the United States and
Germany in Asset Backed Securities (ABS) are now recognized in
the balance sheet. This led to an increase of trade receivables and
current financial debts of CHF 241 million in the balance sheet as at
31 December 2004.

IAS 21, The Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Atthe end
of 2005 the standard was amended to clarify that a loan between
subsidiaries of the Group (sister to sister loans) may form part of the
netinvestmentin a foreign operation if settiement of the loan is nei-
ther planned norlikely to occurin the foreseeable future. In addition
to that, the standard was amended with regard to exchange differ-
ences arising from the translation of a monetary item that is de-
nominated in a currency other than the functional currency of either
the reporting entity or the foreign operation. Such exchange rate
differences are recognized in equity in the consolidated financial
statements if the criteria for a monetary item to qualify as a netin-
vestmentin a foreign operation are met.

The amendments to |AS 21 are effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2006. Earlier adoption is however encour-
aged and the Group has adopted these amendments as of 1 January
2005.

|AS 28, Investments in Associates (revised): As a result of the re-
vised standard, the accounting policies of the German Infraserv
companies, which are valued at equity, were amended in arderto be
in line with all IFRS requirements. The financial statement was re-
stated and resulted in a consolidated change in equity as at 1 Janu-
ary 2004 in the amount of CHF 39 million. Investments in associates
increasedinthe amountof CHF 51 million. The major changesinvalu-
ations occurred in property, plant and equipment and provisions.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: The revised IAS 1 re-
quires that minority interests are included in equity. The adoption of
this requirement resulted in the reclassification of CHF 64 million to
equity in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2004. In addition to this,
IAS 1 (revised) now requires that net income in the income state-
mentincludes the minority shares. As a consequence of this the line
Netincome in the Cash flow statement now also includes the minor-
ity share of the netincome.

» |[FRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued opera-
tions: On 1 January 2005 IFRS 5 became effective. The standard
requires that non-current assets and assaociated liabilities be re-
parted separately in the balance sheet, if management is demon-
strably committed through a plan to sell them and if a sale is prob-
able within the next twelve months.

u |AS19,Employee benefits (revised): The amendment of paragraphs
32A,34-34B and 61 were adopted early, however this did not result
in any substantiaf changes to the Group’s accounting policies. The
amendments of paragraphs 120 — 121 were also adopted early. This
has affected the presentation of the reconciliation of the opening
and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets and the defined
benefit abligations and the elements of the pension plan expenses
recorded. Furthermore, this has resulted in additional disclosures
regarding pension plan assets and actuarial assumptions.

The option in paragraphs 93A - 93 D was not adopted by the Group.
Had it been adopted this would have reduced equity in the amount
of CHF 267 miflion as at 1 January 2604 and would have increased
Operating income by CHF 9 miilion in 2005 and CHF 13 million in 2004,
However, the Group has not yet decided whether it will adopt this
option in 2006.

w SIC 12, Equity compensation plans (revised}): Changes to the Stand-
ing Interpretations Committee SIC 12 came into force on 1 January
2005, which require the consolidation of equity compensation plans.
Prior to this change, there was no requirement under IFRS to con-
solidate these plans. As a result, Clariant consolidated the Employee
Participation Fund retrospectively with effect as of 1 January 2004.
The consolidation reduced the average shares outstanding by
266 020 due to additional Clariant Ltd shares being held by the for-
merly unconsolidated Employee Participation Fund, which holds a
fixed number of shares for employee compensation pfans. Further-
more, the balance sheetitem ‘Other current assets’ was reduced by
the amount of CHF 5 million. The consclidation of the fund does not
impact EPS to any significant extent, nor does it affect the Cash
flow statement,

Overall these changes had the following impact on the balance sheet
positions:

Opening balance as at 1 January 2004
Anincrease in Investments in associates by CHF 51 million,
A decrease in Deferred tax assets by CHF 21 million.
Anincrease in Trade receivables by CHF 241 million.
A decrease in Qther current assets by CHF 5 million,
Anincrease in Deferred income tax liabilities by CHF 15 miltion.
A decrease in Provision for non-current liabilities by CHF 30 mil-
- lion.
Anincrease in Current financial debts by CHF 241 million.
s Adecreasein Currentincome tax liabilities by CHF 6 million.
u Anincreasein Total equity by CHF 110 million, thereof CHF 84 million
as a result of the inclusion of Minority interests in the presentation
of Total equity.




Closing balance as at 31 December 2004

# Anincreasein Deferred tax assets by CHF 1 million.

u A decrease in Financial fixed assets by CHF 49 million due to the
separate presentation of Prepaid pension assets on the face of the
balance sheet.

w A decrease in Provision for non-current liabilities by CHF 488 mil-
lion of which CHF 479 million is due to the separate presentation of
Retirement benefit obligations on the face of the balance sheet.

m  Anincrease in Currentincome tax liabilities by CHF 28 million due
to the separate presentation of Current income tax receivables on
the face of the balance sheet.

s Anincreasein Netincome by CHF9 miliion, of which CHF 7 million is
due to the inclusion of profit attributable to Minority interests and 2
million due to the adoption of IFRS 2.

m  Anincreasein Total equity by CHF 112 million, thereof CHF 56 million
as a result of the inclusion of Minarity interests in the presentation
of Total equity.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance
withthetransition provisionsinthe respective standards. All standards
adopted by the Group require retrospective application other than:

w |FRS 2: retrospective application for all equity instruments granted
after 7 November 2002 and not vested at 1 January 2004,

= [FRS 3. prospective application for reporting periods beginning
after 31 March 2004.

m IFRS 5: prospective application for reporting periods beginning
after 1 January 2005.

Other new or improved standards had no impact on the Consolidated
. Financial Statements.

1.05 International Financial Repeorting Standards not yet effective
Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published that are mandatory for the Group's ac-
counting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 or later periods
but which the Group has not early adapted, as follows:

» |AS 39 (amendment), Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast In-
tragroup Transactions (effective from 1 January 2006): The amend-
ment allows the foreign currency risk of a highly probable forecast
intragroup transaction to qualify as a hedged item in the consoli-
dated financials statements, provided that: (a) the transaction is
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity entering into the transaction; and (b} the foreign currency
risk will affect consolidated profit or loss. The Group believes that
this amendment will not have any significant impact on the classifi-
cation of financial instruments.
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n |AS 39 {amendment), The Fair Value Option (effective from 1 Janu-
ary 2006): This amendment changes the definition of financial in-
struments classified at fair value through profit or loss and restricts
the ability to designate financial instruments as part of this catego-
ry. The Group believes that this amendment will not have any sig-
nificant impact an the classification of financial instruments.

u [FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective from 1 Janu-
ary 2007): This standard introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure
of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risk
arising from financial instruments, including specified minimum dis-
closures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces |AS 30, Disclosures in
the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institu-
tions, and disclosure requirements in |AS 32, Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation. It is applicable to all entities that re-
portunder IFRS. The Group assessed the impactof IFRS 7 and it was
not adopted early because this standard regulates disclosures only.
It would not have had any impact on the Group's accounting poli-
cies.

The above mentioned standards will be adopted as they become ef-
fective. Other new or revised standards will have no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

1.06 Scope of consalidation

» Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group has
an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies. These
entities are consolidated. The existence and effect of potential vot-
ing rights that are presently exercisable or presently convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls anoth-
er entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which con-
trol is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date control is terminated.

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is mea-
sured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments is-
sued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable as-
sets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of a minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill, [fthe costs of acquisition are less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in the income statement (see note 1.11).




w |nvestmentsinassociates: Associates are entities where the Group
has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or over which the
Group has significant influence, but which it does not control. In-
vestments in assaciates are accounted far by the equity methad of
accounting and are initially recognized at cost. The Group's invest-
ments in associates include goodwill {net of any accumulated im-
pairmentloss) identified on acquisition.

The company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of as-
sociates is recognized in the income statement and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the cost of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interestin the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize fur-
ther losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

All associates use the same set of accounting policies {IFRS) as ap-
ply to the consolidated accounts of the Group.

1.07 Principles and method of consolidation

The annual closing date of the individual financial statements is 31 De-
cember. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accord-
ance with the histarical cost convention except for the revaluation to
market value of certain financial assets and liabilities and applying uni-
form presentation and valuation principles.

Intercompany income and expenses, including unrealized gross profits
from internal Group transactions and intercompany receivahles and
payables, are eliminated. The results of minority interests are sepa-
rately disclosed in the income statement and balance sheet.

1.08 Reclassification
Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation (for details, refer to the respective notes).

1.09 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognized when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets have been transferred to a third party and
are reported net of sales taxes and rebates. Provisions for rebates to
customers are recognized in the same period that the related sales are
recorded, based on the contractterms.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking into
accountthe principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period
to maturity when it is determined that such income will accrue to the
Group. Dividends are recognized when the right to receive paymentis
established.

1.10 Exchange rate differences

= Functional currency: Items included in the financial statements of
.each entity are measured using the currency of the primary eco-
namic enviranment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”}). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Swiss francs, which is the functional and presentation currency of
the parent.

m Transactions and balances: Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, are recognized in the income statement, ex-
ceptwhendeferredin equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and net
investment hedges. Translation differences on debt securities and
other monetary financial assets measured at fair value are included
in foreign exchange gains and losses.

= Group companies: Income statements and cash flows of foreign en-
tities are translated into the Group’s presentation currency at sales
weighted average exchange rates for the year and their balance
sheets are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on 31 De-
cember. Exchange rate differences arising on the translation of the
net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings and other cur-
rency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are
taken to shareholders’ equity. Net investments also include loans
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
rate differences are recognized in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of for-
eign entities after 31 March 2004 are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

1.11 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are valued at historical acquisition or
production costs and depreciated on a straight-line basisto the income
statement, using the following maximum estimated useful lives in ac-
cordance with group’s guidelines:

s Buildings

s Machinery and equipment

m Furniture, vehicles, computer hardware
s landisnotdepreciated

40 years
16 years
5to 10 years

Financing costs associated with the construction of property, plant
and equipment are not capitalized.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or rec-
ognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the costs of the item can be measured reliably. All other re-
pairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.




Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount. These are included in the income statement.

1.12 Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the ac-
quired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on ac-
quisitions of associatesisincludedininvestmentsin associates. Good-
willistested annuallyforimpairmentand carried at costiessaccumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity in-
clude the carrying amount of goodwill reiating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of im-
pairment testing. Each of those cash generating units represents the
Group's investmentin each business segment.

Trademarks and licenses are capitalized at historical cost and amor-
tized on a straight-line basis to the income statement over their esti-
mated useful lives, with a maximum of ten years.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amartized on a straight-line basis to the income state-
ment over their estimated useful lives (three to five years). Costs as-
sociated with developing and maintaining computer software programs
are recognized as an expense when incurred. Costs that are directly
associated with the production of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate eco-
nomic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as
intangible assets. Direct costs include the software development em-
ployee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads,

1.13 Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets, including
goodwill and other intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment
losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment lossis recog-
nized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset ex-
ceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the income state-
ment and is first allocated to the goodwill allocated to the cash gener-
ating unit and then to the other assets of the cash generating unit. An
impairmentioss may be reversed, for assets excluding goodwill, in sub-
sequent periods if and only if there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount.

1.14 Inventories

Purchased goods are valued at acquisition cost, while self-manufac-
tured products are valued at manufacturing costs including related
production overhead costs. Borrowing costs are excluded. Inventory
held at the balance sheet date is primarily valued at standard cost,
which approximates to actual costs on a weighted average basis. This
valuation method is also used for valuing the cost of goods sold in the
income statement. Adjustments are made for inventories with a lower
netrealizable value. Unsaleable inventory is fully written off.

1.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subseguent-
ly measured at amortized cost, less impairment of trade receivabies. A
provision for the impairment of trade receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according tothe originalterms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest for similar borrowers. The
amount of the provision is recognized in the income statement.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits and calls
with banks, as well as short-term investment instruments with an ini-
tial lifetime of 90 days or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within finan-
cial debtin current liabilities on the balance sheet.

1.17 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Under 1AS 39 derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Depending on the type of
financial instrument, fair value calculation technigues include, but are
not limited to, quoted market value, present value of estimated future
cash flows (e.g. interest rate swaps) or corresponding exchange rates
at balance sheet date {e.g. forward foreign exchange contracts). The
method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss is dependent on wheth-
er the derivative contract is designated to hedge a specific risk and
qualifies for hedge accounting.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, Clariant designates
certain derivatives as either a) a hedge of the fair value of a recagnized
assetor liability (fair value hedge), b) a hedge of a forecast transaction
{cash flow hedge) or ¢} a hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives in fair value hedges that are
highly effective are recognized in the income statement, along with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that is at-
tributable to the hedged risk.




Changes in the fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges are recog-
nized as a hedging reserve in shareholiders’ equity. Where the forecast
transaction results in the recognition of an asset or liability, the gains
and losses previously included in equity are included in the initial mea-
surement of the asset or liability. Otherwise, amounts recorded in eg-
uity are transferred to the income statement and classified as revenue
or expense in the same period in which the forecast transaction af-
fects the income statement. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognized immediately in the income statement.

Hedges of netinvestments in foreign entities are accounted for similar
to cash flow hedges. Clariant hedges certain netinvestmentsin foreign
entities with foreign currency borrowings and cross currency swaps.
All foreign exchange gains and losses on the effective portion of the
hedge are recognized in equity and included in cumulative translation
differences. Any gains or losses relating to an ineffective portion are
recognized immediately in the income statement. Gains and Josses ac-
cumulated in equity are included in the income statement when the
foreign operation is disposed of.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no lon-
ger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in eguity and is recognized
inthe income statement when the committed or forecasttransactionis
ultimately recognized in the income statement. However, if a forecast
or committed transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumula-
tive gain or foss that was recognized in equity is immediately trans-
ferred to the income statement.

Certain derivative instruments, while providing effective economic
hedges under Clariant policies, do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not
gualify for cash flow hedge accounting under IAS 39 are recognized
immediately in the income statement.

Financial instruments are used in the normal course of business to re-
duce risk arising from currency translation and interest rate or price
movements. Clariant manages and records centrally its cover of vari-
ous positions arising from existing assets and liabilities as well as fu-
ture business transactions. To minimize counterparty risk, Clariant
enters into financial instruments only with reputable international
banks. The result of using financial instruments in Clariant’s risk man-
agement program is permanently monitored, checked and communi-
cated to Group management.

1.18 Leases

Leases under which the Clariant Group assumes substantially alf of the
risks and benefits of ownership are classified as finance leases. Atthe
inception of the lease, a lease asset and a lease liability are recognized
atthe lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present value
of the minimum lease payments. In subsequent periods the leased as-
setis depreciated on a straight-line basis, like other property, plantand
gquipment, over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease
term. The depreciation amount of the asset and the interest amount on
the finance lease liability are charged to the income statement.

Alease is classified as an operating lease if the substance of the trans-
action does not meet any of the requirements of a finance lease. Lease
payments under an operating lease are charged to the income state-
ment on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease.

1.19 Current income tax

The taxable profit (loss) of group companies, onwhich the reporting pe-
riod’s income tax payable (recoverable) is calculated using applicable
local tax rates, is determined in accordance with the rules established
by the taxation authorities of the countries in which they operate. Cur-
rent income taxes for current and prior periods, to the extent they are
unpaid, are recognized as liabilities. In case income taxes already paid
in respect of current and prior periods exceed the income tax liability
amount of those periods, the exceeding amounts are recognized as as-
sets. Currentincome tax receivables and current income tax liabilities
are offsetif there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and if there is the intention to settle on a net basis orto realize
the asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

1.20 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated using the comprehensive liability
method. This results from the temporary differences that arise be-
tween the recognition of items in the balance sheets of group compa-
nies used for tax purposes and the one prepared for consolidation
purposes. An exceptio‘n is that no deferred income tax is calculated for
the temporary differences in investments in group companies and as-
sociates provided that the investor (parent company) is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and itis probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fu-
ture, Furthermore, withholding taxes or other taxes on the eventual dis-
tribution of retained earnings of group companies, are only taken into
account when a dividend has been planned, since generally the re-
tained earnings are reinvested.
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Deferred taxes, calculated using applicable local tax rates, are includ-
ed in non-current assets and non-current liabilities, with any changes
during the year recorded in the income statement. Changes in deferred
taxes on items that are recognized in equity are recorded in equity.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {(and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the refated deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settied.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extentthatitis prob-
able that future taxable profit will be availabie against which the tem-
porary differences can be utilized.

1.21 Equity compensation benefits

In 2005 Clariant replaced its two equity compensation plans, the Clari-
ant Executive Stack Option Plan [CESOP) and the Management Stock
Incentive Plan {MSIP), by the Clariant Executive Bonus Plan (CEBP).
Under this new plan specific groups of executives and managers are
granted a certain number of registered shares in Clariant Ltd. The op-
tions and shares granted under the old plans up to February 2005 con-
tinue to vest. The fair value of the employee services received in ex-
change for the grant of the shares and options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount ta be expensed over the vesting and mea-
surement periods is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares and options granted. An adjustment is made for dividends not
distributed during the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of shares and options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of shares and options
expected to vest. It recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjust-
ment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

1.22 Obligations for pensions and similar employee benefits

Group companies operate various pension schemes. The Group has
both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit
planis a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefitthatan
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or con-
structive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to em-
ployee service in the current and priar periods.

Some Group companies provide post-retirement health care benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually condi-
tional an the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and
the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of
these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using an ac-
counting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans,
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions, are charged or credited to the in-
come statement over the expected average remaining working lives of
the related employees. These obligations are valued annually by inde-
pendent qualified actuaries.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to pub-
licly or privately administered pensioninsurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obti-
gations once the contributions have been paid. Contributions to de-
fined contribution plans are recorded in the income statement in the
period to which they relate.

For defined benefit plans, the amount to be recognized in the provision
is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, according to
which, each period of employee service gives rise to an additional unit
of benefit entitlement and each unitis measured separately to build up
the final obligation. Actuarial valuation technigues that take into con-
sideration the demographic and financial assumptions are used to de-
termine the carrying value of the net post-employment liability. Inde-
pendent actuaries perform these valuations.

The portion of the actuarial gains and iosses to be recognized as in-
come or expense is the excess of the net cumulative unrecognized ac-
tuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting year over
the greater of 10% ofthe present value of the defined benefit obligation
atthat date or 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date, di-
vided by the expected average remaining working lives of the employ-
ees participating in the plan.

Termination benefits are provided for in accordance with the legal re-
quirements of certain countries. Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when itis de-
monstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current
employees accordingto a detailed formal plan without possibility of with-
drawal, or praviding termination benefits as a resuft of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.




The charges for defined benefit plans, defined contribution plans and
termination benefits are included in personnel expenses and reported
in the income statement under the corresponding functions of the re-
lated employees and in expenses for restructuring and impairment.

1.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a binding present obli-
gation. This may be either legal because it derives from a contract,
legislation or other operation of law, or constructive because the Group
created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting
certain responsibilities. To record such an gbligation it must be proba-
ble that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for
the amount of the abligation. The amount recognized as a provision is
the best estimate (most probable cutcome) of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The non-cur-
rent provisions are discounted if the impact is material.

1.24 Research and development

Research and development expenses are capitalized to the extent that
the recognition criteria according to |1AS 38 are met. The Group consid-
ersthatregulatory and other uncertaintiesinherentin the development
of key new products preclude it from capitalizing development costs.
Atthe balance sheet date, no research and development projects met
the recognition criteria. Laboratory buildings and equipmentincluded
in property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. The reason for this practice is the structure of research
and development in the industries that Clariant engages in, making it
difficult to demonstrate how singular intangible assets will generate
probable future economic benefits.

1.25 Segment reporting

Clariantis divided operationally on a worldwide basis into the following
five divisions, which at the same time are the Group's reportable busi-
ness segments;

m Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals

s Pigments & Additives

s Functional Chemicals

u Life Science Chemicals

a Masterbatches

These Divisions which are based on internal management structures,
are best described as follows:

The Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals Division is a supplier of spe-
cialty chemicals and dyes for the textile, leather and paper industries.
Textile dyesinclude dispersion, reactive, acid and sulfur dyes. The Tex-
tile Business encompasses special chemicals for pretreatment, dye-
ing, printing and finishing of textiles. Optical brighteners and chemicals
for functional treatment are also part of the range. The Paper Business
supplies paper dyes, optical brighteners and process and pulping
chemicals. The Leather Business produces chemicals for refining. Its
offering inciudes all chemicals for finishing and dyeing as well as a
complete range of wet-end chemicals.

The Pigments & Additives Division develops and produces pigments
for paints and lacquers, for plastics and for special applications. The
product range includes high-performance pigments to meet the spe-
cific demands of the automotive and electronics industries. Printing
pigments are supplied to the printing ink industry, and, increasingly, for
non-impact printing, ink jet and laser printing. The core business also
includes additives to improve heat resistance as well as light and
weather resistance of plastics and paint. Halogen-free flame retar-
dants are used in protective coatings, resins, thermoplastics and poly-
ester fibers. The division’s portfolio also includes high-quality waxes
based on various materials.

The Functional Chemicals Division's products are based on surfactants
and polymers. The Detergents Business, which offers anionic and
cationic surfactants, as well as bleach activators, is a partner to the
detergent industry. Performance Chemicals supplies such different
industries as personal care products, crop protection, paints, lacquers
and plastics. The Process Chemicals Business markets products for
the production and refining of oil and natural gas and for metalworking,
mining and the aerospace and autometive industry.

The Life Science Chemicals Division has two Businesses. The Pharma
Business is a service partner for the launch of new drugs and supplies
customer-specific late stage intermediates with a high degree of syn-
thesis, patented active ingredients and around 30 different generic
active substances. Specialty Fine Chemicals covers a wide range of
industrial applications with its silane derivatives, glyoxalic acid deriva-
tives and diketene-based chemicals. It also supplies precursors and
active ingredients for crop protection agents.

The Masterbatches Division supplies color and additive concentrates
and special mixtures of these components mainly for plastic proces-
sors. Atthe local level each of the division’s production plants provides
a complete technical service for all products and applications.




Corporate: Income and expenses relating to Corporate include the
costs of the Group headquarters and those of corporate coordination
functions in major countries. In addition, Corporate includes certain
items of income and expense, which are not directly attributable to
specific divisions.

The Group’s divisions are business segments that offer different prod-
ucts. These business segments are managed separately because they
manufacture, distribute and sell distinct products, which require dif-
fering technologies and marketing strategies. These products are also
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other busi-
ness segments. Geographical segments provide products within a
particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those operating in other economic environ-
ments. The Group designates business segments as its primary report-
able segments and geographical segments as its secondary reportable
segments.

Segment revenue is revenue reported in the company’s income state-
ment thatis directly attributable to a segment and the relevant portion
of the company income that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
a segment, whether from sales to external customers or from transac-
tions with other segments.

Segment expense is an expense resulting from the operating activities
of a segment that is directly attributable to the segment and the rele-
vant portion of an expense that can be allocated on a reasonable basis,
including expenses relating to sales to external customers and ex-
penses relating to transactions with other segments.

Intersegment sales are determined on an arm’s length basis.

Division and business net operating assets consist primarily of prop-
erty, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and receiv-
ables less operating liabilities. Corporate assets and liabilities princi-
pally consist of net liquidity (cash, cash equivalents and other current
financial assets less financial debts) and deferred and current taxes.

1.26 Treasury shares

Treasury shares are deducted from equity at their par value of CHF4.75
per share. Differences between this amount and the amount paid for
acquiring, or received for disposing of treasury shares are recorded in
retained earnings.

1.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholdersisrecognized asa
liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

1.28 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held
for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

The Group did not have any non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale at the balance sheet date.

1.29 Share capital
All issued shares are ordinary shares and as such are classified as
equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the pro-
ceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s equity share
capital (Treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any direct-
ly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders until the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related in-
come tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the company’s
equity holders.

1.30 Financial debt

Financial debt is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Financial debt is subsequently stated at amortized
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognized in the income statement over
the period of the financial debt.

Financial debt is classified as a current liability where it is due within
12 months from the balance sheet date. This includes the portion of
non-current debt thatis due within 12 months. Financial debtis classi-
fied as a non-current liability where the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after the
balance sheet date.

1.31 Investments

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: finan-
cial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its in-
vestments on initial recognition and reevaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

n Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: This category
has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A finan-
cial assetis classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term or if so designated by manage-
ment. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classi-
fied as current assets if they are either held for trading or are ex-
pected to be realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date.




m Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money and goods directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are included in current assets in the balance
sheet.

u Held-to-maturity investments: Held-to-maturity investments are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pay-
ments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

= Avaitable-for-sale financial assets: Available-for-sale financial as-
sets are non-derivatives that are either designated to the category
or not classified to any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. There were
no outstanding balances in the reporting periods presented.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on settlement
date, that is the date on which the Group receives or delivers the asset.
Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Graup hastransferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. Realized and unreatized
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through the profit or loss’ category are included in
the income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealized
gains and losses arising from changesinthe fair value of non-monetary

securities classified as available-for-sale are recognized in equity.’

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income
statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.
If the market for a financial asset is not active {and for unlisted securi-
ties), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, and option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s
specific circumstances.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is ob-
jective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair vaiue of the security
below its costis considered in determining whether the securities are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed
from equity and recognized in the income statement. impairment loss-
es recognized in the income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement.

1.32 Emission rights

In 2005 the European Union started a system whereby companies are
granted certain amounts of rights to emit carbon dioxide. These rights
are initially granted free of charge and can be exchanged with other
companies. At present the accounting for such emission rights is not
clearly regulated by IFRS. Clariant accounts for these rights as follows:

At the time the Group receives emission rights from the govémments,
these are recognized as intangible assets at fair value (usually repre-
sented by the market price). The difference between the amount paid
which is usually nil, since the rights are assigned by the governments
free of charge, and the fair value of the emission right is recognized as
a liability.

When the rights are used in operating activities, this is recognized by
recording an expense based on the actual emission in the income
statement and a liability in the balance sheet. At the same time, the li-
ability recorded on initial recognition of the emission right is released
proportionally to the income statement. At the end of the reporting pe-
riod the liability recorded as a result of the use of the emission rights
and the assetinitially recognized for emission rights are offset against
each other. If any emission rights are purchased from third parties,
they are recorded at historical costs which is usually fair value. ;

The carrying values of emission rights and the corresponding liability
are not revalued due to the subsequent fluctuations in market price.

When emissionrights are sold the respective amountrecognized as an
intangible asset and the respective amount recognized as a liability in
the balance sheet are derecognized. The difference between the sale
price obtained in the disposal and the net amount of the intangible as-
set and the liability derecognized is recorded as an income or an ex-
pense in the income statement.
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2. Financial risk management

2.1 Financial risk factors. The group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk {including currency rate risk, cash flow
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and set-
tlementrisk. The groups’ overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential
adverse effects on the group’s financial performance at reasonable
hedging costs. The group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain risk exposures.

Financial risk managementis carried out by a central treasury depart-
ment {(Group Treasury) under policies approved by Management and
the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedg-
es financial risks in close cooperation with the group’s operating units.
Written principles for overall foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments, non-derivative financial instruments
and investing excess liquidity (counterparty risk) are in place.

Market Risk

w Foreign exchange risk: The group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respectto the euro and the US dollar. For-
eign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign op-
erations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future commer-
cial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities, entities in
the group use forward contracts and FX options, according to the
group'’s foreign exchange risk palicy. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions and recognized assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency thatis notthe entity’s func-
tional currency. Group Treasury is responsible, in close coordina-
tion with the group’s operating units, for managing the net position
in each foreign currency by performing appropriate hedging actions.

The group’s risk management policy is to selectively hedge net
transaction FX exposures in each major currency according to de-
fined hedging ratios.

The group has certaininvestments in foreign operations, whose net
assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the group’s foreign opera-
tions are managed primarily through borrowings denominated in
the relevant foreign currency.
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n Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk: As the group has no sig-
nificant interest-bearing assets, the group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market in-
terest rates.

The group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from financial debt. Fi-
nancial debt issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Financial debt issued at fixed rates expose the
group to fair value interest rate risk. Group policy is to maintain
more than 50% of its borrowings in fixed rate instruments, provided
the risk of rising interestrates is seen to be material. Downside in-
terest views allow for a lower fixed rate portion of interest bearing
financial debt. Atyear end, 43% of financial debt was at fixed rates.

Credit risk

The group has no significant concentration of credit risk. It has a group
credit risk policy in place to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers after an appropriate credit limit allocation process. Deriva-
tive counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The group has limits that restrict the
amount of cash being held with financial institutions as well as the
amount of open transactions based on their credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient, but
not excessive, cash and marketable securities, the availability of fund-
ing through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions, Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business, Group Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in fund-
ing by keeping reasonable amounts of committed credit lines available.

Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk that a settlement in a transfer system does
not take place as expected. Itis part of operational risk that comprises
all kinds of risks that arise from weak or inadequate internal processes
within the Group, but also due to human and system-based failures.

The group manages settlement risk by relying on a safe and efficient
payment system, by entering into financial transactions only with es-
tablished counterparties which have integrity and are technically able
to settle transactions, and by double checking the deal details (deriva-
tives and loans) through the Treasury middle office.

2.2 Fair value estimation. The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted mar-
ket price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.




The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market {for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for non-current debt. Other technigues,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest-
rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is de-
termined using forward exchange market rates atthe balance sheet date.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of fu-
ture events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the re-
lated actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a signifi-
cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(1) Estimated impairment of goodwill and

property, plant and equipment

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impair-
ment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated above in note
1.12. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been de-
termined based on value-in-use calculations. In the same procedure
the recoverable value of property, plant and equipmentis also assessed
according to the same rules. These calculations require the use of es-
timates, in particular in relation to the expected growth of sales, dis-
countrates, the development of raw material prices and the success of
the restructuring measures which are being implemented as part of the
restructuring program {See notes 5 and 27).

{2) Environmental liabilities

The group is exposed to environmental regulations in numerous juris-
dictions. Significantjudgmentisrequired in determining the worldwide
provision for environmental remediation. The group constantly moni-
tors its sites to ensure compliance with legislative requirements and to
assess the liability arising from the need to adapt to changing legal
demands. The group recognizes liabilities for environmental remedia-
tion based on the latest assessment of the enviranmental situation of
the individual sites and the mostrecent requirements of the respective
legislation. Where the final remediation results in expenses that differ
fram the amounts that were previously recorded, such differences will
impactthe income statementin the period in which such determination
was made (See notes 16, 19 and 32).

(3) Income and other taxes

The group is subject to income and other taxes in numerous jurisdic-
tions. Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision forincome and other taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain dur-
ing the ordinary course of business. The group recognizes liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is dif-
ferent from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

{4) Estimates for the accounting for employee benefits

IAS 19, Employee benefits requires that certain assumptions are made
in order to determine the amount to be recorded for retirement benefit
obligations and pension plan assets, in particular for defined benefit
plans. These are mainly actuarial assumptions such as expected infla-
tionrates, long-term increase in health care costs, employee turnover,
expected return on plan assets and discount rates. Substantial chang-
esin the assumed development of any one of these variables may sig-
nificantly change the Group's retirement benefit obligation and pension
plan assets (See note 15).




4. Property, plant and equipment

CHF mn Land Buildings  Machinery Furniture, Plantunder Total Insured

and vehicles, construction value at

equipment computer 31 December

hardware
At 1 January 2004

Cost 637 2392 5132 577 163 8901
Accumulated depreciation - 151 -1508 -3983 - 483 - -6125
Net book value 486 884 1149 94 163 2776
Additions 3 25 95 18 148 289
Reclassifications -1 27 102 10 -138 0
Disposals -27 -73 -78 -12 -23 -213
Depreciation -64 - 207 -35 - 306
Impairment -17 -21 -1 -38
Exchange rate differences -17 -2 -26 0 -3 - 67
At 31 December 2004 444 761 1014 74 147 2440
Cost 593 2274 4893 508 147 8415
Accumulated depreciation - 149 -1513 -3879 -434 - -5975

Net book value 444 761 1014 74 147 2440 9862
! Additions 6 2 78 18 225 348
| Acquisitions 5 1 ' 6
! Reclassifications -7 51 109 10 | -163. 0
Disposals -4 -4 -23 -1 -2/ -34
' Depreciation -61 - 182 -30 ! -273
' Impairment -5 17 -54 : 3 -76
. Reversal of impairment ‘ 1 1% : ‘ 17
i Exchange rate differences 24 76 62 7. 8 177
!\t 31 December 2005 463 828 1021 8 215, 2605
Cost 619 2480 5088 526 ¢ 215 8928

Accumulated depreciation - 156 - 1652 -4067 -448 ! ‘ -6323 ‘

Net book value : 463 828 1021 78 215, 2605 10074

The capitalized costof PPE under finance lease contracts at31 Decem-  As at31 December 2005, commitments for the purchase of PPE totaled
ber 2005 amounts to CHF 27 million with a book value of CHF 25 million ~ CHF 41 million (2004: CHF 45 miltion).

(2004: CHF 25 million and CHF 10 million respectively). Assets held un-

der finance lease contract are mainly buildings. The corresponding lia-

bility related to finance lease contracts is disclosed in note 14.




5. Intangible assets

CHF mn Goodwill Other Total
At1 January 2004
Cost 2807 129 2936
Accumulated amortization -2388 -97 -2485
Netbook value 419 32 451
Additions 17 8 25
Disposals -17 - 12 -29
Amortization -30 -10 -40
Exchange rate differences -2 -2
At 31 December 2004 3817 18 405
Cost 2807 13 2920
Accumulated amortization -2420 -95 -2515
Net book value 387 18 405
Additions 12 5 17.
Amortization -10 -10
Exchange rate differences 4 2 6
At 31 December 2005 403 15 418
Cost’ 403 122 525
Accumulated amortization -107 -107
Net book value 403 15 418

t Accumulated amoritization as at ¥ January 2005 has been eliminated with &
corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill.

The amount reported as goodwill is the result of a number of acquisiti-
ons invarious divisions. The principal amount is the goodwill arising on
the acquisition of BTP in 2000 with a carrying amount of CHF 330 million
pertaining to the Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals Division. All good-
will is tested annually for impairment. Other intangibles comprise pa-
tents, trademarks and software etc. Clariant does not have any inter-
nally generated intangible assets.

Additions to the carrying amount of goodwill in 2005 mainly include CHF
3 million of goodwill arising from the purchase of business activities
(see note 24) and CHF 8 million from the purchase of minority shares of

Goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs:

Colour-Chem Ltd, Mumbai, a fully consolidated subsidiary of the Group.
In addition to that, CHF 1 million of goodwill arising from the purchase
of minority shares of various fully consolidated subsidiaries of the
Group was recognized.

Impairment test for goodwill.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs).
CGUs consist of either business segments in accordance with the
Group’s segment reporting or, in the case where independent cash
flows can be identified, of parts of the respective Business segment.

CHF mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Textiles 6 3
Leather 33N 331
Pigments & Additives 29 24
Masterbatches 30 27
Functional Chemicals 7 2

Net book value at 31 December 2005 403 387

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year peri-
od. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated. The main
assumption used for cash flow projections were EBITDA in percent of
sales and sales growth. The assumptions regarding these two variables
are based on management’s past experience and future expectations
of business performance. The pre-tax discount rates used are based

on the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for specific
country and currency risks associated with the cash flow projections.
The assumed discountrate was 9% for all cash generating units.

The most important part of goodwill is the amount of CHF 330 million
remaining fram the BTP acquisition in 2000. This goodwill is allocated
to the CGU Leather. For the impairment testing procedure it was as-
sumed thatthe CGU would achieve sales growth above market growth
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for the planning period. It was also assumed that EBITDA in percent of
sales willincrease over present performance due to the optimization of
structural costs. If the assumed growth rate was reduced by 1%, the
carrying amount of the CGU Leather would exceed its recoverable
amount by approximately CHF 19 million. The CGU Leather’s recover-
able amount and the carrying amount would be equal if the assumed
rate of sales growth was reduced by 0.6%.

The CGU Masterbatches holds goodwill in the amount of CHF 30 mil-
lion. Forthe impairmenttesting procedure it was assumed thatthe CGU

6. Investments in associates

will achieve sales growth slightly above market growth for the plan-
ning period. It was also assumed the EBITDA in percent of sales will
improve over present perfarmance as a result of the restructuring
measures implemented. The CGU Pigments & Addditives holds good-
will in the amount of CHF 29 million. For the impairment testing proce-
dure it was assumed that the CGU will achieve sales growth above
market growth. It was also assumed that the EBITDA in percent of
sales will improve over present performance as a result of the restruc-
turing measures implemented.

CHEmn 2005 2004
Beginning of the year 277 312
Effect of the restatement’ E 51

Beginning of the year (restated) 277! 363
Acquisitions and disposals 3 - 69
Share of profit/loss 23 26
Dividends received - 24 -3
Reclassifications to other assets -2 -5
Exchange rate differences 5 7

End of the year 282 271

! Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.

The key financial data of the Group's principal associates are as follows:

CHFmn Country of Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit/ % Interest

incorporation Loss held

2004
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Hochst KG Germany 1088 557 1399 45 32
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG Germany 183 83 291 9 50
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG Germany 170 64 233 B 21
Others 95 50 373 4 -

Total 1536 754 2296 64

CHF mn Country of Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit/ % Interest

incorporation Loss held

2005 J i
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Héchst KG Germany 1039 ' 525 1260 35 32
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG Germany 195 ©99 306 8 50
Infraserv GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG Germany 169 L o240 8 21
Others 13 - 81 239 8 ~

Total 1516 @ 749 2045 59

There were no unrecognized losses in the years 2005 and 2004. No ac-
cumulated unrecognized losses existed as at the Balance sheet date.
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7. Financial assets 8. Taxes
CHF mn 2005 2004 CHFmn 2005 2004
Beginning of the year 47 2 Currentincome taxes -68 -139
Exchange rate differences -1 -1 Deferred income taxes -10 -2
Accrued interest 3 -
Reclassification - 5  Total -18 -4
from associates ! Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.
Additions - 41
Capital reduction ‘ -2 -~ The main elements contributing to the difference between the Group's
and di;posals overall expected tax expense/rate and the effective tax expense/rate are:
End of the year 47 47 2005 2004
CHFmn % CHFmn %
Financial assets include the following: Income befare tax ‘ 2170 300
CHE mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004 Expected tax expense/rate? -75 278 -96 32.0
Vendor loan note 44 41 Effect of taxes on items -34 128 -46 155
Other investments 3 ) not tax-deductible
Effect of utilization and 40 -14.8 15 -51
Total ‘ a7 47 changes in recognition of
tax losses and tax credits
' Restated. Pension plan asset is now shown separately on the face of the Balance Effect of tax losses and tax -8 3.0 -4 13
sheet. credits of current year not
recognized
The Vendor loan note was accepted as part of the payment for the dis- Effect of adjustmentsto - 10 -37 -8 26
posal of Electronic Materials in 2004, currenttaxes due to prior
periods
The carrying amounts of the above assets are classified as follows: Effect of tax exempt 2 -08 14 -47
income
CHF mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004 Effect of other items -13 48 -16 5.4
Held to maturity 44 M .
Designated at fair value 3 6 Effective tax expense/rate -718 289 -141 470
through profitor loss ! Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.
2 Calculated based onthe incame before tax of each subsidiary {(weighted average).
Total 47 47

Compared to 2004 the expected tax rate was significantly lower in 2005
because a larger part of the profit was incurred in low tax countries.

The movement of the net deferred tax balance is as follows:

CHFmn 2005 2004
Beginning of the year ' -129 -128
Exchange rate differences -1 1
Income statement charge -10 -2

End of the year ‘ - 140 -129




8. Taxes (continued)

9. Inventories

{

The deferred tax assets and liabilities arose as follows on the different |~ j '31.12.2005| 31.12.2004
types of temporary differences: Raw material, consum- ; 597§ 522
ables, work in progress | ; j
CHF mn 31.12.2005: 31.12.2004 Finished products ; ggg; 803
Deferred tax liabilities on: ' ' : ‘ ‘,
PPE and intangible assets | L 380 318 Total 1535 1325
Prepaid pensions, other ‘ 10 70
accruals and provisions | ‘ CHEmn 2005 2004
Total deferred tax liabilities | 330 388 Movements in write-downs :
f : of inventories :

Deferred tax assets on: Beginning of the year 68 100
PPE andintangible assets | v 68 63 Write-downs an ; 71 48
Retirement benefit ‘ 84 83 inventories :
obligations \ Reversal of write-downs ‘ - 64 -80
Tax losses carried forward 4 45 :
and tax credits ‘ ‘ End of the year ‘ 15, 68
Other accruals and ‘ ; 57| 68
provisions ‘ : The Costofinventories recognized as an expense and included in Costs

Total deferred tax assets 250, 959  of goods sold amounted to CHF 3 593 million (2004: CHF 3 538 million).

! Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.

Deferredtax assets capitalized on tax losses carried forward comprise
ataxloss capitalized inthe French subsidiaries in the amount of CHF 18
million. Clariant is confident it can recover this tax loss as a result of
the efforts made both in the restructuring program and in the imple-
mentation of the new Principal structure.

The total of temporary differences on investments in subsidiaries, for
which no deferred taxes were calculated, was CHF 1 024 million at 31
December 2005 (CHF 1 173 million at 31 December 2004).

Tax losses on which no deferred tax assets were calculated are as
follows:

CHE mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Expiry by: ‘
2005 : - 34
2006 .32 32
2007 : 31 31
2008 ‘ 699! 930
2009 640; -
after 2009 753 1289
(2004 after 2008)

Total 2155 2316

CHEF ma 31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Unrecognized tax credits [ 6. 3

The tax credits expire between 2006 and 2011.

10. Trade receivables

CHF mn 31.12.2005§ 31.12.2004'
Trade receivables gross 1555 1439
Less: provision for i : -67 - 65
impairment of trade ‘ ‘
receivables ; 3 \

|
Total trade receivables - net | 1488 1374

' Restated, referto note 1.04 for details.

There is ne concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receiv-
ables, as the Group has a large number of customers, internationally
dispersed.

The Group hasrecognized aloss of CHF 22 million (2004: CHF 17 million)
for the impairment of trade receivables during the year ended 31
December 2005. The loss has been included in marketing and distribu-
tion in the income statement.

The amount recognized in the books for trade receivables is equal to
their fair value.




11. Other current assets
Other current assets include the following:

CHE mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004!
Other receivables 229 226
Current financial assets 45 153
Prepaid expenses 70 40
and accrued income

Total 344 419

' Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.

Other receivables include staff loans, advances, advance payments
and depaosits.

Current financial assets include deposits with a term exceeding 90
days, securities and loans to third parties and are classified as finan-
cial assets at fair value through profit or loss atinception.

13. Changes in share capital and treasury shares

12. Cash and cash equivalents

CHF mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Cash atbank and on hand 215 306
Short-term bank deposits 8 1171

Total 223 1477

The effective interestrate on short-term bank depositsin CHF was 0.68%
(2004: 0.46%); these deposits have an average maturity of 70 days.

The effective interestrate on short-term bank deposits in EUR was 2.07%
(2004: 2.0%]); these deposits have an average maturity of 1.7 days.

There were no major cash flows on short-term bank deposits denomi-
nated in other currencies.

Registered shares each with a par Number of shares: Parvalue Number of shares Parvalue
value of CHF 4.75 (2004: CHF 5) 2005 2005 2004 2004
CHF mn CHFmn
At1January 230160000 1093 153440000 767
Issuance of share capital ‘ 76720000 384
At 31 December 230160000 1093 230160000 1151
Treasury shares - 3867 293 -18 -3388421 -17
Outstanding capital at 31 December 226 292 707 1075 226771579 1134
Treasury shares (number of shares) 2005 2004
Holdings at 1 January 3388421 3532869
Adjustment due to the inclusion of - 266020
employee participaticn fund shares i
Holdings at 1 January (restated) 3388421 3798889
Shares purchased at fair market value 1060000 721642
~ Shares sold at fair market value -150 000 - 800000
Shares transferred to employees -431128 -332110
Holdings at 31 December 3867293 3388421

All shares are duly authorized and fully paid in.

Dividends are paid out as and when declared and are paid out equally
on all shares, including treasury shares.

In accordance with Article 5 of the Articles of Incorporation, no limita-
tions exist with regard to the registration of shares which are acquired
in one’s own name and on one’s own account. Special rules exist for
nominees.

In accordance with Article 12 of the Articles of Incorporation, each
share has the rightto one vote. A shareholder can only vote for his own
shares and for represented shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the total
share capital.
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14. Non-current financial debts

CHFmn Interestrate Term:  Original amount Repurchased Net amount Nzt amount
in % | 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Straight bonds 4125 1996-2008| ‘200 -4 ; 159 154
Straight bonds 3.750 1997—20072 200! -25 1 175 175
Straight bonds 3.000 1998-2005| 250 -250 ’ ~ 201
Straight bonds 4.250 2000—20081 500: -116 ; 384 384
Total straight bonds i 1150: -432 718 914
Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions’ 57 1424
Obligations under finance leases ; 22 7
Subtotal ! 797 2345
Less current portion | <198 - 622
Total ‘ ; 599 1723
Breakdown by maturity 2006 ‘ 345
2007] 180 644
2008, 393 555
2009: 17

2010
thereafter 26 8
Total 599 1723
Breakdown by currency CHF 559 793
EUR 24 287
uUsh 3 -
JPY | - 603
other ? 13 40
Total 599 1723

Fair value comparison (including current portion)

Straight bonds 744. 950
Others 79 1507
Total 823 2457
Total net book value of assets pledged as collateral for financial debts 101 66
Total collaterized financial debts ,‘ 22 28

! Average interestratein 2005: 4.3% (2004: 4.7%).

In 2005, bonds in the amount of CHF 201 million were paid back on ex-
piry in order to reduce financial debt (CHF 250 million in 2004).

in 2005, drawings under two facilities were prematurely repaid in the
amount of CHF 964 million.

Covenants. After having paid back substantial amounts of bank loans,
Clariant Ltd is now borrowing and guaranteeing all obligations under
one remaining syndicated bank facility. The facility ranks pari passu
with all other unsubordinated third-party debt.

The facility contains customary covenants that restrict the sale of as-
sets, mergers, liens, sale-leaseback transactions and acquisitions, and
requires the Group to maintain specified interest cover ratios, These
ratios are tested atthe end of each financial half-year. The facility does
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not affect the ability of the Group to utilize its accounts receivable se-
curitization program. The Group is in compliance with all covenants.

Exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes

n Bonds: The interestrates of all bonds are fixed.

n Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions: Mostly consist-
ing of syndicated bank loans with variable interestrates {LIBOR plus
applicable margin according to a defined pricing grid based on the
Group's performance).

w Otherfinancial debt: Mostly current debt at variable interest rates.




15. Retirement benefit obligations

Apartfrom the legally required social security schemes, the Group has
numerous independent pension plans. The assets are principally held
externally. For certain Group companies however, no independent as-
sets exist for the pension and other non-current employee benefit obli-
gations. In these cases the related liability is included in the balance
sheet.

Defined benefit post-employment plans

Defined benefit pensions and termination plans cover the majority of
the Group’s employees. Future abligations and the corresponding as-
sets of those plans considered as defined benefit plans under IAS 19
are reappraised annually and reassessed at least every three years by
independent actuaries. Assets are valued at fair values. US employees

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations:

transferred to Clariant with the Hoechst Specialty Chemicals business
remain insured with Hoechst for their pension claims incurred prior to
30 June 1997.

Post-employment medical benefits

The Group operates a number of post-employment medical benefit
schemesinthe USA, Canada and France. The method of accounting for
the liahilities associated with these plans is similar to the one used for
defined benefit pension schemes. These plans are not externally fund-
ed, but are covered by provisions in the balance sheets of the Group
companies concerned.

Expenses for net benefits are recorded in the same line and function in
which the personnel casts are recorded.

CHF mn Pension plans (funded Post-employment
and unfunded) medical benefits

{unfunded)

2005 2004 2005 2004

Beginning of the year 1828 1764 86 113
Current service cost 54 61 2 2
interest costs on obligation 83 85 5 6
Contributions to plan by employees n 12 - -
Benefits paid out to personnel in reporting period -92 T .64 -5 -3
Actuarial loss (gain) of reporting period 155. - 12 -
Past service costs (gains) of reporting period - - - -24
Termination benefits - 24 - -
Losses {gains) on curtailments or settlements 2 -2 - -1
Reduction in obligations due to divestitures -7. -24 - -
Exchange rate differences 63 -28 13 -7

End of the year 2097 1828 13 86

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

CHE mn 2005 2004
Beginning of the year 1310 1243
Expected return on plan assets 72 67
Contributions to plan by employees n 12
Contributions to plan by employer 69 40
Benefits paid outto personnel in reporting period - 66 -43
Actuarial gain (loss) of reporting period 123 31
Termination benefits - -6
Gains (losses) on curtailments or settlements - -2
Reduction in assets due to divestitures - -9
Exchange rate differences 48‘ -23

End of the year 1567 1310

The Group expects to contribute CHF 44 million to its defined benefit
pension plans in 2006.

The pension plan assets include registered shares issued by the com-
pany with a fair value of CHF 397 000 at 31 December 2005 {2004: CHF
124 000).
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The amounts recognized in the balance sheet:

CHFmn Defined benefit pension Post-employment Total
plans medical benefits

2005 2004 2005! 2004 2005 2004

Presentvalue of funded obligations ‘ -1653 -1475 | : - 1653 -1475
Fair value of plan assets : 1567 1310} | ‘ 1567 1310

| ¢

Deficit - 86 -165 - 86 - 165
Presentvalue of unfunded obligations ‘ -444 -353 -3 - 86 - 557 -439
Unrecognized actuarial losses (gains) ; 251 219 16 3 267 222
Unrecognized past service costs (gains) -20 -20 -20 -20
Net liabilities in the balance sheet 1 -279 -299 -112 -103 - 396 - 402

Thereof recognized in:

CHEmn j 2005 2004 2005, 2004 2005 2004
Defined benefit obligation : - 356 - 348 - 17, -103 -473 - 451
Prepaid pension assets 77 49 ~1 - 77 49

Net liabilities in the balance sheet 3 - 279 -299 -117| -103. - 396 -402

! \

for defined benefit plans

The amounts recognized in the income statement:

CHFmn 2005/ 2004, 2005 2004 2005 2004
Current service cost - 54 - 61 -2 - 2| - 56 - 63
Interest cost -83 -85 -5 -8 -88 -91
Expected return on plan assets 72 67 - - 72 67
Net actuarial losses recognized . -9 -13 —% — -9 -13
inthe current year i i ‘

Past service costs recognized i - - 3 2: 3 2

inthe current year ;

Termination benefits = - 30{ - - -30

Effect of curtailments and settlements w - 1( -9% - - -1 -9

Total expenses : - 751 <131 -4 -6 -79 -137
Actual return on plan assets | 195 98 195 98

Reconciliation to prepaid pension assets and retirement benefit obli-
gations reported in the balance sheet:

CHF mn 2005 2004
Defined benefit obligation -473 - 451
Defined contribution abligation -34 - 28

Retirement benefit obligations - 507! -479

Prepaid pension assets 77 49

Net retirement henefit obligations recognized -430] -430
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The majer categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan as-

sets:
2005 2004
% %
Equities 46 46
Bonds K3 27
Cash 7 12
Property ] 9
Alternative investments 7 6
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date in % weight-
ed average:
2005 2004
% %
Discountrate 4.0 4.6
Expected return on plan assets 5.4 5.3
Expected inflation rate 2.4 2.8
Long-term increase in health care costs 9.5 9.4

A ane percentage point change in health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects:

CHF mn One percentage  One percentage
pointincrease point decrease
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost 1 -1
Effect on defined benefit obligation 8 -6
Amounts for current and previous period:
Defined benefit pension plans 2005. 2004
CHFmn
Defined benefit obligation for pension pians, funded and unfunded -2097 -1828
Fair value of plan assets 1567 1310
Deficit -530 -518
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 155
Experience adjustments on plan assets 123 31
Post-employment medical benefits 2005 2004
CHFmn
Defined benefit obligation for post-employment medical plans - 113 - 86
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 12

Defined contribution post-emplioyment plans.

[n 2005, CHF 34 miflion were charged to the income statements of the
Group companies as contributions to defined contribution plans (2004:
CHF 34 million).
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16. Movements in provisions for non-current liabilities

CHFmn Non-current Non-current Non-current Other.  Total provision.  Total provision

environmental personnel restructuring non-current for non-current for non-current

provisions provisions' provisions provisions' ¢ liabilities liabilities

» 2005, 20042

At 1 January 204 77 - 38 319 356

Additions 1 18 1 14 34 57

Reclassifications - 26 - 20 2 1} - 43! -

Amounts used -9 -14 -4 : -27 -72

Unused amounts reversed -1 -12 -5 ‘ - 18] -15

Changes due to the 3 1 T o 5! 3
passage of time and o 1
changes in discount rates :

Exchange rate differences 9 3 7 19 - 10

L |
At31 December 181 50 6 52 1 289, 319
Debts falling due \ ‘ ;

Between 1 and 3 years 39 11 5 12! ‘ 67 85

Between 3 and 5 years 15 21 1 8 “ 45 35

Over 5 years 127 18 32 ; 177i 219

At 31 December 181 50 6 52| 289! 319

! Restated for separate disclosure of retirement benefit obligation on the face of the
Balance sheet.
2 Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.

Environmental provisions. Provisions for environmental liabilities are
made when there is a legal or constructive obligation for the Group
which will result in an cutflow of economic resources, It is difficult to
estimate the action required by Clariant in the future to correct the ef-
fects on the enviranment of prior disposal or release of chemical sub-
stances by Clariantor other parties and the associated costs, pursuant
to environmental laws and regulations. The material components of
the environmental provisions consist of the cost to fully clean and re-
furbish contaminated sites and to treat and contain contamination at
sites where the environmental exposure is less severe. The Group’s
future remediation expenses are affected by a number of uncertainties
whichinclude, but are notlimited to, the method and extent of remedia-
tion and the percentage of material attributable to Clariant at the reme-
diation sites relative to that attributable to other parties.

The environmental provisions reported in the balance sheet concern a
number of different obligations, mainly in Switzerland, the United
States, Germany, the United Kingdom, Brazil and Italy.

Provisions are made for remedial work where there is an obligation to
remedy environmental damage, as well as for containment work where
required by environmental regulations. All provisions relate to environ-
mental liabilities arising in connection with activities that occurred
prior to the date when Clariant took control of the relevant site.

Non-current personnel provisions. Non-current personnel provisions
include compensated long-term absences such as sabbatical leave,
jubilee or other long-service benefits, non-current disability benefits,
profit sharing and bonuses payable twelve months or more after the
end of the period in which they are earned.

Restructuring provisions. Restructuring provisions are established
where there is a legal or constructive obligation for the Group that will
result in the outflow of economic resources and which is expected to
occur twelve months or more after the end of the reporting period. The
term restructuring refers to activities that have as a conseguence,
staff redundancies and the shutdown of production lines or entire
sites. However, expenses for termination benefits which are borne by
the pension and termination plans are included in pension plan liabili-
ties.

Other non-current provisions. Other non-current provisions include
provisions for obligations relating to tax and legal cases in various
countries where settlement is expected after twelve months or more.

All non-current provisions are discounted to reflect the time value of
money where material. Discount rates reflect current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the provisions
in the respective countries.




17. Trade payables

CHF mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Trade payables 746 646
Accruals 308 353
Other payables 151 166

Total 1205 1165

18. Current financial debts

CHF mn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004°
Banks and other financial institutions {including employee’s accounts) 939 550
Current portion of non-current financial debts 198 622

Total 1137 1172

' Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.
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19. Movements in provisions for current liahilities
Environmental provisions. Provisions for environmental liabilities are
made when there is a legal or constructive obligation for the Group
which wilf result in an outflow of economic resources. It is difficult to
estimate the action required by Clariant in the future to correct the ef-
fects on the environment of prior disposal or release of chemical sub-
stances by Clariant or other parties, and the associated costs, pursu-
ant to envirgnmental laws and regulations. The material components
of the environmental provisions consist of the cost to fully clean and
refurbish contaminated sites and to treat and contain contamination at
sites where the environmental exposure is less severe. The Group's
future remediation expenses are affected by a number of uncertainties
which include, but are not limited to, the method and extent of remedia-
tion and the percentage of material attributable to Clariant at the reme-
diation sites relative to that attributable to other parties. The environ-
mental provisions reported in the balance sheet concern a number of
different obligations, mainly in Switzerland, the United States, Germa-
ny, the United Kingdom, Brazil and Italy.

Provisions are made for remedial work where there is an obligation to
remedy environmental damage, as well as for containment work where
required by environmental regulations. All provisions relate to environ-
mental liabilities arising in connection with activities that occurred
prior to the date when Clariant toak control of the relevant site.

Restructuring provisions. Restructuring provisions are established
where there is a legal or constructive obligation for the Group that will
result in the outflow of economic resources and which is expected to
occur within the next twelve months. The term restructuring refers to
activities that have as a consequence, staff redundancies and the
shut-down of production lines or entire sites. However, expenses for
termination benefits which are borne by the pension and termination
plans are included in pension plan liabilities (see note 15).

Current personnel provisions. Liabilities from personnel casts include
holiday entitlements, compensated absences such as annual leave,
profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months, and non-
monetary benefits such as medical care, housing and cars for current
employees, payahle within twelve months. Such provisions are ac-
crued in proportion to the services rendered by the employees con-
cerned.

Other current provisions. Other current provisions are recorded for li-
abilities (comprising tax, legal and other items in various countries)
falling due within the next twelve months, for which no invoice has
been received at the reporting date and/or for which the amount can
only be reliably estimated.

CHFmn Environmental Restructuring Current Other current Total provisions Total provisions
provisions provisions personnel provisions for current, for current
pravisions ~liabilities 2005,  liabilities 2004
At 1 January - 80 114 191 ‘ 365. 363
Additions and reclassifications 27 37 189 114 367 312
Amounts used -6 -24 - 148 -112 -290 -284
Unused amounts reversed -1 -5 -5 -18 -29 -33
Exchange rate differences i 1 10 61 . 18 7

|
At 31 December 21 69 160 181 ‘ 431 365
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20. Regional breakdown of key figures 2005 and 2004

Region Sales' Operating income2®  Number of employees
CHF mn at31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Continuing operations
Europe 411 4154 123 209 12664 13595
thereof in Germany 1253 1244 120 97 6096 7027
thereof in Switzerland 177 181 43 28 1627 1260
The Americas 2269 219 141 181 5372 5651
thereof in the United States 1082 1107 45 27 1923 2051
Asia/Africa/Australia 1801 1799 104 101 5347 5523
Total continuing operations 8181 8144 368 491 23383 24 769
Discontinued operations
Europe 60 -14
thereof in Germany 40
The Americas 66
thereof in'the United States 65
Asia/Africa/Australia 260 53
Total discontinued operations - 386 - 42 - -
Total Group 8181 8530 368 533 23383 24769
Region Investments in PPE Depreciation of PPE  Net operating assets
CHF mn and intangibles* and intangibles* at31 December3*
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Continuing operations
Europe 250 186 253 269 2353 2226
thereof in Germany 134 1m 81 141 721 767
thereof in Switzerland 42 16 39 39 287 161
The Americas 69 45 59 64 908 720
thereof in the United States 32 16 35 45 362 295
Asia/Africa/Australia 34 40 30 30 838 699
Total continuing operations 353 2N 342 363 4099 3645
Discontinued operations
Europe 3 3
thereof in Germany 3 2
The Americas 15 8
thereof in the United States 15 8
Asia/Africa/Australia 8 1
Total discontinued operations - 26 - 22 ~ -
Total Group 353 297 342 385 4099 3645

' Allocated by region of third-party sale's destination.

2 Allocated by region of production and selling entity.

¥ Non-current and current assets (excluding cash and short-term deposits) less non
interest-bearing liabilities.

* Restated toinclude intangibles.
5 Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details




21. Divisional breakdown of key figures 2005 and 2004
On 30 September 2004 Electronic Materials was sold, and as a conse-

quence is shown under discontinued activities for 2004,

In 2005 Clariant discontinued the practice of selling merchandise from
one division to another within the same lega! entity. In 2004 divisional

sales still comprised such transactions in the amount of CHF 175 mil-
lion. The change of this practice affected divisional sales in 2005 but
does not have any impact on Total sales.

2004 figures were restated. For details see note 1.04.

Divisions continuing operations Textile, Leather & Paper Pigments & Masterbatches
CHFmn Chemicals (TLP) Additives (PA) (MB)
2005: 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Divisional sales 2204 2239, 1925 1902 1145 1110
Sales to other divisions -12 -36" -46 -74 -1 -2
Total sales 2192 2203;; 1879 1828 1144 1108
Operating expenses -2019 -2046}l -1723 -1642 -1058 -1007
Income from associates ' -1 1 18 17: 2 1
Gain/loss from the sale of discontinued operations | :
Gain/loss from the sale of subsidiaries and associates ! ‘ -25) ) -1 |
Restructuring and impairment : -19! -48; -9 -35 -16 -8
Amortization of goodwill i ; -22 -5 i -3
Operating income 153] 63 165] 162 72 91
Interest expense ‘
Other financial income and expenses
Income before taxes |
Taxes [
Netincome J
Total assets 2004 1 778% ] 812} 1651 614 562
Liabilities -186 - 166 - 144 - 157 - 88 - 76
Total equity and minority interests 1818 1612 1 658[ 1494 526 486
Net debts® i i ;
Total net operating assets' 1818 1612 1668| 1494 526 486
Thereof: ‘ ,‘ ‘
Investments in PPE and intangibles for the period 1| 56/ 87, 72 33 35
Investments in associates 4 7; 208] 207 3 4
I\
Operating income 153 63! 165 162 72 91
Add: Systematic depreciation of PPE ; 72 75: 7 75| 29 28
Add: Impairmentloss on PPE | 3 8, -12| 8 5 1
" Add: Amortization of goodwill | ! 221 3f 5 3
Add: Amortization of ather intangibles | i B 1 1
EBITDA? 1‘ 228 168 ‘ 229 250 107 124
l ) ‘ i :
Add: Restructuring and impairment | 19 48: 9 35/ 16 8
Less: Impairment loss on PPE (Reported under restructuring and impairment} ! 3 -8 12 8¢ -5 -1
Less: Gain/loss from the sale of discontinued operations, subsidiaries and associates 25 13
EBITDA before restructuring and disposals 244 2331 245 278 118 13
Operating income 153 63! 165 162 72 N
Add: Restructuring and impairment 19 481 9 35. 16 8
Less: Gain/loss from the sale of discontinued operations, subsidiaries and associates : 25. 1
Add: Amortization of goodwill \ 22 5 3
Operating income hefore restructuring and disposals and amortization of goodwit { 172 158 174 203’ 88’ 102
' Within net operating assets, PPE including infrastructure, inventory, trade pay- 3 Caiculation of net debt 2005 2004
ables, receivables and goodwili were allocated to each division. All other balance CHF mn
sheet positions generally included in the calculation of net operating assets were Non-current financial debt '599 1723
allocated to Corporate. Add: Current financial debt 1137 1172
2 EBITDA is earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization. Less: Cash and cash equivalents 2223 1417
Less: Current deposits 90 to 365 days -5 -87
Net deht 1508 1331
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Inter-segment transfers ortransactions are entered into under the nor-
mal commercial terms and conditions that would also be available to un-
related third parties.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
goodwill, inventories, receivables and investments in associates. They

exclude deferred tax assets, financial fixed assets and operating cash.
Segment liabilities comprise trade payables. They exclude items such
as taxation, provisions for liabilities and corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equip-
ment and intangibles.

Functional Life Science Total divisions Corporate Total continuing Discontinued Total Group

Chemicals (FUN) Chemicals (LSC) continuing operations operations operations
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
2095 2034 892 1101 8261 8386 8261 sags’ 386 8281 87712
<12 -57 -9 -73 -80  -242 -80 - 242 -80 - 242
2083 1977 883 1028 8181 8144 o 8181 g4 386 8181 8530
-1880 1758 -868  -1005.  -7548 7458 140 118 7688 -7576. - 344 7688 7920
7 5 26 -3 2 23 26 23 26
6 89 95 -2 -2 95. ‘ -2 95
T 8 -6 28 -32 12 40 232 40 32
a3 w0 -9 - 136 -112 -50 -24 - 186 7136 - 186 -136
-30 -30 30
197 220 -36 95. 551 631 -183 -140 368 491 ‘ 2 368 533
i 132 154 ‘ ‘ 32 T84
o 34 79 34 -79
) 270 258 a2 270 - 300
o -78 134 -7 .78 141
192 122 35 192 159
1159 916 633 836 6222 5743 1102 2357 7324 8100 ‘ 7324 8100
-162 -147 -68 -84 - 648 - 630 -4085 -5 156 -4733 -5786 -4733 -5786
397, 769 565. 752 5574 5113 -2983 -2799 2591 2314 2591 2314
; o " 1508 1331 1508 1331 1508 1331
997. 769, 565 752 5574 5113 -1475  -1468. 4089 3645 4099 3645

: : |
| !

64 43 47 36 322 242 31 29° 353 m 26 353 297
53 5 3 3 a 266 1 1 282 277 282, 277
] 197 220 -36 95 551 631 2183 -140 368" 491 12 368 533
49 a8 38 54 259 281 14 5 273 286! 200 273; 306
2 7 s 15 59 39 59 39 ‘ 59, 39
) 30 30: ‘ ‘ 30
R 1 9 7 10 8 2 10 10
248 2716 63 164 870. 982 -160 128 710 854 ‘ 64 710 918
13 10 79 n 136 12 50- 24 186 136 186 136
-2 -7 -61 -15 .59 -39 ] -59 -39 - 59’ -39
-6 .28 -83 -28 -63 -10 -38 -63 -38 -63
259 213 53 17 819 992 -120 104 799 888 64 739 952
197 220 - 36 95 551 631 - 183 - 140 368 491 42 368 533
13 10 78 1 136 112 50 24 186 136 186 136
T 83’ .28’ 63 10 -38 -63 -38 -63
i ] 30 ‘ 30 30
210 2 15 23 659 710 143 -116 516 594 42 516 636




22. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

IFRS 5, ‘Non-current asssts held for sale and discontinued operations’
has been applied propspectively from 1 January 2005.

At 31 December 2005 there were no non-current assets classified as
held for sale nor were there any discontinued operations.

In 2005 the cash flows from the disposal of discontinued operations
include the settlement of CHF 7 million related to the Electronic Mater-
ials Business sold in 2004,

Electronic Materials. On 30 September 2004 Clariant sold the Elec-
tronic Materials Business, belonging to the Life Science Chemicals
Division, to the Carlyle Group.

Prior to the disposal, Clariant acquired the minority shares of the Ko-
rean subsidiary Clariant Industries (Korea) Ltd for a total consideration
of CHF 24 million generating a goodwill of CHF 17 million. Clariant In-
dustries (Korea) Ltd was subsequently sold as a part of the disposal of
Electronic Materials.
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The transaction comprised share deals in Germany, Korea, Taiwan and
China, and asset deals in Japan, the United States, France, Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. As part of the disposal of Electronic Materi-
als, Clariant granted a vendor loan note to the purchaser in the amount
of CHF 40 million.

The exchange rate variances which had to be recycled as a result of
the disposal of Electronic Materials, amounted to an expense of CHF 26
million.

The participation in Infraserv GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden KG was reduced
from 23% to 8% as a result of the sale of the Electronic Materials Busi-
ness to Carlyle.

Cellulose Ethers. On 31 December 2003 Clariant sold the operations of
Celiulose Ethers, belonging to the Functional Chemicals Division, to the
Shin-Etsu Group. An additional gain of CHF 6 million and a cash inflow
of CHF 10 million resulting from the settiement of this transaction were
recognized in 2004.




The result of discontinued operations is as follows:

CHEmn 2005 2004

Sales 386
Operating expenses - 344
Operating income ‘ 42

Financial result

Income before taxes 42
Taxes -7
Income after taxes 35
Cash flow from discontinued operations 2005 2004
Operating cash flow ‘ 21
Investing cash flow -26
Financing cash flow ‘ -4
Total cash flow ) -9
Net assets of disposal group™: ; 2005 2004
Property, plant and equipment 195
Investments in associates 24
Goodwill 17
Other intangibles 12
Current assets 161
Total liabilities . -127
Total net assets of disposal group ‘ 288
Number of employees of the disposal group 543
Netincome and cash flow from the disposal 2005 2004
of discontinued operations
CHF ma
Consideration for sale -1 404
Net assets sold including disposal-related expenses ‘ 5 - 309
Gain on disposals before exchange rate variances ‘ -2 95

recycled and tax expense

Exchange rate variances recycled : - 26

Tax expense ‘ -21
After tax gain on disposal : -2 48

The net cash inflow from sale is determined as follows:

Total consideration for sale ; -7. 404

Less: Vendor loan note and deferred payments -57

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary sold : -12
Net cash inflow from sale -7 335

' Net assets transferred at the date of the disposal.
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23. Disposal of subsidiaries and associates

On 21 June 2005, the Group announced the sale of its subsidiary Clari-
ant (Acetyl Building Blocks) GmbH & Co. KG (CABB]) to the Gilde Buy-
out Fund. CABB, with its main product monochloroacetic acid (MCAA),
was focusing on products based on chlorine and acetyl chemistry. The
transaction was closed on 29 July 2005 together with the sale of the
international MCAA business activities belonging to the Life Science
Chemicals Division.

On 21 December 2005, Clariant sold its 39% stake in the associate,
Fuchs Do Brasil S.A, to Fuchs Petrolub AG.

0n 30 September 2004, the activities of Lancaster Synthesis Ltd in the
United Kingdom and the United States, belonging to the Life Science
Chemicals Division were sold.

On 30 September 2004, Clariant sold the investmentin SF-Chem.

On 30 November 2004, Clariant sold the subsidiary Clariant Polymers,
Japan, belonging to the Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicais Division.

Net income and cash flow from the disposal of
subsidiaries and associates

Disposals during 2005 ‘ Total 2005 Total 2004

CHF ma CABB Fuchs Other ‘
Consideration for sale 68 12 5 . 85 52
Net assets sold including disposal-related expenses -40 -2 -3 -45 -84

Gain on disposals before tax expense 28 10 2 40 - -32
Tax expense -6 -1 -7 -2

After tax gain on disposal 2 9 2 Kk -34

)|
The net cash inflow from sale is determined as follows: ‘ o
Total consideration for sale 68 12 5 | 85 i 52
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary sold 13 -13 -2
Less: Tax paid by buyer on behalf of the Group -1 -1
Net cash inflow from sale 55 1" 5 n,| 50

! Restated, as disposal of subsidiaries and associates are now reported as a
seperate line item in the income statement.

24, Purchase of business activities and minorities

On 26 May 2005, Data Chem, Inc., a Louisiana US corporation, and cer-
tain fixed assets necessary to run the entity subsequent to the trans-
action, were acquired and integrated into the Functional Chemicals
Division. Goodwill in the amount of CHF 3 million, being the difference
between the total purchase cost of CHF 11 million and the fair value
of identified net assets purchased in the amount of CHF 8 miifion, was
recognized.

25. Other financial income and expenses

Also in 2005 additional minority shares in Cofour-Chem Ltd, india, were
acquired for CHF 22 million, resulting in additional goodwill of CHF 8
million.

In 2004 all shares held by minority shareholders of Clariantin Korea were
acquired for CHF 24 million, resulting in a goodwill of CHF 17 million.

CHFmn 2005 2004

Financial income r ﬁ
Interestincome / 28 | 18
Realized fair value gains on early l |
repayments of bank loans 13 -
Other financial income ; 9 9

Total financial income ' 50 27
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25. Other financial income and expenses (continued)

CHF mn 2005 2004
Financial expenses
Penalty for early repayment of bank loans -43 -
Other financial expenses .28 -3
Total financial expenses -Nn -
Currency result, net 55 -75
Total 34 -79

Other financial income mainly consists of dividends from securities
and other investments.

26. Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Group netincome by
the average number of cutstanding shares (issued shares lesstreasury
shares}.

Other financial expensesinclude loss on the sale of securities, bank
charges and miscellaneous financial expenses.

2005 2004
Net income attributable to equity holders (CHF mn) 184 152
Diluted netincome attributable to equity holders (CHF mn) 184 152
Shares
Holdings on 1 January ? 226771579 172536201
Effect of the issuance of share capital and transactions with -339847 38050609
treasury shares on weighted average number of shares outstanding
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 226431732 210586810
Adjustment for granted Clariant shares 1248678 1455150
Adjustment for dilutive share options 58934 37463
Weighted average diluted number of shares outstanding 227739344 212079423
Basic earnings per share {CHF/share) 0.81 0.72
Diluted earnings per share (CHF/share) 0.81 0.72

! Restated, refer to note 1.04 for details.
2 Restated forimpact of capital increase {adjustment factor 1.15)

Earnings per share have been calculated using the adjustment factor
of 1.15 to determine the average number of shares outstanding from
1 January to 20 April 2004 (date of issuance of share capital inthe form
of a rights issue).

Diluted earnings per share are calculated adjusting the weighted ave-
rage number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The dilution effectis triggered by two different items. One is the effect
of Clariant shares granted as part of the share based payment plan,
which have not yet been vested. To calculate this dilutive potential itis
assumed that they had been vested on 1 January of the respective pe-

riod. The other item is the effect of options granted as part of the share
based payment plan, which have not yet been vested. To calculate this
dilutive potential itis assumed that all options which were in the money
atthe end of the respective period had been exercised on 1 January of
the same period.

Netincome of 2004 was restated for the impact of IFRS 2, inthe amount
of CHF 2 million.

The number of shares were restated due to the consolidation of the
Employee Participation fund. The impact was a decrease of 266 020
shares outstanding.
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27. Restructuring and impairment

In order to increase profitability over a sustained period, Clariant has
launched a broad initiative designed to improve its performance. The
aim of the program is to increase the Group’s operating result and re-
duce net working capital. The changes thatneed to be made to the pro-
cesses and structures in order to achieve these aims , will resultin the
loss of around 4000 jobs across the Group between 2004 and 2008.

Restructuring. As part of the performance improvement program, in
2005 staff were reduced and sites closed mainly in Germany, France,
Spain, the United Kingdom and the United States. The costs for the dis-
missal of personnel in these places have been recorded as restructu-
ring costs.

Impairment. As a result of the performance improvement program and
the resulting staff reduction, PPE were reviewed for impairmentin va-
lue. In numerous cases it was evident that such assets were impaired,
as they would no longer be utilized and as a consequence they were
written off. In France, production facilities pertaining to the divisions
Pigments & Additives, Life Science Chemicals and Masterbatches
were closed or restructured, entailing the write-off of PPE in the
amount of CHF 20 million.

Clariant also assessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of
non-current assets of several cash generating units in 2005. For this
purpose assets were grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows. An impairment loss was recagnized

CHFmn TLP PA MB
2005 2004 2005 2004 ' 2005 2004
Cash out expenses for restructuring ; 8 6 12 ‘ 2, 6: 3
Non-cash expenses for: : ’ :
Leaving indemnity 9 31 14 12 5 2
Others -1 3 5 13 - 2
Total non-cash expenses for restructuring 8| 34 9 25 5! 4
Total restructuring expenses ' 16 40 21 27 1. 7
Impairment of PPE: | ]'
Land and buildings 2| - 7! 21 - -
Machinery and equipment ' 1’ 8 4 6! 5: 1
Reversal of impairment -17 ‘
Total impairment of PPE : 3 8 12 8 5 1
!
Total restructuring and impairment ; 19] 48 9| 35 16 8
Thereof non-cash expenses 1 42 -3 33 10. 5
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as an expense in the income statement in the amount by which the car-
rying amount of the assets exceeded the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. As
a result of this procedure, Clariant depreciated for impairment the PPE
of the CGU Pharma, belonging to the Life Science Chemicals Division,
by an amount of CHF 55 million. The asset values reported for this seg-
ment represent the value in use. The discount rate, which was applied
to determine the value in use (pretax, risk adjusted, weighted average
cost of capital) amounted to 10%.

Inthe process of the assessment of the recoverability of the carrying
amount of non-current assets it also became evident that the impair-
ment devaluation of a production site in Hochst, Germany, recorded in
2003 was no longer justified. The cash flows generated by the CGUs
Pigments & Additives and Specialty Fine Chemicals are sufficient to
recover the carrying amount of the assets in question that would be
recorded if the impairment devaluation had never taken place. The im-
pairmentdevaluation wastherefore reversed to such an extentthatthe
assets now have the carrying amount that they would have had if the
impairment devaluation had never occurred. This reversal resulted in
anincome of CHF 17 million.

FUN ) LSC S mTotaI divisions - 7C'orpc')ratré R ;Totralrérﬁc'n]'ﬁr

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
3 : 12 1 ® 12 29 20 70 32

5 2 8 8 41 550 2 - 65 55

1 -2 13 5 6! -3 4 -8 10

8 ‘ 6 -5 36 61 2 4. 57 65

11 3 18 -4, 7 73, 50 2 127 97

2 1 17 4 22 17 - - a2  n

) - 6 44 1 54 22 - - 54 22
17 1 17

2 7 61 15 59 39 ‘ 59 39
13 10, 19 " 136 12 50 24 186 136
10 10 67 0 % 100 21 . 16 104




28. Financial instruments

Risk management (hedging} instruments and off-balance sheet risks.
Clariant uses forward foreign exchange rate and option contracts, in-
terest rate and currency swaps, and other derivative instruments to
hedge the Group’s risk exposure to volatility in interest rates and cur-
rencies and to manage the return on cash and cash equivalents. Risk
exposures from existing assets and liabilities as well as anticipated
transactions are managed centrally.

Interest rate management. Itisthe Group’s policy to manage the cost of
interest using fixed and variable rate debt and interest-related deriva-
tives.

Foreign exchange management. To manage the exposure to fluctua-
tions in foreign currency exchange rates, the Group follows a strategy
of hedging both balance sheet and revenue risk, partially through the
use of forward exchange contracts and currency swaps in various cur-
rencies. In order to minimize financial expenses, the Group does not
hedge the entire exposure.

Counterparty risk. Financial instruments contain an elementof risk that
the counterparty may be unable to either issue securities or to fulfill the
settlementterms of a contract. Clarianttherefore only cooperates with
counterparties or issuers that are at least A-rated. The cumulative ex-
posure to these counterparties is constantly monitored by the Group
management, therefore there is no expectation of a material loss due to
counterparty risk in the future.

The following tables show the cantractor underlying principal amounts
and the respective fair value of financial instruments by type at year-
end.

The contract or underlying principal amounts indicate the volume of
business outstanding at the balance sheet date and do not represent
the amount at risk. The fair values represent market values or standard
pricing models at 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Financial instruments

Contract or underlying Positive fair values  Negative fair values

principal amount

CHF mn
2005 2004 2005! 2004 2005 ‘ 2004
Currency-related hedging instruments : 1 ¥
Forward foreign exchange rate contracts and cross-currency swaps 88 631 b= | 3 -1 -52
‘ L ‘ [
Total financial instruments 88 631 L= 3 -1 - 52
Financial instruments by maturity 1-12 months 1-5years Total
CHF mn
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Currency-related hedging instruments P ‘
Forward foreign exchange rate contracts and cross-currency swaps 88 329 [ 302; 88 631
Total financial instruments 88 329 | = 302 88 631
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Financial instruments by currency 2005 2004
Forward foreign exchange rate contracts and cross currency swaps
CHFmn
JPY 377
usb 87 250
EUR 1 3
Other 1
Total financial instruments 88 631
Financial instruments effective for hedge-accounting purpases 2005 2004
CHFmn
Fair value of cash flow hedges:
Contracts with positive fair values ‘ - -
Contracts with negative fair values !
Cross currency swaps - -49
Fair value of hedges of net investments in foreign entities:
Coatracts with positive fair values - -
Cantracts with negative fair values ' .
Borrowings denominated in foreign currencies - - 527

The Group's US dollar-denominated borrowing was designated as a
hedge of the netinvestment in one of the Group's US subsidiaries. The
fair value of the borrowing as at 22 July 2005 (repayment date) was
CHF 285 million {2004: CHF 251 million). The foreign exchange gain of
CHF 34 million (2004: CHF 69 million) on translation of the borrowing to
CHF at the balance sheet date was recognized in Cumulative currency
translation reserves in Shareholders’ equity.

The Group’s EUR denominated borrowing was designated as a hedge
of the net investment in one of the Group’s German subsidiaries. The

fair value of the borrowing as at 19 December 2005 {repayment date)
was CHF 277 million (2004: CHF 276 million). The foreign exchange gain
of CHF 11 million {2004: CHF 12 million) on translation of the borrowing
to CHF at the balance sheet date was recognized in Cumulative cur-
rency translation reserves in Shareholders’ equity.

Due to the early repayment of the hedged JPY foan, the cross-currency
swaps designated as cash flow hedges were closed and the amount
deferred in equity in the prior year was recycled into the income state-
ment in 2005 in the amount of CHF 5 million.

Volumes of securitization of trade receivahles 2005 2004
CHFmn
Trade receivables denominated in Eurgs 93/ 156
Trade receivables denominated in US dollars 95: 85
Total 188, 24

Securitization: For a number of years Clariant has been using securiti-
zation as a means of financing. Trade receivables from certain compa-
nies are sold in ABS programs. Clariant retains the credit risk of the
trade receivables and the interest rate risk liability incurred. Therefore

the trade receivables are not derecognized from the balance sheet un-
til payments from the customers are obtained and a current financiai
liability is recorded for the amount borrowed under the security of the
trade receivables.

00




29. Employee participation plans

During 2005, the former Clariant Executive Stock Option Plan (CESOP)
and Management Stock Incentive Plan (MSIP) were replaced by a new
incentive pian called Clariant Executive Bonus Plan (CEBP).

The number of shares to be granted under CEBP depends both on the
performance of the Group and the performance of the Division/Func-
fion in which incentive plan members work.

The granted registered shares of Clariant Ltd become vested and are
exercisable after 3 years.

The aptions granted under the former CESOP entitle the holder to ac-
quire registered shares of Clariant Ltd (1 share per option) at a prede-
termined strike price. They become vested and are exercisable after 3
years and expire after 10 years. Under CEBP no options are granted.

The expense recorded in the income statement spreads the cost of
each grant equally over the measurement period of ane year and the

vesting period of three years. Assumptions are made concerning the
forfeiture rate which is adjusted during the vesting period so that atthe
end of the vesting period thereis only a charge for the vested amounts.
As permitted by the transitional rules of IFRS 2, grants of options and
shares prior to 7 November 2002 have not been restated.

During 2005 CHF 7 miflion (2004: CHF 8 million) for equity-settled share
based payments and CHF 1 million for cash-settled share-based pay-
ments {2004: CHF 1 million} were charged to the income statement,

As of 31 December 2005 the total carrying value of liabilities arising
from share-based payments is CHF 23 million (2004: CHF 15 million).
Thereof CHF 20 million (2004: CHF 13 million} was recognized in equity
for equity-settled share-based payments and CHF 3 million [2004: CHF
2 million) in non-current liabilities for cash-settled share-based pay-
ments.

Options for Board of Directors (non-executive members) as at 31 December 2005

Base year Granted Exercisable Expiry date Exercise Share price at | . Number | Number
from price' grant date? | 31.12.2005 31.12.2004°
1998 1998 2001 2008 53.80 56.76 | 10137 10137
1999 1999 2002 2009 61.80 60.76{ 10418 10418
2000 2000 2003 2010 48.00 47.97i 6229é 6229
| ! i
Total x ., 26784/ 26784
Options for senior memhers of management as at 31 December 2005
Base year Granted Exercisable Expiry date Exercise Share price at: ‘ Number{ Number
from price’ grant date? 31.12.2005 31.12.2004°
1997 1998 2001 2008 25.50 68.97 . 127783 127783
1997 1998 2001 2008 37.50 73.06 167001 167 001
1998 1999 2002 2009 61.80 62.091 358789, 358789
1999 2000 2003 2010 48,00 47.97 | . 106191/ 106 191
2000 2001 2004 2011 41,80 42.021 ‘ 72291 7229
2001 2002 2005 2012 27.20 26.87 166 354[ 166 354
2002 2003 2006 2013 14.80 14.88 169 136 169 136
2003 2004 2007 2014 12.00 18.74" 49326/ 49326
2003 2004 2007 2014 16.30 18.74 60391 60391
2004 2005 2008 2015 19.85 19.85' 130934
Total ( 1343134 1212200
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Shares for Board of Directors (non-executive members) as at 31 December 2005

Base year Granted Exercisable Share price at Number Number
from grant date? 31.12.2005 31.12.20043

2002 2002 2005 26.87 - 6227
2003 2003 2006 14.88 13163 15863
2004 2004 2007 18.74 1411 16 565
2005 2005 2008 19.85 17634 -
Total 44908 38655

Shares tor members of management as at 31 December 2005

Base year Granted Exercisable Share price at Number Number
from grant date?® 31.12.2005 31.12.20043
2000 2001 2004 42.02 ~ 250
2001 2002 2005 26.87 - 294794
2002 2003 2006 14.88 617938 751433
2003 2004 2007 18.74 317028 370018
2004 2005 2008 19.85 268804 -
Total 1203770 1416 495
' Asaresultofthe capitalincrease in April 2004, the strike price of all optionsissued ~ * {n order to accommodate the dilution of the capital increase in Aprii 2004, all mem-
before April 2004 was modified by the adjustment factor of 0.8883. bers of the Employee Participation Plan received additicnal shares/options for the

z As a result of the capital increase in April 2004, the grant price of all options and ones granted prior to April 2004,

shares granted before April 2004 was modified by the adjustment factor of 0.8883.

All shares granted and shares for all options granted are held as treasury shares.

Weighted Options Shares, Weighted Options Shares
average 2005’ 2005 average 2004 2004

exercise price exercise price
Shares/options outstanding at 1 January 38.08 1238984 1455150 44.02 947998 1350847
Granted {incl. adjustment due to rights issue) 19.85 130934 286438 18.74 290986 542831
Exercised/distributed - - 487549 - - 420605
Cancelled ‘ ~ -5361 - -17923
QOutstanding at 31 December 36.34 1369918 1248678 38.08 1238984 1455150
Exercisable at 31 December 44,90 960131 - 48.61 793777 250
Fair value of shares /optians outstanding in CHF 3444599 24161919 3289750 26702003

The fair value of options granted during 2005 was CHF 1 million {2004:  In additian to the Employee Participation Plan in 2005, a total of 198 000
CHF 1 million) at grant date and calculated based on the Trinomial valu-  Clariant shares with a fair value of CHF 3 million, were granted to relo-
ation method. The significant inputs into the model were share prices  catees as part of the restructuring program. This amount is charged to
at grant date, exercise date and option life as indicated above. A vola-  the income statement gver the vesting period of three years.

tility of 22% and a risk-free interest rate of 2.4% were assumed.

The fair value of shares granted during 2005 is CHF 6 million (2004: CHF
10 million} calculated based on market value of shares at grant date.
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30. Personnel expenses

CHF ma 2005 2004
Wages and salaries - 15211 -1528
Social welfare costs \‘ - 310! - 271
Shares and options granted to directors and employees -8 -9
Pension costs - defined contribution plans -34 -34
Pension costs - defined benefit plans -75 -131
Other post-employment benefits 4 -6

Total -1852; -1979

31. Related-party transactions

Clariant maintains business relationships with mainly two groups of
related parties. One group consists of the associates, where the most
important ones are described in note 6. The most important business
with these companies is the purchase of services by Clariant {e.g.
energy, rental of land and buildings) in Germany. In addition to this,
Clariant exchanges services and goods with other parties which are
associates, i.e. in which Clariant holds a stake of between 20% and
50%. The pricing of all exchanges of goods and services with these
parties is at arm’s length.

The second group of related parties is key management comprising the
Board of Directors (non-executive members) and the Board of Manage-
ment. Mare information on the relationship with the Board of Directors
is given in the chapter Corporate governance {nan-audited).

Transactions with associates J: : 2005 | 2004
CHFmn | |
Income from the sale of goods to related parties 28] 49
Income from the rendering of services to related parties 12] 21
Expenses from the purchase of goods from related parties - 24: -17
Expenses from services rendered by related parties -303‘1 -378
Payables, receivables and loans 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Receivables from related parties “ 9 n
Payabies to related parties f ; 61° 40
Loans to related parties \ ‘ - 1
Transactions with key management f 2005 2004
CHF mn .
Salaries and other short-term benefits 6 5
Termination benefits \ 11 4
Post-employment benefits 2! 1
Share-based payments 1] 1
Total 10/ n
Number of granted shares in the reporting period ) 36 146 ‘ 51753
Number of granted options in the reporting period 118 244 49326

There are no outstanding loans by the Group to any members of the
Board of Directors or Board of Management.
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32. Commitments and contingencies

Leasing commitments. The Group leases land, buildings, machinery
and equipment, furniture and vehicles under fixed term agreements.
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

Commitments arising from fixed-term operating leases mainly concern
buildings in Switzerland and Germany. The mostimportant partners for
operating leases of buildings in Germany are the Infraserv companies.

CHFmn 2005! 2004
2005 ‘ 75
2006 73 57
2007 ' 56 46
2008 ‘ 45, 40
2009 ‘ 32, 32
2010 1 49 -
after 2010 3 37 39
(2004: after 2009) ‘ ‘

Total { 292, 289

Guarantees in favor 60 31

of third parties

Expenses for operating leases were CHF 85 million in 2005 and CHF 95
million in 2004.

Purchase commitments. In the regular course of business, Clariant en-
ters into relationships with suppliers whereby the Group commits itself
to purchase certain minimum quantities of materials in order to benefit
from better pricing conditions. These commitments are not in excess
of current market prices and reflect normal business operations. At
present, the purchase commitments on such contracts amount to
about CHF 100 million (2004: CHF 85 million).

Contingencies. Clariant operates in countries where political, eco-
nomic, social, legal and regulatory developments can have an impact
on the operational activities. The effects of such risks on the Compa-
ny's results, which arise during the normal course of business, are not
foreseeable and are therefore notincluded in the accompanying finan-
cial statements.

In the ordinary course of business, Clariant is involved in lawsuits,
claims, investigations and proceedings, including product liability, in-
tellectual property, commercial, environmental, health and safety mat-
ters. Although the outcome of any legal proceedings cannot be pre-
dicted with certainty, management is of the opinion that there are no
such matters pending which would be likely to have any material ad-
verse effectin relation to its business, financial position or results of
operations.

Environmental risk. Clariantis exposed to environmental liabilities and
risks relating to its past operations, principally in respect of remedia-
tion costs. Provisions for non-recurring remediation costs are made
when there is a legal or constructive obligation and the cost can be
reliably estimated. Itis difficult to estimate the action required by Clar-
iantin the future to correct the effects on the environment of prior dis-
posal or release of chemical substances by Clariant or other parties,
and the associated costs, pursuant to environmental laws and regula-
tions. The material components of the environmental provisions con-
sist of costs to fully clean and refurbish contaminated sites and to treat
and contain contamination at sites where the environmental exposure
is less severe. The Group’s future remediation expenses are affected
by a number of uncertainties which include, but are not limited to, the
method and extent of remediation and the percentage of material at-
tributable to Clariant at the remediation sites relative to that attribut-
able to other parties. The Group permanently monitors the various
sites identified at risk for environmental exposure. Clariant believes that
its provisions are adequate based upon currently availabie information,
however given the inherent difficulties in estimating liabilities in this
area, there is no guarantee that additional costs will not be incurred.

33. Exchange rates of principal currencies
Rates used to translate the consolidated balance sheets (closing rate):

31.12.2005 31.12.2004
1USD } 1.31 1.13
1GBP 1 2.27 2.18
100 JPY 112 1.10
1EUR A 1.56 1.54

Average sales-weighted rates used to translate the consolidated in-
come statements and consolidated statement of cash flow:

‘ 2005 2004
1USD 1.24 1.25
1GBP 2.28 2.28
100 JPY ‘ 1.13. 1.15
1EUR ! 1.55 1.54
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34. Important subsidiaries and associates

Country Company name Part\cipatioﬂ; l-;glding/ Sales  Production  Research
Argentina Clariant (Argentina) SA, Buenos Aires 100.0 L n
Australia Clariant {Australia) Pty. Ltd, Melbourne 100.0 u )
Austria Clariant {Osterreich) GmbH, Wien 100.0 | ]
Bangladesh Clariant {Bangladesh) Ltd, Dhaka 100.0 L
Belgium Clariant Benelux SA, Louvain-la-Neuve 100.0 | | |
Brazi! Clariant S.A., Sdo Paulo 100.0 a [
Canada Clariant (Canada) Inc., St-Laurent, Québec 100.0 n )
Chile Clariant Colorquimica (Chile) Ltda, Santiago de Chile 100.0 [ a
China Clariant {China) Ltd, Hong Kong 100.0 u u
Clariant {Tianjin) Ltd, Tianjin 94.8 n u
Clariant Chemicals Trading (Shanghai) Ltd, Shanghai 100.0 a
Clariant Pigments {Tianjin) Ltd, Tianjin 60.0 n |
Tianjin Hua Shi Chemicals Co., Ltd, Tianjin 25.0 u u
Clariant Chemicals {China) Ltd, Shanghai 100.0 a |
Clariant Guangzhou Masterbatch Ltd, Guangzhou 100.0 u L)
Colombia Clariant {Colombia) SA, Santa Fé de Bogota 100.0 [ a
Czech Republic Clariant CR s.r.0., Prague 100.0 n
Denmark Clariant (Denmark) A/S, Karise 100.0 ]
Ecuador Clariant {Ecuador) S.A., Quito 100.0 a
Egypt Clariant (Egypt) SAE, Cairo 85.6 n u
The Egyptian German Co. for Dyes & Resins SAE, Cairo 100.0 L [
Finland Clariant (Finland) Oy, Vantaa 100.0 u
France Clariant {France), Puteaux 100.0 L n L
Clariant Huningue, Huningue 100.0 n a [
Clariant Life Science Molecules (France) SAS, Puteaux 100.0 n a
Germany Clariant Produkte (Deutschland) GmbH, Frankfurt 100.0 | | |
Clariant Masterbatch (Deutschland} GmbH, Lahnstein 100.0 L n u
Clariant Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Frankfurt 100.0 |
Great Britain Clariant Holdings UK Ltd, Horsforth/Leeds 100.0 B
Clariant UK Ltd, Horsforth/Leeds 100.0 | a2 L
Greece Clariant (Hellas) SA, Lykovrisi 100.0 u n
Guatemala Clariant (Guatemala) SA, Guatemala City 100.0 a n
Hungary Clariant Hungaria Kft, Budapest 100.0 L
India BTP India Private Ltd, Chennai 100.0 u a u
Clariant {India) Ltd, Mumbai 50.9 | | [ |
Colour-Chem Ltd, Mumbai 70.1 ) u n
Indonesia PT Clariant Indonesia, Tangerang 100.0 u n
Ireland Masterplast Limited, Naas 100.0 n L
Italy Clariant{Italia) S.p.A., Milan 100.0 n ] L
Clariant Holding (Italia) S.p.A., Milan 100.0 L)
Clariant Life Science Molecules (Italia) S.p.A., Milan 100.0 n | |
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Country

Company name

Participation Helding/ Sales Praduction Research
% Finance
Japan Clariant (Japan} K.K., Tokyo 100.0 | | ]
Korea Clariant (Korea) Ltd, Seoul 100.0 |
Clariant Sang Ho Ltd, Yangsan-Si 100.0 | |
Clariant Songwon Color Co. Ltd, Ulsan 99.8 | n
Malaysia Clariant {Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Shah Alam 100.0 |
Mexico Clariant (Mexico) S.A. de C.V., Naucalpan de Juéarez 100.0 | a
Clariant Productos Quimicos S.A. de C.V., Ecatepec de Morelos 100.0 ]
Morocco Clariant (Maroc) S.A., Casablanca 100.0 n |
Netherlands Dick Peters BV, Denekamp 100.0 | u
New Zealand Clariant (New Zealand) Ltd, Albany-Auckland 100.0 ] |
Norway Clariant (Norge} AS, Bergen 100.0 ]
Pakistan Clariant Pakistan Ltd, Korangi, Karachi 75.0 n |
Panama Clariant Trading {Panama), SA, Panama 100.0 |
Peru - Clariant {Perd) SA, Lima 91.4 u n
Philippines Clariant (Philippines) Corp., Makati City, Manila 100.0 u
Poland Clariant Polska Sp. z.0.0., Warsaw 100.0 u
Portugal Clariant Quimicos {Portugal) Lda, Porto 100.0 |
Singapore Clariant {Singapore) Pte. Ltd, Singapore 100.0 n ]
South Africa Clariant Southern Africa {Pty) Ltd, Weltevreden Park, Johannesburg 100.0 [ | |
Spain Clariant Ibérica S.A., Barcelona 100.0 u u n
Clariant Masterbatch Ibérica S.A., Sant Andreu de la Barca 100.0 ] n
Sweden Clariant {Sverige) AB, Goteborg 100.0 |
Clariant Masterbatches Norden AB, Malmd 100.0 a | |
Switzerland Clariant Produkte (Schweiz) AG, Muttenz 100.0 u n
Clariant International AG, Muttenz 100.0 |
Taiwan Clariant Chemicals (Taiwan) Co., Ltd, Taipei 100.0 [ | |
Thailand Clariant Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd, Bangkok 100.0 u u
Clariant Masterbatches (Thailand) Ltd, Bangkok 100.0 | [ ]
Tunisia Clariant Tunisie SA, Cherguia-Tunis 49.9 ]
Turkey Clariant (Tirkiye) A.S., Istanbul 100.0 | [ |
UAE Clariant {Gulf) FZE, Jebel Ali, Dubai 100.0 u
USA Clariant Corporation, Charlotte, NC 100.0 | | | [ |
Clariant Life Science Molecules (America) Inc., Elgin, SC 100.0 u | ]
Clariant Life Science Malecutes (Florida) Inc., Gainesville, FL 100.0 n n n
Clariant Life Science Molecules (Missouri) Inc., Springfield, MO 100.0 n u
Venezuela Clariant Venezuela S.A., Maracay 100.0 | |
Vietnam 100.0 ] ]

Clariant (Vietnam) Ltd, Ho Chi Minh City
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35. Events subsequent to the balance sheet date

In February 2006, KiON, a US corporation, was acquired with a pur-
chase price of approximately CHF 17 million. The activities of this busi-
ness will be integrated into the Pigments & Additives Division. The
process of allocation of the purchase price to the identified assets and
liabilities acquired had still to be finalized while this Annual Report was
being prepared for publishing.
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Report of the Group auditors

Report of the Group auditors to the general meeting of Clariant Ltd,
Muttenz

As auditors of the Group, we have audited the consolidated financial
statements (balance sheet, income statement, statement of cash
flows, statement of changes in equity and notes — pages 60 to 106) of
the Clariant Group for the year ended 31 December 2005.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that
we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification
and independence.

Our auditwas conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards
and with the International Standards on Auditing, which require that an
audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant
estimates made and the overall consolidated financial statement pre-
sentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the
cash flows in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted
to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

D.Suter Dr. M. Jeger

Basel, 24 February 2006
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Keview of trends
Five-year Group overview

Five-year Group overview 2001-2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002 2001
(restated)
Divisional sales CHFmn 8261! 8772 8772 8783 9606 10195
Change relative to preceding year i
in Swiss francs % -6 0 0 -9 - -7
inlocal currency % -8 2 2 -4 -2
Group sales’ CHF mn 8181 8530 8530 8516 9330 9871
Change relative to preceding year :
in Swiss francs %, 0 0 -9
inlocal currency % | 6 2 2 4 -
|
Operating income before restructuring, disposals |
and amortization of goodwill CHF mn 516 636 633 611 690 631
Change relative to preceding year % -19° 4 4 -1 9 -44
asa % of sales 6.3 1.5 7.4 7.2 7.4 6.4
Operating income after restructuring, disposals i
and amortization of goodwill CHFmn 368, 533 530 559 - 202 -877
Change relative to preceding year % -31§ -5 -5 - - -
as a % of sales 4.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 -2.2 -8.9
EBITDA after restructuring and disposals CHF mn 710 918 915 1119 1193 1395
Change relative to preceding year % -23 -18 -18 -6 -14 -16
as-a % of sales 8.7 10.8 10.7 13.1 12.8 141
Netincome CHFmn 192 159 157 173 -639 -1233
Change relative to preceding year % 23 -8 -9 - - -
as a % of sales 2.3. 1.9 1.8 2.0 -6.8 -12.5
Investmentin PPE CHFma 348! 289 289 301 339 505
Change relative to preceding year % 20 4 -4 -1 -33 -6
asa % of sales 4. 3 3 4 4 5
Personnel costs CHFmn 1952: 1979 1979 2008 2097 2346
Change relative to preceding year % 1 1 -1 -4 -N -2
as a % of sales 24 23 23 24 22 24
Employees at year-end number | 23383 24769 24769 27008 27849 28904
Change relative to preceding year %) -6 -8 -8 -3 -4 -8

! Incl. trading.
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Trend in Group sales by division 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
CHF mn % CHF mn % CHF mn % CHF mn % CHFmn %
Textile, Leather & Paper Chemicals 2192 27 2203 26 2179 26 2769 30 2965 30
Pigments & Additives 1879 23 1828 21 1745 20 1814 19 1872 19
Functional Chemicals 2083 25 1977 23 2033 24 2102 23 2183 23
Life Science Chemicals 883 11 1414 17 1518 18 1618 17 1616 17
Masterbatches 1144 14 1108 13 1041 12 1027 N 1038 "
Total divisions 8181 100 8530 100 8516 100 9330 100 9674 100
Other {mainly trading activities) - - - - 197
Total Group 8181 8530 8516 9330 98N
' Restated
Trend in Group sales hy region 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
CHFmn %" CHF mn % CHF mn % CHFmn % CHF mn %
Europe 4111 50 4214 49 4239 50 4564 49 4867 49
The Americas 2269 28 2257 27 2213 26 2683 29 2863 29
Asia/Australia/Africa 18061 22 2059 24 2064 24 2083 22 2141 22
Total 8181 100 8530 100 8516 100 9330 100 98711 100




L UFLLLTLCEUEL SLULETTICTLLY UJ Ly tUrel LLll, (YAULLIETL
Clariant Ltd balance sheets
at 31 December 2005 and 2004

Assets ;2005 ‘ 2004

Non-current assets ' i

Shareholdings in Graup companies " 1954646642 ! 1593 892 981
Loans to Broup companies © 1358913816 | . 1440850262
Intangible fixed assets ! 1479346 4210214
Total non-current assets } 3315039804 90.5° 3038953457 62.9
Current assets \ 3 :
Receivabies from Group companies 210790 456 c 468919 596
Other receivables | 53681139 - 48275366
Accrued income 1 15285 2178938
Marketable securities ; 69684 631 57 296 059
Cash and cash equivalents 11856 468 1216179 842
Total current assets i 346 0}:17 979 95 1792849801 371
Total assets 3661057783 100.0 4331803258 100.0
Equity and liabilities “ 2005 2004 ‘
P CHF % CHF %
Equity :
Total share capital 1093 250 000 ‘ 1150 800 000
Reserves E‘ E
General reserves 646595631 646 595 631
Reserve for treasury shares 111542072 v 102374212
Free reserves 282568 845 " 105479978

Total reserves 1040706 548 ‘ 854 449821

Unappropriated earnings ‘ |

Balance from prior year i 0 ! 0

Netincome | 229550139 186 256 727

Total unappropriated earnings 229550139 2 ‘ 186 256 727
Total Equity 2363516687 64.5' 2191506548 45.4
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities : /|

Straight bonds 558 650 000 . 718 110000

Other non-current liabilities 1000 368050000

Total non-current liabilities 558 651000 15.2 1086160000 22.5

Current liabilities : ; ;

Provisions 3 3184104 2340635

Liabilities to Group companies 236998502 898 478 826

Other liabilities | 476352 198 560233 144

Accrued expenses ; 22355292 ; 93084 105

Total current liabilities 738890096 20.2° 1554136 710 32.1
Total liabilities bo1297 54“1 096 35.4: 2640296710 54.6
Total equity and liabilities | 3661057783 100.0] 4831803258 100.0
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Clariant Ltd income statements
for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
CHF CHF
Income

Income from financial assets 260953 051 465460504
Income from cash, marketable securities and short-term deposits 15579500 31993034

Financial income 90862338
Otherincome 39188026 69817533
Total income 406 582 915 567271071

Expenses ‘
Financial expenses 145351544 200874300
Administrative expenses 2987484 2106130
Depreciation of financial fixed assets 149350000
Other expenses (including taxes) 28693748 28683914
Total expenses 177032776 381014344
Netincome 229550 139 186 256 727
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Notes to the financial statements of Clariant Ltd

1. Accounting policies
Introduction. The statutory financial statements of Clariant Ltd comply
with the requirements of the Swiss company law.

Exchange rate differences. Balance sheet items denominated in for-
eign currencies are converted at year-end exchange rates. Exchange
rate differences arising from these, as well as those from business
transactions, are recorded in the income statement.

Financial fixed assets. These are valued at acquisition cost less ad-
justments for impairment of value.

Provisions. Provisions are made to cover existing liabilities.

2. Financial assets

The principal direct and indirect affiliated companies, and other hold-
ings of Clariant Ltd, are shown on pages 104 to 105 of the Financial
Report of the Clariant Group.

5. Share capital

3. Cash, marketable securities and current financial assets
Securities include treasury shares valued at fair market value in the
amount of CHF 70 million {prior year CHF 57 million) (see also note 6).
After a regular review of the cash generating capabilities of all sub-
sidiaries of Clariant Ltd, there were no write downs of investments in
these companies (prior year CHF 149 million).

4. Repayment of share capital
On7 April 2005the Annual General Meeting approved the repayment of
share capital in the amount of CHF 57 540 000.

Paid-in share capital was decreased by CHF 57 540 000 to a total of
CHF 1093 260 000.

; 31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Number of registered shares each with a par value of CHF 4.75 (2004: CHF 5)

1 230160000 230160000

In CHF 1093260000 1150800000
Conditional Capital E 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Number of registered shares each with a par value of CHF 4.75{2004: CHF 5) K 8000000 8000000
In CHF 1 / 38000000 40000000
6. Treasury shares (number with a par value of CHF 4.75 each [2004: CHF 5])
: © 2005 2004
Holdings on 1 January ! 31224011 3532869
Shares bought at market value | 1060000 721642
Shares sold at market value - 150000 -800000
Shares to employees -431128 -332110
Holdings on 31 December b 3601273 3122401

The average price of shares boughtin 2005 was CHF 19.81 (2004: CHF
13.54).
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1. Reconciliation of equity

CHF Share capital General Reserve for Free reserves Unappropriated Total
reserves  treasury shares garnings
Balance 31.12.2004 1150800000 646 595631 102374 212 105479978 186 256 727 2191506 548
Treasury share 9167 860 -9167 860 0
transactions
Appropriation of 186 256 727 - 186 256 727 0
profit/loss carried
forward to reserves
Repayment of -57540000 -57540000
share capital
Netincome 229550139 229550139
Balance 31.12.2005 1093 260 000 646595631 111542 072 282568 845 229550139 2363516 687|

8. Straight bonds

CHF thousand

Interestrate

Term Amount31.12.2005 Amount 31.12.2004

Straight bond 4125 1996-2006 159 460 159460
Straight bond 3.750 1997-2007° 174610 174610
Straight bond 3.000 1998-2005 200605
Straight bond 4.250 2000-2008 384040 384040
Total 718110 918 715

9. General reserves

The general reserves must be atleast 20% of the share capital of Clari-
ant Ltd as this is the minimum amount required by the Swiss Code of
Obligations.

11. Contingent liabilities

10. Reserve for treasury shares
ClariantLtd has metthe legal requirements for treasury shares required
by the Swiss Code of Obligations.

CHF mn Outstanding: Outstanding
liabilities liabilities

31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Outstanding liabilities as guarantees in favor of Group companies 754
Outstanding liabilities as guarantees in favor of third parties 39 39

12. Voting and legal registration limitations

In accordance with Article 5 of the Articles of Incorporation, no limita-
tions with regard to registration of shares which are acquired in one’s
own name and on one’s own account exist. Special rules exist for
nominees.

In accordance with Article 12 of the Articles of Incorporation, each
share has the right to one vote. A shareholder can only vote for his awn
shares and for represented shares up to a maximum of 10% of total
share capital.

13. Shareholders holding 5 percent or more of total

share capital

Based onthe information available atthe time of this report, there were
no shareholders with more than 5% of the share capital at31 December
2005. At31 December 2004 Artisan Partners Ltd. Partnership, Milwau-
kee, Wisconsin (USA}, owned 10.01% of the share capital.
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Appropriation of available earnings Proposed payout of nominal value reduction

The Board of Directors proposes to transfer the netincome of the year ~ The Board of Directors proposes to repay CHF 0.25 of the nominal value

in the amount of CHF 229 550 139 to free reserves. of eachregistered share, as a result of a reduction of the nominal value
from CHF 4.75 to CHF 4.50 per registered share. The proposed payout
Available unappropriated earnings . ciF would reduce the share capital by CHF 57 540 000. The proposed pay-
Balance from prior year : 0‘ out of the nominal value reduction of CHF 0.25 each is expected on 22
Netincome of the year { 229550 139‘; June 2006, subject to approval by the ordinary General Meeting of
: ;. shareholders and subject to the fulfillment of the necessary require-
Total available unappropriated earnings 229550139 onts and the entry of the share capital reduction in the Commercial
Register of the Canton of Baselland.
Appropriation : CHF'
Transfer to free reserves ! -229550 139
Balance to be carried forward : 0
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Report of the statutory auditors

Report of the statutory auditors to the general meeting of Clariant Ltd,
Muttenz

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement and notes —
pages 110 to 113) of Clariant Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2005.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Di-
rectors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal re-
guirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our auditwas conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards,
which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain rea-
sonable assurance aboutwhether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence
supporting the amounts and disclgsures in the financial statements.
We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant
estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinion.

in our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and
the proposed appropriation of available earnings camply with Swiss
faw and the company's articles of incorporation.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be ap-
proved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Dr. M. Jeger Ph. Speck

Basel, 24 February 2006
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Forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified in their
entirety as there are certain factors that could cause results to dif-
fer materially from those anticipated. Investors are cautioned that afl
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainty. In addition
to the factors discussed above, among the factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially are the following: the timing and
strength of new product offerings; pricing strategies of competitors;
the company’s ability to continue to receive adequate products from
its vendors on acceptable terms, or at alt, and to continue to obtain suf-
ficientfinancing to meetits liquidity needs; and changes inthe political,
social and regulatory framework in which the company operates orin
economic or technological trends or conditions, including currency
fluctuations, inflation and consumer confidence, on a global, regional
or national basis.
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